

INVITATION TO BID (ITB) INSTRUCTIONS AND SUBMITTAL DOCUMENTS

For

ITB O-02119: SELMON EXPRESSWAY 22nd STREET & 50th STREET RAMP CONCRETE RECONSTRUCTION AND RESURFACING

And

ITB O-02219: EAST TOLL GANTRY AREA & REVERSIBLE EXPRESS LANES (REL) RESURFACING

Issue Date: 11/22/19

Response Due Date: 01/08/20

RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT

David May, P.E. Director of Expressway Operations

PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT

Man Le, PMP Procurement Manager 1104 East Twiggs Street, Suite 300 Tampa, Florida 33602 Telephone Number: (813) 272-2307 Email: <u>Man.Le@tampa-xway.com</u> **Note:** This document is constructed in three (3) sections. Section A contains the general information and general conditions the Bidder needs to prepare a Proposal Package. Section B contains the forms required to be submitted as part of the Proposal Package. Section C contains attachments incorporated into the ITB for general information and reference.

The Bidder should remove Section B and attach it, completed, to its Proposal Package.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DESC	CRIPTION	PAGE
Table	e of Contents	2
Adve	rtisement of ITB	4
Secti	on A: General Information and General Conditions	6
Gene	eral Information:	c.
	Instructions to Bidders	8
	Attachments	
	Procurement Process	
	Schedule of Events	
	Changes to Schedule or Meeting Place/Time	
	Special Accommodations	
	Pre-Proposal Conference	
	Electronic Distribution System	
	Request for Interpretation – Letter of Clarifications / Addendum	
	Communications	
	Modification and Withdrawal	
	Disqualification and Cancellation of this Solicitation	
	Waiver of Irregularities	
	Binding Offer	
	Cost of Preparation	
	Delivery of Proposal Package	
	Opening of Proposals	
	Proposal Evaluation	
	Evaluation Criteria	
	Award of Contract	
_	Solicitation Results	
Gene	eral Conditions:	13
	Qualifications of Bidder	
	Availability of Personnel	
	Project Manager	
	Contract	
	Contract Duration	
	Contract Assignment	
	Non-Exclusivity of Contract	
	Compliance	
	Ownership of Documents	
	Joint Ventures	
	Interpretation of Proposal Documents	
	Proposal Alternates	
	Public Records Law	

Indemnification Public Entity Crimes Statement Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Policy Insurance Requirements Proposal Security Performance Bond Surety Bond Specifications Additional Bond Conflict of Interest Scrutinized Companies E-Verify System Use of Other Governmental Contracts Notice of Protest Proposal Package Review

Section B: Required Forms to be Included in Proposal Package

- Form 1 Bid Proposal
- Form 2 Contractor's Questionnaire
- Form 3 Public Entity Crimes Statement
- Form 4 Anticipated SBE Participation Statement
- Form 5 Conflict of Interest Statement
- Form 6 Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies List
- Form 7 Acknowledgement of Receipt of Addendum/Letter of Clarification
- Form 8 Bidder's Proposal Package Review Checklist

Section C: Attachments

- 1 SBE Policy
- 2 Insurance Requirements, Coverages and Limits
- 3 Public Construction Bond
- 4 General Provisions
- 5 Technical Specifications
 - 01010 Summary of Work
 - 01015 Special Conditions and Precautionary Measures Governing Work 01026 Measurement and Payment
 - 01450 Protection of Environment
- 6 Letters of Clarification (when issued)
- 7 Addenda (when issued)

Attachments for O-02119:

- THEA 22nd and 50th St. PLANS FINAL
- THEA 22nd and 50th St SpecsPkg11.14.19SS

Attachments for O-02219:

- East_Selmon_Xway_Toll_Gantry_&_REL_Resurfacing_Areas.pdf
- THEA_TollResurfacing_Specs_111819_S&S.pdf

Reference Documents for -02219:

- REL Cleaning SelmonSEg4TCPfinal20170123
- REL Cleaning Selmon X-Way SEG 3-11-22 16rd

51

TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

INVITATION TO BID (ITB) ADVERTISEMENT

FOR

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY (THEA) INVITATION TO BID (ITB) O-02119 & O-02219

Selmon Expressway 22nd St. & 50th St. Ramps Concrete Reconstruction and Resurfacing (O-02119) & East Selmon Expressway Toll Gantry Area Resurfacing (O-02219)

THEA is soliciting sealed bids from qualified firms to provide all the labor, equipment, materials, tools, transportation, supplies, insurance, incidentals, mobilization, demobilization and maintenance of traffic necessary to provide pavement reconstruction, restoration, rehabilitation, and resurfacing of sections of the eastern segment of the Selmon Expressway. There are two projects:

- 22nd Street Ramp and 50th Street Ramp Concrete Pavement Reconstruction and Asphalt Pavement Resurfacing (O-02119)
- East Selmon Expressway Toll Gantry Area Resurfacing. (O-02219)

A <u>MANDATORY</u> Pre-Bid Conference will be held **December 05, 2019** at **2:00 p.m**. in the THEA Board Room on the 1st floor of the Transportation Management Center located at 1104 East Twiggs Street, Tampa, Florida 33602. Prospective firms are highly encouraged to attend.

The complete ITB Instructions and Submittal Documents are available through the DemandStar System (www.demandstar.com) or through an email request to <u>Man.Le@tampa-xway.com</u>. CONSULTANTS WHO OBTAIN THE ITB INSTRUCTIONS AND SUBMITTAL DOCUMENTS FROM SOURCES OTHER THAN DEMANDSTAR OR THEA ARE CAUTIONED THAT THE DOCUMENTS MAY BE INCOMPLETE.

Interested firms shall submit a completed response to the Authority, 1104 East Twiggs Street, Suite 300, 3rd Floor, Tampa, Florida 33602. Responses are due by **January 08, 2020 by 2:00 p.m**. at which time all proposals received will be publicly opened. Firms failing to submit the required documents as outlined within the ITB Instructions and Submittal Documents may be deemed non-responsive to the ITB. THEA strongly encourages the solicitation and utilization of SBE firms and requires nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, sex and national origin in its contracting practices.

Questions concerning this ITB should be directed by email to Man Le, THEA Procurement Manager at Man.Le@tampa-xway.com.

[END OF ADVERTISEMENT]

To be published November 22, 2019, in the Tampa Bay Times - Hillsborough Edition, the Florida Sentinel and La Gaceta newspapers.

Posting on DemandStar and THEA's website will begin November 22, 2019.

TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

SECTION A

GENERAL INFORMATION

AND

GENERAL CONDITIONS

FOR

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

SECTION A

GENERAL INFORMATION AND GENERAL CONDITIONS

Section A: General Information and General Conditions

- 1. General Information
- 1.1 Instructions to Bidders
- 1.2 Attachments
- 1.3 Procurement Process
- 1.4 Schedule of Events
- 1.5 Changes to Schedule or Meeting Place/Time
- 1.6 Special Accommodations
- 1.7 Pre-Proposal Conference
- 1.8 Electronic Distribution System
- 1.9 Request for Interpretation Letter of Clarifications / Addendum
- 1.10 Communications
- 1.11 Modification and Withdrawal
- 1.12 Disqualification and Cancellation of this Solicitation
- 1.13 Waiver of Irregularities
- 1.14 Binding Offer
- 1.15 Cost of Preparation
- 1.16 Delivery of Proposal Package
- 1.17 Opening of Proposals
- 1.18 Proposal Evaluation
- 1.19 Final Selection
- 1.20 Award of Contract
- 1.21 Solicitation Results
- 2. General Conditions
- 2.1 Qualifications of Bidder
- 2.2 Availability of Personnel
- 2.3 Project Manager
- 2.4 Contract
- 2.5 Contract Duration
- 2.6 Contract Assignment
- 2.7 Non-Exclusivity of Contract
- 2.8 Compliance
- 2.9 Ownership of Documents
- 2.10 Joint Ventures
- 2.11 Interpretation of Proposal Documents
- 2.12 Proposal Alternates
- 2.13 Public Records Law
- 2.14 Indemnification
- 2.15 Public Entity Crimes Statement
- 2.16 Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Policy
- 2.17 Insurance Requirements
- 2.18 Proposal Security
- 2.19 Conflict of Interest
- 2.20 Scrutinized Companies
- 2.21 E-Verify System
- 2.22 Use of Other Governmental Contracts
- 2.23 Notice of Protest
- 2.24 Proposal Package Review

SECTION A

GENERAL INFORMATION AND GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. **GENERAL INFORMATION:**

1.1 **INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS:**

To be considered, responses to this solicitation must be made in accordance with the instructions as contained within this document ITB No. O-02119 and O-02219.

1.2 ATTACHMENTS:

The attachments listed in Section C of this **ITB INSTRUCTIONS AND SUBMITTAL DOCUMENTS** are by this reference hereby incorporated into and made a part of this ITB as though fully set forth herein.

1.3 **PROCUREMENT PROCESS:**

The procurement process that will be utilized for this project is an Invitation to Bid (ITB). It is THEA's intention to solicit responses from qualified bidders; to evaluate those bids and responses and to award a contract for services to the lowest, responsive and responsible bidder, as determined by THEA, in its sole and absolute discretion, considering all relevant facts and information.

Bidders must demonstrate to THEA that they are fully capable, staffed, and qualified to provide the services required by this ITB. Fully qualified bidders (and/or their team assigned to this project) will have the qualifications (knowledge, education, training, expertise and skills), and experience (documentation, successful, and relevant) necessary to meet the requirements of this ITB. Determination of the bidder best qualified and experienced to perform the services required through this ITB will be determined by THEA in its sole opinion.

THEA reserves the right to request additional information and to seek clarification of any information submitted, including any omission from the original response. Additionally, THEA reserves the right to waive as informalities any irregularities in any response and to reject any and/or all responses, in its sole discretion. THEA contemplates engaging one firm and will commence contract negotiations with a qualified firm with the lowest bid. If a satisfactory agreement cannot be negotiated with the firm with a qualified firm with the lowest bid, then negotiations would begin with the firm with the next lowest bid. Bidders must submit a "Response Package" conforming to and containing all documents, forms and information as required by the ITB Instructions and Submittal Documents and as specified in this ITB.

1.4 <u>SCHEDULE OF EVENTS:</u>

The selection process will adhere to the following schedule. All times given are Eastern Standard Time. THEA reserves the right to make changes or alterations to the schedule as THEA determines in its best interest. Unless otherwise notified in writing by THEA, the dates, times and locations indicated below for submission of items or for other actions on the part of a bidder shall constitute absolute deadlines for those activities and failure to fully comply by the time stated shall be cause for the Bidder's Package to be rejected and disqualified from further consideration.

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS

EVENT	DATE/TIME
Release of ITB	11/22/2019
Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference @ TMC	12/05/2019 @ 2 p.m.
Deadline for Questions/Request for Clarification	12/12/2019
Deadline for THEA to respond to firm's questions	12/13/2019
Bid Proposal Package Due Date/Time (Deadline) Location: Transportation Management Center (TMC) 1104 East Twiggs Street, Suite 300 Tampa, FL 33602	01/08/2020 by 2 p.m. EST
Public Opening of Proposals (Firms not required to attend, however, the opening is open to the public.)	
Post Notice of Intended Ranking to the Authority's website and Demandstar.	01/09/2020
Board Approval of Final Ranking & Award of Contract @ TMC, Board Room	01/27/2020 @ 1:30 p.m.
Posting of Notice of Board Approval & Award of Contract to the Authority's website and Demandstar.	01/28/2020

1.5 CHANGES TO SCHEDULE OR MEETING PLACE/TIME:

Any changes to the Schedule of Events or meeting place/time will be posted as an Addendum and published through the DemandStar System (<u>www.demandstar.com</u>) and is also available on the THEA website (<u>www.tampa-xway.com</u>) on the Procurement/ Public Notices page .

1.6 SPECIAL ACCOMMONDATIONS:

Any person requiring special accommodations to attend or participate in a THEA meeting regarding this ITB, pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, should contact the THEA Procurement Manager in person at 1104 East Twiggs Street, Suite 300, Tampa, Florida 33602 or by telephone at 813-272-2307, or by email at <u>Man.Le@tampa-xway.com</u> at least five (5) business days prior to the scheduled meeting.

1.7 PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE:

A **MANDATORY Pre-Bid Conference** will be held on the date and time and at the location referenced in Paragraph 1.4, Schedule of Events. Prospective Bidders must attend in order to bid.

1.8 ELECTRONIC DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM:

THEA solicitations are issued electronically via DemandStar's eProcurement distribution system (DemandStar Contact Information: Telephone: 800-711-1712 / <u>www.demandstar.com</u>).

Obtaining solicitations through DemandStar ensures the following capabilities:

- a) Receipt of ITB Instructions and Submittal Documents electronically;
- b) Tracking status of the procurement process;
- c) Receiving Letters of Clarification and addenda;
- d) Receiving the results of Proposal Tabulations and contract awards;
- e) Viewing drawings, plans and blueprints online.

BIDDERS WHO OBTAIN SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS FROM SOURCES OTHER THAN DEMANDSTAR OR THEA ARE CAUTIONED THE SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS MAY BE INCOMPLETE.

1.9 <u>REQUEST FOR INTERPRETATION – LETTER OF CLARIFICATION / ADDENDUM:</u>

No substantive interpretation or questions of this solicitation will be made to any bidder verbally. Every request for interpretation or question must be in writing, addressed to THEA, Procurement Manager, Man Le at <u>Man.Le@tampa-xway.com</u>. To be considered, such requests must be received no later than the date and time stated for the **Deadline** for Bidder's Submission of Questions to THEA referenced in Paragraph 1.4, Schedule of Events.

Any such interpretations and any supplemental instructions to the bidders will be in the form of a Letter of Clarification or written addendum which if issued, will be posted on the DemandStar System (<u>www.demandstar.com</u>) and THEA's website no later than the date and time stated for the **Deadline for THEA to Respond to Bidder's Questions** referenced in Paragraph 1.4, Schedule of Events.

Failure of any Bidder to receive any such addendum or interpretation shall not relieve said bidder from any obligations contained within this ITB. Bidders are required to acknowledge receipt of such addenda issued for this solicitation.

All Letters of Clarification and Addenda issued shall become part of the ITB Instructions and Submittal Documents.

1.10 COMMUNICATIONS:

Bidders to this ITB or persons acting on their behalf <u>may not</u> contact members of THEA staff, THEA officers or THEA Board Members, or the consultants representing THEA with this solicitation and project once the advertisement of the solicitation has been published and until the THEA Board has made a final decision regarding the award of a contract. Any communications regarding this ITB shall be in writing to THEA, Attention Man Le, Procurement Manager via email at <u>Man.Le@tampa-xway.com</u>.

Violation of this provision shall be cause for the bidder's proposal package to be rejected and disqualified from further consideration.

1.11 MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL:

Proposal packages may be withdrawn by written request dispatched by the bidder and received by THEA at any time prior to the deadline stated for the **Deadline for Submitting Proposal Package and Opening** referenced in Paragraph 1.4.

Negligence on the part of the bidder in preparing its proposal package confers no right of withdrawal or modification after the proposal package has been opened, at the appointed time and place by THEA. Any such withdrawn proposal package shall not be resubmitted. Proposal packages will be in force for a period of one hundred twenty (120) days after the opening date.

1.12 DISQUALIFICATION AND CANCELLATION OF THIS SOLICITIATION:

THEA reserves the right to disqualify proposals before or after opening, upon evidence of collusion with intent to defraud or other illegal practices upon the part of the bidder.

Proposals considered irregular may be rejected or the irregularity(s) waived, at the sole option of THEA, if they show omissions, alterations of form, additions not called for, conditions or unauthorized alternate proposals, or irregularities of any kind.

In determining whether a proposal is <u>responsive</u>, THEA will determine if the proposal substantially conforms with the requirements, specifications, and terms and conditions set forth in the ITB Instructions and Submittal Documents by considering, including, but not limited to:

- a) Whether all required information is included in the proposal package
- b) Whether all documents are properly signed
- c) Whether the goods or services generally comply with the specification
- d) Identifying all exceptions, qualifications, errors or omission in the proposal

In determining whether a proposal is <u>responsible</u> or competent to the project THEA will consider, including, but not limited to:

- a) Proposal meets THEA's experience requirements for project.
- b) Experience on similar projects.
- c) Staff and equipment dedicated to project.
- d) Meeting or exceeding goals.
- e) Bidder's bonding capacity and financial strength.
- f) Whether Bidder's Small Business Enterprise (SBE) participation plan meets THEA's SBE Policy.
- g) Bidder is licensed for performing the work (if applicable)
- h) References with contact names and telephone numbers.
- i) Contract defaults, terminations for cause, debarments, project claims and litigation history for the past five years.

1.13 WAIVER OF IRREGULARITIES:

THEA reserves the right to waive as informalities any irregularities contained in any proposal package received where such is merely a matter of form and not substance, and the correction or waiver of which is not prejudicial to other bidders. Minor irregularities are defined as those that will not have an adverse effect on THEA's interest and will not give a bidder an advantage or benefit not enjoyed by other bidders.

1.14 BINDING OFFER:

Bidder's proposal packages will be considered a binding offer to perform the required services, assuming all terms are negotiated satisfactorily. The submission of a proposal package shall be taken as prima facie evidence that the bidder has familiarized itself with the contents of this ITB.

1.15 COST OF PREPARATION:

The cost of preparing a proposal package to this ITB shall be borne entirely by the bidder.

1.16 DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL PACKAGE:

The deadline for delivery of bidder's proposal package is no later than the date and time stated for the **Deadline for Submitting Proposal Package and Opening** referenced in Paragraph 1.4, Schedule of Events.

The delivery of proposal package to THEA prior to the deadline is solely and strictly the responsibility of the bidder. All proposal packages are to be delivered to the location stated for the **Deadline for Submitting Proposal Package and Opening** referenced in Paragraph 1.4, Schedule of Events. All proposal packages must be submitted in an opaque sealed envelope having the outside marked with the name of the bidder, bidder's address, the title of the project and project number for which the proposal is submitted and the date of the proposal submittal deadline.

Bidders must submit one (1) original proposal package with all the required forms.

All proposal packages must be submitted in accordance with the instructions set forth within this ITB Instructions and Submittal Documents including, but not limited to the following:

- a) Submit all required documents
- b) If the proposal is made by an individual, bidder's name and physical address must be shown.
- c) If the proposal made by a partnership, the business address of the partnership and the names and addresses of all partners must be shown.
- d) If the proposal is made by a corporation, the State wherein the corporation was chartered and the business address of the corporation must be shown.
- e) If the bidder is a corporation of a state other than Florida, the bidder must be registered to do business in the State of Florida as a foreign corporation.
- f) Proposals must be signed by the person or member of the bidder making the same, and in the case of a corporation, by an authorized officer or agent subscribing the name of the corporation with his own name.
- g) Only one proposal from an individual, bidder, partnership or corporation under the same or different names will be considered.

Failure to comply with the instructions set forth within the ITB Instructions and Submittal Documents will be cause for rejection, at the sole option of THEA.

1.17 OPENING OF PROPOSALS:

Sealed proposals will be received and opened on the date, time and at the location specified for the **Deadline for Submitting Proposal Package and Proposal Opening** referenced in Paragraph 1.4, Schedule of Events.

Bidders or their authorized agents are not required to attend the proposal opening; however all meetings are open to the public.

1.18 **PROPOSAL EVALUATION:**

Proposals will be evaluated on whether the bidder is responsible and responsive to this solicitation, to evaluate those bids and responses and to award a contract for services to the lowest, responsive and responsible bidder, as determined by THEA, in its sole and absolute discretion, considering all relevant facts and information.

Bidders the results will be posted no later than the date, time and at the locations stated in **Section A. 1.4**, Schedule of Events.

1.19 **FINAL SELECTION:**

The bidder with the **lowest total (sum of the two projects) bid price** will be presented to THEA's Board for consideration and approval with a recommendation that the bidder be selected per the Schedule of Events in Section A, Paragraph 1.4.

1.20 AWARD OF CONTRACT:

The award of the contract, if made, will be within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the opening of the proposal packages.

1.21 SOLICITATION RESULTS:

Final results will be available within 24 hours after THEA's Board meets to approve award of the Contract on the date, time and at the location as specified for the **Posting of Notice of Board Approval & Award of Contract** referenced in Paragraph 1.4, Schedule of Events.

2. GENERAL CONDITIONS:

2.1 QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDER:

The bidder must include with its proposal package a completed required forms as contained in Section B. Failure to submit a completed forms may be cause for rejection at the sole option of THEA.

2.2 AVAILABILITY OF PERSONNEL:

Personnel described in the proposal package shall be available to perform the services as described. All personnel shall be considered to be, at all times, the employees, or agents of the bidder and not employees or agents of THEA. Procedures shall be in place for prompt temporary replacement of absent employees and timely permanent replacement of staff vacancies.

2.3 **PROJECT MANAGER:**

The bidder shall designate from its staff a fulltime, qualified Project Manager having at least 5 years of experience in performing and/or administering similar types of work as this project. The Project Manager shall be the single point of contact as liaison with THEA during the procurement process and during performance of the project. The Project Manager shall be the responsible person in charge of coordinating day to day work activities on task assignments, preparing the itemized task work order estimates, schedules, payment applications, directing firm's work forces, reports, day to day administrative matters, coordinating the SBE policy to achieve the established goals and other related items necessary to fulfill the requirements of the Contract.

2.4 <u>CONTRACT:</u>

The selected bidder shall enter into a contract with THEA for this ITB with the terms and conditions as specified within this ITB Instructions and Submittal Document.

2.5 CONTRACT DURATION:

The contract will be for the total duration as listed in the Summary of Work section.

2.6 CONTRACT ASSIGNMENT:

The selected bidder may not make any assignments of their obligations resulting from this solicitation without the prior written authorization of the THEA.

2.6.1 SUB-BIDDERS:

All sub-bidders are subject to THEA's approval. THEA reserves the right to reject any and all sub-bidders listed by the bidder and bear no responsibility or liability to the bidder or sub-bidder for any commitments made regarding this project.

2.7 NON-EXCLUSIVITY OF CONTRACT:

The selected bidder understands and agrees that any resulting contractual relationship is non-exclusive and THEA reserves the right to seek similar or identical services elsewhere if deemed in the best interest of THEA and to cancel any contract with a 30-day written notice from THEA.

2.8 <u>COMPLIANCE:</u>

THEA has the right to reject the proposal or annul the award in the event the proposal does not comply with any of the requirements outlined herein.

2.9 <u>OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS:</u>

All documents resulting from this procurement process and subsequent contract will become the sole property of the THEA.

2.10 JOINT VENTURES:

Not applicable.

2.11 INTERPRETATION OF PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS:

When conflicting criteria arises as to the interpretation of overlapping permits, regulations, specifications or any of the proposal documents, the most stringent interpretation will govern unless modified in writing by THEA.

2.12 PROPOSAL ALTERNATES:

Not applicable.

2.13 PUBLIC RECORDS LAW:

In accordance with *Florida Statutes*, Chapter 119, and, except as may be provided by other applicable State and Federal Laws, all Bidders should be aware that this ITB and all the responses thereto are in the public domain and are available for public inspection.

The Bidders are requested, however, to identify specifically any information contained in their proposals which they consider confidential and/or proprietary and which they believe to be exempt from disclosure, citing specifically the applicable exemption law. All proposals received in response to this ITB will become the property of THEA and will not be returned.

2.14 INDEMNIFICATION:

The selected Bidder, as part of its contract with THEA, shall be required to indemnify and hold harmless THEA, its officers and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses and costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentional wrongful misconduct of the bidder and persons employed or utilized by the bidder in the performance of this contract.

2.15 PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES STATEMENT:

A person, affiliate, or corporation who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a proposal on a contract with a public entity or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit proposals on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a bidder, supplier, sub-bidder, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, *Florida Statutes*, for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

Any such person, affiliate, or corporation wishing to propose on this ITB must include a current sworn statement pursuant to Section 287.133 (1) *Florida Statutes*, on public entity crimes. A copy of the required **PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES STATEMENT** is contained in Section B.

THEA may make inquiries regarding alleged convictions or public entity crimes. The failure of the Bidder to promptly supply information in connection with an inquiry or the failure to comply with the requirement contained within this section will cause the rejection of any submitted proposal, offer, response, or proposal, at the sole discretion of the THEA.

2.16 SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (SBE) POLICY:

THEA's Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Policy requires nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and gender in its employment and contracting practices and encourages the solicitation and utilization of SBEs.

2.16.1 SBE Policy:

Businesses contracting with THEA must have or adopt a similar nondiscrimination policy. A copy of THEA's **SBE POLICY** is appended to this solicitation as **ATTACHMENT 1**. THEA strongly encourages the solicitation and utilization of SBE bidders to the greatest extent possible on THEA projects.

Bidder shall submit a completed Anticipated SBE Participation Statement which shall provide the details of bidder's anticipated utilization of SBE Bidders during the performance of this project. A copy of the required **ANTICIPATED SBE PARTICPATION STATEMENT** is contained in Section B.

2.16.2 SBE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY REPORTING SYSTEM:

The successful bidder entering into a contract with THEA will be required to report monthly to THEA actual payments, minority status, and the work type of all subbidders and suppliers. All SBE payments must be reported whether or not the prime bidder initially planned to utilize the company. Each month the prime bidder must report actual payments to all SBE sub-bidders and suppliers.

2.17 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

For the term of this project and contract, the selected bidder shall procure and maintain insurances of the types and limits specified in **ATTACHMENT 2**, **INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS, COVERAGES AND LIMITS**.

2.18 **PROPOSAL SECURITY**:

Not applicable.

2.19 CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

The bidder shall state if it represents clients that may present conflict or potential conflicts with representation of THEA. Bidder shall provide a list of any potential conflicts by description. Bidder need not identify a particular client. If conflicts are listed, the bidder shall address how these conflicts will be resolved. A copy of the required **CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT** is contained in Section B.

2.20 SCRUNTINIZED COMPANIES:

Section 287.135 of the *Florida Statutes* prohibits governmental entities from contracting for goods and services of \$1 million or more with companies that are on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.

A company that, at the time of submitting a proposal for a new contract is on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or is engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria, is ineligible for, and may not proposal on, submit a proposal for, or enter into or renew a contract with an agency or local government entity for goods or services of \$1 million or more. Bidders must certify that it is not listed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List created pursuant to Section 215.473 *Florida Statutes*, or engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.

The resulting contract from this solicitation shall contain a provision that allows for immediate termination of the contract by THEA if the bidder/consultant is found to have submitted a false statement or if Bidder/Consultant during the term of the resulting contract is placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List created pursuant to

Section 215.473 *Florida Statutes*, or becomes engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. Bidders are required to complete and submit the Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies Lists with its Response Submittal Package. A copy of the required **CERTIFICATION REGARDING SECURITIZED COMPANIES LIST** is contained in Section B.

2.21 <u>E-VERIFY SYSTEM:</u>

Pursuant to the State of Florida, Office of the Governor, Executive Order Number 11-116, Verification of Employment Status, the selected bidder entering a contract for this ITB shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify System (www.uscis.gov) in accordance with the terms governing use of the system to confirm the employment eligibility of all new persons employed by the selected bidder during the term of the resulting contract from this solicitation.

The selected bidder entering a contract for this ITB shall also require sub-bidder(s) performing work or providing services during the term of the resulting contract from this solicitation to utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify System (www.uscis.gov) in accordance with the terms governing use of the system to bidder the employment eligibility of all new persons employed by the sub-bidder during the term of the resulting contract from this solicitation.

The selected bidder shall provide proof of registration in the E-Verify system to THEA upon execution of a contract.

2.22 USE OF OTHER GOVENNMENTAL CONTRACTS:

THEA reserves the right to utilize applicable contracts made available by the State and Federal Government or other governmental entities which were procured under competitive solicitation for any items covered by this specification when the use of same is in the best interest of THEA. (Reference Sections 69-1112 and 69-1119, *Laws of Florida*).

Additionally, the submission of proposal package to this ITB constitutes a response under the same terms and conditions, and for the same effective period, to all governmental entities.

Any State, Federal or other governmental entity <u>may elect</u> to utilize the selected bidder under this ITB at their option. All State, Federal and other governmental entities will negotiate their own agreement and coordinate the requirements with the successful bidder. THEA will not be responsible for any transactions between the successful bidder and any other State, Federal or other governmental entities that may elect to utilize this the selected bidder's proposal package. As a condition of using the successful bidder(s) from this ITB, the Governmental Entity and bidder(s) shall hold THEA harmless from any claims or lawsuits that may arise.

2.23 NOTICE OF PROTEST:

2.23.1 Protests Prior to Notice of Award:

Any person wishing to protest THEA's procurement process or its solicitation documents for the procurement of services must file a Notice of Intent to Protest accompanied by a Protest Bond in the amount of \$5,000., or for such amount as set forth in the solicitation documents within 72 hours of THEA's publication of the solicitation documents, (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays). Within ITB 0-02119 and 0-02219 ~ Page 17 of 154

five (5) calendar days of the filing of the Notice of Intent to Protest and posting of bond, the protesting party must file a written protest stating with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is based. The protest should: (1) state the specific provision(s) of the proposal or proposal package or process applicable to the protest; (2) state the specific manner or method in which the protesting party alleges that THEA erred in its interpretation or implementation of its solicitation process, procedures or statutory provisions; (3) state the basis upon which the protest is premised; and (4) state the Protesting party's position and arguments of law, including any evidence supporting the position.

2.23.2 Protests After Notice of Award:

Any person wishing to protest THEA's actions leading up to a notice of recommendation to either reject any or all proposals, or to make a selection or award ("Notice of Decision"), must file a Notice of Intent to Protest, accompanied by a Protest Bond in the amount of \$5,000., or for such amount as shall be set forth in the solicitation documents with THEA within 72 hours of THEA's publication of its Notice of Decision. (excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays). The Protest Bond required herein shall be in addition to the Protest Bond referenced in Paragraph 2.23.1 above. Within five (5) calendar days of the filing of the Notice of Intent to Protest and posting of bond, the protesting party must file a written protest stating with particularity the facts and law upon which the protest is based. The protest should: (1) state the specific provision(s) of the proposal package or process applicable to the protest; (2) state the specific manner or method in which the protesting party alleges that THEA erred in its interpretation or implementation of its solicitation process, procedures or statutory provisions; (3) state the basis upon which the protest is premised; and (4) state the protesting party's position and arguments of law, including any evidence supporting the position.

2.24 PROPOSAL PACKAGE REVIEW:

To assist bidders in preparing and submitting a complete proposal package, a checklist is included for bidder's use. The **BIDDER'S PROPOSAL PACKAGE REVIEW CHECKLIST** is contained in Section B.

[END OF SECTION A – GENERAL INFORMATION AND GENERAL CONDITIONS]

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

SECTION B

REQUIRED FORMS

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 19 of 154

SECTION B

REQUIRED FORMS

Required forms to be completed, signed, notarized when indicated and included in bidder's proposal package:

FORM 8:	Bidder's Proposal Package Review Checklist (For bidder's use , <u>not</u> required to be included in bidder's proposal package.)
FORM 7:	Acknowledgement of receipt of Addendum / Letter of Clarification
FORM 6:	Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies Lists
FORM 5:	Conflict of Interest Statement
FORM 4:	Anticipated SBE Participation Statement
FORM 3:	Public Entity Crimes Statement
FORM 2:	Contractor's Questionnaire
FORM 1:	Bid Proposal Forms

Note: Failure to submit the required forms may result in bidder's proposal package being determined non-responsive and rejected.

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

FORM 1 - BID PROPOSAL FORMS

FOR

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

BID PROPOSAL FORM ~ ITB O-02119

(Print this page on bidder's letterhead)

Date:

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY (THEA) Attention: Man Le, Procurement Manager 1104 East Twiggs Street, Suite 300 Tampa, FL 33602

Subject: SELMON EXPRESSWAY 22nd STREET & 50th STREET RAMP CONCRETE RECONSTRUCTION & RESURFACING ~ ITB O-02119

Dear THEA:

Having carefully examined the Instructions to Bidders, Supplementary Instructions to Bidders, General Provisions, Supplementary General Provisions, Special Provisions and Technical Specifications, Plans or Drawings (if issued), of the above subject project and contract, as well as the premises and the conditions affecting the work, the undersigned proposes to furnish all labor and materials called for by them and equipment necessary and to accomplish the entire work within the time period indicated in accordance with the said documents for the prices presented in the price schedules included in this Bid Proposal Form.

The undersigned acknowledges that they understand the following conditions that within the price schedules any unit prices other than lump sum (i.e. EA, Ton, LF, Day, Month, CY, SY) and extended amounts indicated with brackets around the insertion lines are considered to be deducts or credits to the overall project cost. Calculations of price schedule extensions and price totals shall appropriately account for individual deductive and additive pay items.

WRITTEN AMOUNT:	DOLLARS AND	CENTS			
TOTAL LUMP SUM BID PRICE \$					
TOTAL GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PRICE: \$					

The undersigned firm agrees to keep this offer open for acceptance for One Hundred Twenty (120) days after date of opening the Price Proposals.

The signer of this Price Proposal Form hereby declares that the only person, persons, company or parties interested in this Proposal as principals are named herein, that this Proposal is made without connection with any other person, persons, company or parties submitting a proposal; and that it is in all respects fair and in good faith, without collusion or fraud.

Name of Firm

Authorized Signature

Date

EXHIBIT C BID PROPOSAL FORM ~ ITB O-02219

(Print this page on bidder's letterhead)

Date: _____

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY (THEA) Attention: Man Le, Procurement Manager 1104 East Twiggs Street, Suite 300 Tampa, FL 33602

Subject: EAST TOLL GANTRY AREA & REL RESURFACING ~ ITB O-02219

Dear THEA:

Having carefully examined the Instructions to Bidders, Supplementary Instructions to Bidders, General Provisions, Supplementary General Provisions, Special Provisions and Technical Specifications, Plans or Drawings (if issued), of the above subject project and contract, as well as the premises and the conditions affecting the work, the undersigned proposes to furnish all labor and materials called for by them and equipment necessary and to accomplish the entire work within the time period indicated in accordance with the said documents for the prices presented in the price schedules included in this Bid Proposal Form.

The undersigned acknowledges that they understand the following conditions that within the price schedules any unit prices other than lump sum (i.e. EA, Ton, LF, Day, Month, CY, SY) and extended amounts indicated with brackets around the insertion lines are considered to be deducts or credits to the overall project cost. Calculations of price schedule extensions and price totals shall appropriately account for individual deductive and additive pay items.

WRITTEN AMOUNT:	DOLLARS AND	CENTS			
TOTAL LUMP SUM BID PRICE \$					
TOTAL GENERAL CONSTRUCTION PRICE: \$					

The undersigned firm agrees to keep this offer open for acceptance for One Hundred Twenty (120) days after date of opening the Price Proposals.

The signer of this Price Proposal Form hereby declares that the only person, persons, company or parties interested in this Proposal as principals are named herein, that this Proposal is made without connection with any other person, persons, company or parties submitting a proposal; and that it is in all respects fair and in good faith, without collusion or fraud.

Name of Firm

Authorized Signature

Date

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

FORM 2 – CONTRACTOR'S QUESTIONNAIRE

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

CONTRACTOR'S QUESTIONNAIRE

Bidder shall complete this questionnaire, sign, date and submit with its bid.

1. BUSINESS INFORMATION:

- 1.1. Name of Primary Contractor (Bidder):
- 1.2 Location of primary office which will handle this project:

1.3 Business Organization:

- a. Number of years your firm (under any name) has been in Business:
- b. With same person in top management position
- c. Under present name
- d. Number of years in Florida
- e. Total number of full-time staff
- f. Additional Part-time Staff
- g. States in which you have performed activities:

2. LICENSING. REGISTRATION AND PRE-QUALIFICATION:

- 2.1 This Project requires that **Prime Contractor** be:
 - a) Licensed having a Florida General Contractor's License;
- 2.2 This Project requires that the **Prime Contractor** and subcontractors have:
 - a) Received a current Florida Department of Transportation, (FDOT) "Contractor Past Performance Rating", (CPPR) having an average score of 85 or above.
- 2.3 This Project requires that the **Prime Contractor** <u>and/or</u> subcontractor(s) are:
 - a) Pre-qualified with the FDOT Work Category of "Pavement Markings".

- b) Pre-qualified with the FDOT in the Work Category of "Flexible Paving".
- c) Have previous experience with FDOT project(s) within the last five (5) years.
- d) Have FDOT Maintenance of Traffic certification.
- 2.4 Prime Contractor and subcontractors must be properly licensed, registered pre-qualified and have received a FDOT "Contractor Past Performance Rating", (CPPR) having an average score of 85 or above at the time the Bid Package is submitted.

2.5 **Submit with the Bid Package a copy of the following:**

For the **Prime Contractor** :

- a) Florida General Contractor's License;
- b) Current FDOT "Contractor Past Performance Rating", (CPPR) having an average score of 85 or above.
- c) All other applicable licenses, certifications and/or registrations.

For the **subcontractor(s)**:

- a) Current FDOT "Contractor Past Performance Rating", (CPPR) having an average score of 85 or above.
- b) All other applicable licenses, certifications and/or registrations.

For the **Prime Contractor and/or sub-contractor(s) performing the work**:

- a) Florida Department of Transportation Pre-Qualification for Work Category of "Pavement Markings";
- b) Florida Department of Transportation, Pre- Qualification for Work Category of "Flexible Paving"; and "Portland Cement Concrete Roadway Paving"
- c) At least one project reference to demonstrate previous experience with a Florida Department of Transportation, project(s). Include project name, date completed, owner name, owner address, owner telephone number, dollar amount of contract;
- d) All other applicable licenses, certifications and/or registrations.

2.6 This Project requires that the Prime Contractor and/or sub-contractor performing the work be properly licensed, certified, pre-qualified and/or registered with local, county and state governmental authorities as required for the performance of such work.

The Prime Contractor for this project is responsible for ensuring all subcontractors are properly licensed, certified, pre-qualified and/or registered as required by local, county and state governmental authorities as required for the performance of such work.

The Prime Contractor must show proof of license, certification, and/or registration and qualifications of staff and/or sub-contractor's staff as requested THEA.

3. **EXPERIENCE AND REFERENCES:**

- 3.1 Experience:
 - 3.1.1. State the total construction volume and value that your organization has been responsible for in the past five years in:
 - a. Total Dollar value
 - b. Number of Contracts
 - 3.1.2. List the dollar volume and number of governmental projects you have completed in the past 5 years:
 - a. Dollar Value
 - b. Number of government projects
- 3.2 Provide information on at least three projects that Contractor has performed within the past five (5) years that were similar to this project. List chronologically, starting with the last project:

3.2.1 Project # 1:

Title and Position Reference held for this Project:				
Firm name where Reference was employed for this Project:				
j. Reference's Telephone:				
k. Dollar Amount:				
 List any other special criteria – i.e. specialized repair or equipment, etc. worked: 				
m. Describe Your Specific Scope of Work:				
n. General Contract Amount:				
o. Your Participation was:				
p. Completion Date:				
q. Was Project completed on time?				
r. Was Project completed within budget?				
s. If not, explain:				
t. Penalties imposed? (Yes or No; if Yes, explain)				
u. Any liens, claims, or lawsuits? (Yes or No, if Yes, explain):				
 v. If a D/W/MBE or Small Business Enterprise (SBE) percentage goal was required, indicate what the goal was and what success did your firm have in achieving the goal. 				

w. Provide names and phone numbers of the D/W/MBE or SBE firms used on the project:

x.	Any other pertinent information?
	[Use additional sheets as necessary.]
3.2	2.2 Project # 2:
a.	Date Project Completed:
b.	Project Name:
c.	Owner Name:
d.	Owner Address:
e.	Owner Telephone:
f.	Name of Reference for this Project:
g.	Relationship of Reference to Owner:
h.	Title and Position Reference held for this Project:
i.	Firm name where Reference was employed for this Project:
j.	Reference's Telephone:
k.	Dollar Amount:
I.	List any other special criteria – i.e. specialized repair or equipment, etc. worked:
m.	Describe Your Specific Scope of Work:
n.	General Contract Amount:
0.	Your Participation was:
p.	Completion Date:

q. Was Project completed on time?
r. Was Project completed within budget?
s. If not, explain:
t. Penalties imposed? (Yes or No; if Yes, explain)
u. Any liens, claims, or lawsuits? (Yes or No, if Yes, explain):
 v. If a D/W/MBE or Small Business Enterprise (SBE) percentage goal was required, indicate what the goal was and what success did your firm have in achieving the goal.
 w. Provide names and phone numbers of the D/W/MBE or SBE firms used on the project:
x. Any other pertinent information?
[Use additional sheets as necessary.]
3.2.3 Project # 3:
a. Date Project Completed:
b. Project Name:
c. Owner Name:
d. Owner Address:
e. Owner Telephone:
f. Name of Reference for this Project:
g. Relationship of Reference to Owner:
h. Title and Position Reference held for this Project:

•	Reference's Telephone:				
٢.	Dollar Amount:				
•	List any other special criteria – i.e. specialized repair or equipment, etc. worked:				
n.	Describe Your Specific Scope of Work:				
า.	General Contract Amount:				
э.	Your Participation was:				
p.	Completion Date:				
q.	Was Project completed on time?				
r.	Was Project completed within budget?				
s.	If not explain:				
t.	Penalties imposed? (Yes or No; if Yes explain)				
u.	Any liens, claims, or lawsuits? (Yes or No, if Yes explain):				
v.	If a D/W/MBE or Small Business Enterprise (SBE) percentage goal was required, indicate what the goal was and what success did your firm have in achieving the goal.				
	Provide names and phone numbers of the D/W/MBE or SBE firms				
w.	used on the project:				

4. **STAFF AND EQUIPMENT:**

4.1 Provide information on Contractor's staff that will be assigned to this Project including name, years' experience, credentials and professional licenses.

POSITION	EMPLOYEE NAME	CREDENTIALS & PROFESSIONAL LICENSE	YEARS EXP
Project Manager			
Superintendent			

4.2. Provide a profile of your staff listing classification of personnel, number of personnel and combined years of experience.

Classification	Number of Personnel	Combined Years of Experience	No. of 4-year Degrees
Project Manager			
Scheduler			
Estimator			
Project Accountant			
Contract Administrator			
Construction Manager (field)			
Other			

4.3 Provide information on Contractor's equipment that will be assigned to this Project.

Type of Equipment	Model No.	Size/Capacity	Age	Owned, Leased, or Subcontract Item

5. WORKLOAD:

5.1 .	Total number of projects in the active planning phase	
	Dollar Amount	\$
5.2.	Total number of projects presently under construction	
	Dollar Amount	\$

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

5.3. Provide a list of Contractor's active construction contracts which are currently in progress along with Owner's contact name and telephone number.

Contract	Contract	Percent	Owner's Re	presentative
Description	Amount	Complete	Name	Phone

5. FINANCIAL STATUS OF CONTRACTOR:

5.1 Contractor's bonding capacity:

5.1.1.	Maximum Bonding Capacity for Single Project:	\$_	
5.1.2.	Maximum Aggregate Bond Capacity:	\$_	
5.1.3.	Currently bonded:	\$	
5.1.4.	Net Bonding Capacity (2-3):	\$_	

5.2. Name of Surety that will provide you a Public Construction Bond for the project (if different from Surety providing Bid Bond):

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

5.3. Attach a copy of the Primary Contractor's most recent annual Financial Statement, including available reports from investigative organizations (Dun & Bradstreet, etc.). These reports should indicate Long Term Assets and Liabilities of the firm and its financial standing, **OR** complete the following:

5.3.1	ASSETS:	
a.	Cash on hand	\$
b.	Cash on deposit	\$
С.	Cash elsewhere	\$
	Total Cash	\$
d.	Deposits with bids	\$
e.	Due (from completed contracts)	\$
f.	Earned (incomplete contracts)	\$
g.	Retention (incomplete contracts)	\$
h.	Earned but not billed (incomplete contracts	\$
i.	Ordinary accounts receivable	\$
j.	Stocks and bonds at present market value	\$
k.	Building and Loan at present withdrawal value	\$
I.	Other quick assets (due in 90 days)	\$
	Total Quick Assets	\$
5.3.2	LIABILITIES:	
a.	Current notes payable to conclusion of Contract period	\$
b.	Accounts payable	\$
с.	Other current liabilities	\$
	Total Current Liabilities	\$
5.3.3	FINANCIAL SUMMARY:	
a.	Net Quick assets (Assets - Liabilities)	\$
b.	Available lines of credit	\$
	TOTAL NET QUICK ASSETS \$_	

6. **SUBCONTRACTING:**

7.

6.1	Provide a list of five sub-contractors of different trades, preferably located in the Tampa area, that you have used within the past five years. At least one of the firms should be a SBE Firm or other community outreach program (i.e. W/MBE with FDOT, W/MBE with City of Tampa or Hillsborough County).							
DEF/	AULTS. CLAIMS. LITIGIATIO	ON AND VIO	LATIONS:					
7.1.		List any Contract defaults or Owner Terminations for cause, which Contractor has had in at least the past five years.						
	Project Description	Year	Owner's Rep Name	Phone				
7.2.	years, which resulted in cla	aims or litigat	tracts you have had within the ion, even if they were settled on ny litigation or claim of neglige	out of court,				
7.3	List any EPA, FDEP or Co Contractor during last five	•	mental violations or fines impo	sed on				

The Contractor signature below attests that the information provided herein is true and accurate.

Signature

Printed Name

Title

Date

[END OF FORM 2 - CONTRACTOR'S QUESTIONNAIRE]

FORM 3 - PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES STATEMENT

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 38 of 154

FORM 3

PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES STATEMENT

SWORN STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 287.133(3)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES

This sworn statement is submitted to Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority 1. by _____ [print individual's name and title]

for _____ [print name of entity submitting sworn statement]

whose business address is

and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) is ______

(If the entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual signing this

- sworn statement: ______.)
- I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in a Paragraph 287.133(1)(g), Florida Statutes, means 2. a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States, including, but not limited to, any proposal or contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States and involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
- I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(b), Florida Statutes, 3. means a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an adjunction of guilt in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- I understand that an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1)(a), Florida Statutes, means: 4.
 - A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or i.
 - ii. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who has been convicted of a public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of the affiliate. The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be prima facie case that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.
- 5. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(e), Florida Statutes, means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which proposals or applies to proposal on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity. The term "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in management of an entity.
- Based on the information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in relation to the 6. entity submitting this sworn statement. [indicate with a check mark which statement applies.]

Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of entity, nor any affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.

- ____ The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent of July 1, 1989.
- The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members or agents who are active in the management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent of July 1, 1989. However, there has been a subsequent proceeding before a Hearing Officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by the hearing Officer determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting this sworn statement on the convicted vendor list. **[attach a copy of the final order]**

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 (ONE) ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED. I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA STATUTES FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS FORM.

	Signature
State of County of	Date
	APPEARED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority,

_____ who, after first being sworn by me, affixed his/her signature in

[Name of individual signing]

the space provided above on this _____ day of _____, 20____.

Notary	Publ	ic
INOLAL y	I UUI	uc

My commission expires: _____

[Notary Seal]

[END OF FORM 3 – PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES STATEMENT]

FORM 4 – ANTICPATED SBE PARTICIPATION STATEMENT

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

FORM 4

ANTICIPATED SBE PARTICIPATION STATEMENT

Project:
Project Number:
Prime Bidder Name:
Contract Dollar Amount:
Is the prime Bidder an SBE as described in the Authority's Policy adopted February 25, 2002 (Yes) (No)
Expected amount of contract dollars to be subcontracted to SBE(s):
It is our intent to subcontract% of the contract dollars to SBE(s). Listed below are the proposed SBE sub bidders (to the extent known, please indicate whether the company holds, Minority, Women or Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Status.):
<u>SBE(s) Name</u> <u>Type of Work/Specialty</u> <u>Dollar Amount/Percentage</u> <u>Minority Status</u>
Submitted by: Title:
E-mail Address: Telephone number:
Date:
[END OF FORM 4 – ANTICPATED SBE PARTICIPATION STATEMENT]

FORM 5 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 43 of 154

CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT

Check one of the boxes below:

- To the best of our knowledge, the undersigned bidder has no potential conflict of interest due to any other clients, contracts, or property interest for this solicitation and project.

 \square

The undersigned bidder, by attachment to this form, submits information which **may** be a potential conflict of interest due to other clients, contracts or property interest for this solicitation and project.

BIDDER:

By: _

Authorized Signature

Printed Name of Signer

Title of Signer

Date Signed

[END OF FORM 5 – CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT]

FORM 6 - CERTIFICATION REGARDING SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES LISTS

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 45 of 154

CERTIFICATION REGARDING SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES LISTS

This certification is required pursuant to *Florida Statute*, Section 287.135.

A company that, at the time of submitting a proposal for a new contract or renewal of an existing contract, is on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or is engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria, is ineligible for, and may **not** proposal on, submit a proposal for, or enter into or renew a contract with an agency or local government entity for goods or services of \$1 million or more.

Bidder / Bidder Name:			
Bidder /Bidder FID or EIN:			
Address:			
City:	State:	Zip:	

I hereby warrant that I am duly authorized to sign and bind on behalf of the company listed above as the "Bidder/Bidder".

I hereby certify and affirm that the company listed above as the "Bidder/Bidder" is not listed on either the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, created pursuant to Florida Statute Section 215.473, or engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.

I understand pursuant to Florida Statue, Section 287.135, the submission of a false certification may subject the Bidder/Bidder to civil penalties, attorney's fees and/or costs.

BIDDER:

By:

Authorized Signature

Printed Name of Signer

Title of Signer

Date Signed

[END OF FORM 6 – CERTFICATION REGARDING SCRUTINZIED COMPANIES LIST]

FORM 7 – ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDUM / LETTER OF CLARIFICATION

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDUM

FORM 7

Were Addenda issued on this Solicitation? Yes No Were Letter of Clarification issued on this Solicitation? Yes No I (We) hereby acknowledge receipt of the following Addendum/Addenda issued in reference to 7this solicitation by listing the Addenda by number, date and signing the form: Addendum Date: Addendum Date: _____ Addendum _____ Date: Letter of Clarification Date: _____ Date: _____ Letter of Clarification Letter of Clarification Date: _____ **BIDDER:** By: _ Authorized Signature

Printed Name of Signer

Title of Signer

Date Signed

[END OF FORM 7 – ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDUM]

FORM 8 – BIDDER'S PROPOSAL PACKAGE REVIEW CHECKLIST

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

BIDDER'S PROPOSAL PACKAGE REVIEW CHECKLIST

Bidders may use this Checklist for reference in preparing and submitting a complete Proposal Package.

- Proposal Package submitted in an opaque sealed envelope having the outside marked with the name of the Bidder, Bidder's address, the title of the project and project number for which the proposal is submitted and the date of the proposal submittal deadline.
- _____ Submit one (1) original
- _____ FORM 1: Bid Proposal Forms (2 bid forms)
- _____ FORM 2: Contractor's Questionnaire (with required licenses & FDOT ratings)
- _____ FORM 3: Public Entity Crimes Statement
- _____ FORM 4: Anticipated SBE Participation Statement
- _____ FORM 5: Conflict of Interest Statement
- _____ FORM 6: Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies Lists
- _____ FORM 7: Acknowledgement of receipt of Addendum/Letter of Clarification
- _____ FORM 8: Bidder's Proposal Package Review Checklist (For Bidder's use, <u>not</u> required to be included in Bidder's Proposal Package.)

[END OF FORM 8 - BIDDER'S PROPOSAL PACKAGE REVIEW CHECKLIST]

SECTION C

ATTACHMENTS

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

SECTION C

ATTACHMENTS

- 1 SBE Policy
- 2 Insurance Requirements, Coverages and Limits
- 3 Public Construction Bond (required once contract has been executed)
- 4 General Provisions
- 5 Technical Specifications
 - 01010 Summary of Work
 - 01015 Special Conditions and Precautionary Measures Governing Work
 - 01026 Measurement and Payment
 - 01450 Protection of Environment
- 6 Letters of Clarification (when issued)
- 7 Addenda (when issued)

ATTACHMENT 1 – SBE POLICY

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 53 of 154

The Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority

<u>Small Business Enterprise (SBE) Policy for Design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible</u> <u>Expressway Lanes Projects</u>

(Adopted February 25, 2002)

1. Introduction

In recognition of difficulties encountered by Small Business Enterprises (hereinafter "SBEs) in the transportation Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes contracting industry, the Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority ("Authority") hereby adopts this policy to provide mechanisms that will enhance contracting opportunities for SBEs on the Authority's design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes contracts. This policy shall apply to design contracts in excess of \$250,000, and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes contracts in excess of \$1,000,000.00 (hereinafter also referred to as "Contracts" or "Design & Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contracts"), except that the provisions of the Sheltered Market Component covered by paragraph 4(e) hereof may involve contracts of any size and nature.

The Authority shall utilize race-neutral, ethnic-neutral and gender-neutral mechanisms to enhance contracting opportunities for SBEs on Authority Design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contracts.

2. Definition of SBE

An SBE means a business enterprise that has obtained the required registration or certification from any of the following governmental entities in any one of the categories listed below:

- Hillsborough County as a WMBE or SBE
- City of Tampa as a WMBE or SBE
- Florida Department of Transportation as a DBE
- State of Florida as an MBE as defined in section 288.703(2), Florida Statutes or as an SBE as defined in section 288.703(1), Florida Statutes
- Small Business Administration as an SBE or SBA 8(a)
- Other governmental entities in the Greater Tampa Bay Area as an SBE, MBE, DBE, or WMBE. (Greater Tampa Bay Area means Hillsborough, Pinellas, Polk, Pasco, and Manatee Counties)

3. SBE Outreach Liaison

The Authority shall designate an SBE Outreach Liaison to facilitate the participation of SBEs in Authority Design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contracts. The Outreach Liaison shall report directly to the Executive Director and shall manage and implement the SBE policy. The Outreach Liaison shall cooperate with Bidders seeking Authority contracts to assist them in identifying SBEs that are available to participate on the Project. The Authority may retain consultants, as needed, to assist in the SBE Outreach efforts.

4. Mechanisms for promoting Equal Opportunities in Contracting

a) <u>Authority's Outreach</u>: To the extent deemed appropriate and as may be required by regulation, the Authority shall include SBEs on solicitation mailing lists and solicit their participation in Design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contracts for which such businesses may be suited.

The Authority shall maintain a list of SBEs that have indicated an ability and willingness to participate in Authority projects and shall make the list available to Bidders seeking Design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contracts from the Authority for the purpose of encouraging participation from SBEs in Design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contracts.

The Authority may assist businesses, including SBEs, with learning how to do business with the Authority. The Authority may refer SBEs to available training programs that may improve the ability of SBEs to provide design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes services to the Authority.

b) Outreach Plans for Prime Bidders and Bidders: The Authority encourages all Bidders and Bidders seeking Design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contracts to actively pursue obtaining proposals and quotes from SBEs. The Authority shall require such Bidders and Bidders to submit an SBE Outreach Action Plan that outlines their efforts in actively pursuing such proposals and quotes.

<u>c)</u> <u>Monitoring and Collection of Information</u>: The Authority shall monitor utilization of SBEs on Design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contracts to determine the extent to which Bidders and Bidders provide equal employment and contracting opportunities to SBEs.

The Authority shall collect information from Bidders serving as prime Bidders on Design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contracts regarding their anticipated SBE participation on Authority Contracts. The information provided concerning anticipated SBE participation shall not become a mandatory part of the contract with the Authority. It shall be available to assist the Authority in tracking planned or estimated SBE utilization.

The Authority shall require Bidders serving as prime Bidders on Design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contracts to provide a Bidders' Opportunity List that includes all subconractorss or consultants who submitted proposals or quotes to the prime Bidder or Bidder for the Authority Contract. The Authority will also require the prime Bidders and Bidders to report actual payments, retainage, SBE status, and the work type of all SBE subconstractors.

The Authority shall require that information provided on SBEs be broken down into appropriate subcategories as established by the Authority.

<u>d)</u> <u>Progress Payments:</u> The Authority's Design and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contracts may contain such special provisions for progress payments as deemed reasonably necessary to encourage SBE participation.

e) <u>Sheltered Market Component</u>: The Executive Director may recommend to the Board, from time to time, that certain contracts be made available only to SBEs. Such designated projects and/or contracts or portions of contracts shall be based on economic feasibility. The Executive Director may waive or modify proposal bonds and performance and payment bonds under the Sheltered Market Component utilizing the same guidelines as subsection (f) below.

<u>f)</u> Waiver or Modification of Bonding: So long as consistent with, and within the limits established by State Law, the Executive Director may waive or modify proposal bonds and performance and payment bonds normally required or accept alternative forms of security to the extent reasonably necessary to encourage participation from SBEs An alternative form of security shall be in the form of cash, cashier's check, or irrevocable letter of credit, and shall be subject to the same conditions as the bond required for the contract. In reducing the level or types of proposal bonds and performance and payment bonds normally required of SBEs, the Executive Director should take precautions to ensure that the Authority and any third parties will be adequately protected.

5. <u>Procedures and Annual Report to the Authority Board</u> ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 55 of 154 The Executive Director shall develop procedures as necessary to implement these policies, and shall annually report to the Board concerning the awarding of design consultant and Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes contracts to SBEs during the preceding fiscal year. To the extent practicable, the report required by this Section should include the total dollar value of awards made in the fiscal year to SBEs.

6. <u>Compliance with Federal Regulations.</u>

Where a Design or Aesthetic Lighting for the Reversible Expressway Lanes Contract involves the expenditure of federal assistance or contract funds, the Executive Director or designated representative shall comply with any mandatory federal law and authorized regulations. The Executive Director shall modify the procedures as necessary to obtain federal approval, consistent with these policies, and shall bring recommendations for any required modification of these policies to the Board for consideration.

7. Contracts Controlled by Executive Director

In addition to those contracts subject to the SBE Policy as set forth above, it is the intent of the Authority to authorize and encourage the Executive Director to consider opportunities to involve SBEs on those contracts that do not require Board approval but are solely within the Executive Director's authority.

REVISED: <u>March 29, 2004</u>

TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

<u>/s/ J. Thomas Gibbs</u> J. Thomas Gibbs, Chairman

Approved as to Form and Legal Sufficiency:

<u>/s/ Steven A. Anderson</u> Steven A. Anderson, Esq. Ruden McClosky Smith Schuster & Russell, P.A. General Counsel

[END OF ATTACHMENT 1 – SBE POLICY]

ATTACHMENT 2 -

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS, COVERAGES and LIMITS

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 57 of 154

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS, COVERAGES and LIMITS for Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority

Consultants, Contractors and Vendors, hereinafter referred to collectively and individually as "Insured" conducting business with the Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway, "THEA" are required to maintain adequate insurance coverage and provide insurance certification to the THEA.

A. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

- 1) All insurance shall be from responsible insurance companies eligible to do business in the State of Florida and having an AM Best rating of A- or better and a financial size category of VII or better. Utilization of non-rated companies or companies with AM Best ratings lower than A- or a financial size category lower than VII may be approved on a case by case basis. If the insurer does not meet these requirements, the THEA retains the right to approve or disapprove the use of the insurer.
- 2) INSURED'S liability policies, other than the Workers' Compensation and Professional Liability, shall provide that the THEA, its officials, officers and employees and the FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, ("FDOT"), are additional named insureds as to the operations of the INSURED under this AGREEMENT.
- 3) INSURED'S liability policies, other than the Workers' Compensation and Professional Liability, shall provide the "Severability of Interest" provision (a/k/a "Separation of Insureds" provision).
- 4) The INSURED'S Certificate of Insurance(s) shall provide the THEA as an additional certificate holder for all policies issued.
- 5) The INSURED'S Certificate of Insurance(s) shall state the description of the operations, i.e., "Name of Agreement" between THEA and "Name of Insured" and shall state the Contract Number assigned for the AGREEMENT between THEA and the INSURED.
- 6) The INSURED shall deliver to the THEA, within ten (10) days from the receipt of a Notice of Award of this AGREEMENT, properly executed Certificate(s) of Insurance on insurance industry standard certificate of insurance form(s) (example: ACORD form) setting forth the insurance coverages and limits required herein. All of the required insurance coverages shall be issued as required by law and shall be endorsed, where necessary, to comply with the minimum requirements contained herein.
- 7) Except as otherwise specified in the AGREEMENT, the insurance will commence on or prior to the effective date of the AGREEMENT and will be maintained in force throughout the duration of the AGREEMENT. Three years' completed operations coverage may be required to be maintained on specific commercial general liability policies and/or professional liability policies effective on the date of substantial completion or the termination of the AGREEMENT, whichever is earlier.
- 8) Aggregate Policy Limits on policies required of INSURED shall apply exclusively for this AGREEMENT.
- 9) INSURED authorizes the THEA to verify its insurance information with its insurance agents, brokers, surety, and insurance carriers. At the THEA'S request, INSURED shall provide copies of the policies at no cost to the THEA, subject to redaction by the INSURED of any proprietary information.

- 10) All insurance coverages of the INSURED shall be primary to any insurance or selfinsurance programs carried by the THEA; and any THEA insurance or coverages shall not be contributory to INSURED'S insurance requirements in this AGREEMENT.
- 11) The insurance coverages and limits required of the INSURED under this AGREEMENT are designed to meet the minimum requirements of the THEA. They are not designed as a recommended insurance program for the INSURED. The INSURED alone shall be responsible for the sufficiency of its own insurance program.
- 12) All policies of insurance required herein will be specifically endorsed to require the insurer provide the THEA with thirty (30) days notice prior to any cancellation, intent not to renew any policy and/or any change that will reduce the insurance coverages required in this AGREEMENT, except for the application of the Aggregate Limits Provisions.

The endorsement will specify that such notice will be sent to:

Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway, (THEA) Contracts & Procurement Manager 1104 East Twiggs St, Suite 300 Tampa, FL 33602

- 13) The THEA accepts no responsibility for determining whether the INSURED'S insurance is in full compliance with the insurance required by the AGREEMENT. Neither the approval by the THEA nor the failure to disapprove the insurance furnished by the INSURED will relieve the INSURED of their full responsibility to provide the insurance required by this AGREEMENT.
- 14) If the INSURED fails to provide or maintain the insurance coverages required in this AGREEMENT, the THEA may terminate or suspend this AGREEMENT, or, at the THEA'S sole discretion, may obtain such coverages and invoice the INSURED and include a 15% administrative cost. If not paid within 45 days, the amount will be deducted from INSURED'S invoice. The decision of the THEA to purchase such insurance coverages shall in no way be construed as a waiver of its rights under this AGREEMENT.
- 15) INSURED shall fully comply with the insurance requirements of this AGREEMENT unless excused in writing by the THEA. Any deductible applicable to any claim shall be the responsibility of the INSURED.
- 16) Any liability insurance aggregate limits are to be confirmed in writing by the respective insurance company that to their knowledge, as of the date of the AGREEMENT, there are no pending claims or legal actions against the INSURED, which if resolved in favor of the claimant would impair the insurance company's ability to cover the minimum insurance limits stated herein.
- 17) Current Insurance Service Office (ISO) policies, forms, and endorsements or broader shall be used where applicable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the wording of all policies, forms, and endorsements must be acceptable to the THEA without restrictive endorsement.
- 18) The INSURED will not commence work, use or occupy THEA premises in connection with the AGREEMENT until the required insurance is in force, preliminary evidence of insurance acceptable to the THEA has been provided to the THEA and the THEA has

granted permission to the INSURED to commence work or use or occupy the premises in connection with the AGREEMENT.

- 19) Upon request, the INSURED shall promptly make available a certified, true and exact copy of the insurance policy and endorsements issued to the policy and any renewal thereof for the THEA'S review and inspection. In the event of cancellation or non-renewal of this insurance, the INSURED agrees to purchase the maximum "extended claims reporting period" permitted under the policy within the time allowed, unless replacement coverage is obtained with retroactive coverage applicable as of the date the INSURED services started under this AGREEMENT.
- 20) All insurance minimum coverage limits extend to any subcontractor and the Prime INSURED is responsible for all subcontractors.

B. INSURANCE COVERAGES and LIMITS:

For the term of this AGREEMENT the INSURED shall procure and maintain insurances of the types and limits specified herein.

 Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance - The minimum limits of Worker's Compensation/Employer's Liability Insurance (inclusive of any amount provided by an umbrella or excess policy) are:

Workers' Compensation	Florida Statutory Requirements
Employers' Liability	
Each Accident	\$500,000
Disease – Policy Limit	\$500,000
Disease - Each Employee	\$500,000

 Commercial General Liability Insurance - The minimum limits of Commercial General Liability Insurance (inclusive of any amount provided by an umbrella or excess policy) are:

General Aggregate Per Person	\$1,000,000 \$1,000,000
Each Occurrence	\$2,000,000
Personal Injury	\$1,000,000
Property Damage	\$1,000,000
Products & Completed Operations	\$1,000,000

The General Aggregate Limit must be specifically applicable to the AGREEMENT between THEA and the INSURED.

The Certificate must reflect whether the policy is "claims made" or "occurrence".

Products & Completed Operations coverage to be maintained for three (3) years after final completion of the work under this AGREEMENT.

3) **Business Automobile Liability Insurance -** The minimum limits of Business Automobile Liability Insurance (inclusive of any amount provided by an umbrella or excess policy) covering ownership, maintenance, use, loading and unloading of all its owned, non-owned, leased or hired vehicles are:

Bodily Injury	
Each Person	\$1,000,000
Each Accident	\$1,000,000
Property Damage	\$1,000,000
Bodily Injury & Property Damage Combined	\$1,000,000

4) Umbrella Liability Insurance or Excess Liability Insurance – Umbrella Liability Insurance or Excess Liability Insurance must provide the same coverages as required for the underlying Commercial General, Business Automobile and Employers' Liability Coverages with no gaps in continuity of coverages or limits.

Bodily Injury & Property Damage Combined	
Each Occurrence	\$2,000,000
Aggregate (specific to this AGREEMENT)	\$2,000,000
Aggregate (not specific to this AGREEMENT)	\$1,000,000

5) **Professional Liability Insurance, also known as "Errors and Omissions".** The minimum limits of Professional Liability Insurance covering all work of the INSURED without any exclusions unless approved in writing by the THEA are:

Professional Liability	
Each Claim	\$1,000,000
Aggregate	\$1,000,000

Any deductible applicable to any claim shall be the responsibility of the INSURED and shall not be greater than \$100,000 unless approved by the THEA in writing. This coverage shall be maintained by the INSURED for a period of not less than three (3) years from the date the INSURED has completed and the THEA has accepted the services under this AGREEMENT.

 Environmental Impairment (Pollution) Liability, <u>(if required)</u> – Environmental Impairment (Pollution) Liability insurance is required <u>only</u> if specifically stated in the ITB Instructions and Submittal Documents package.

If required, the minimum limits of Environmental Impairment (Pollution) Liability insurance coverage (inclusive of any amount provided by an umbrella or excess policy) for liability resulting from pollution or other environmental impairment in connection with operations performed by or on behalf of INSURED under this AGREEMENT or the use or occupancy of THEA premises by or on behalf of the INSURED are:

Each Occurrence	\$1,000,000
Annual Aggregate	\$1,000,000

[END OF ATTACHMENT 2 - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS, COVERAGES & LIMITS]

ATTACHMENT 3

PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 62 of 154

Return To: Contracts Manager Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority 1104 East Twiggs, Ste. #300 Tampa, Florida 33602

PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND

BY THIS BOND, We,	, a
corporation, as Principal, and	, a
corporation, as Surety, located at	are bound to the TAMPA
HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORI	TY, herein called Owner, in the sum of
\$, for payment of which we bind	ourselves, our heirs, personal
representatives, successors, and assigns, jointly and sev	verally.

THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if Principal:

- 1. Performs the contract dated _______, 20____ between Principal and Owner for construction of SELMON EXPRESSWAY 22nd STREET & 50th STREET RAMP CONCRETE RECONSTRUCTION & RESURFACING ~ Project O-02119 and EAST TOLL GRANTRY AREA & REL RESURFACING ~ Project O-02219 at the Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority, Contract No. O-02119 and O-02219, the contract being made a part of this bond by reference, at the times and in the manner prescribed in the contract; and
- 2. Promptly makes payment to all claimants, as defined in Section 233.05(1), Florida Statutes, supplying Principal with labor, materials, or supplies, used directly or indirectly by Principal in the prosecution of the work provided for in the contract; and
- 3. Pays Owner all loss, damages expenses, costs, and attorney's fees, including appellate proceedings, that Owner sustains because of a default by Principal under the contract; and
- 4. Performs the guarantee of all work and materials furnished under the Contract for the time specified in the Contract for construction and any applicable warranty period, then this bond is void; otherwise it remains in full force.

The Surety, for value received, agrees that any changes, extensions of time, or additions to the Terms of the Contract Documents, and neither compliance nor noncompliance with any formalities connected with the contract or the changes shall not affect Surety's obligation under this bond. Surety hereby waives notice of any such changes.

Any action instituted by a claimant under this bond for payment must be in accordance with the notice and time limitation provisions in Section 255.05(2), Florida Statutes.

Any changes in or under the contract documents and compliance or noncompliance with any formalities connected with the contract or the changes does not affect Surety's obligation under this bond.

DATED ON:	, 20
Name of Principal (Contractor):	Name of Surety:
By:	By:Attorney in Fact
Name:	Name:
Title:	
Address:	Address:
Telephone No	Telephone No
Fax No.	Fax No.
STATE OF	ttorney" from Surety)
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT , 20 by known to me orhas produced	was acknowledged before me this day of, who is personally
My Commission Expires:	Notary Public
	(Printed Name of Notary)
This form complies with Section 255.05, Florida Statutes	(Serial Number, if any)

CERTIFICATE AND AFFIDAVIT FOR SURETY BOND INSURER

TO:	TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

RE: SELMON EXPRESSWAY 22nd STREET & 50th STREET RAMP CONCRETE RECONSTRUCTION & RESURFACING ~ Project O-02119 and

EAST TOLL GRANTRY AREA & REL RESURFACING ~ Project O-02219

PROPOSER: Name:				
Address:				
Telephone:				
AMOUNT OF BOND:				
SURETY BOND INSU Name: Address:				
Telephone:				
Before me, the undersigned day of201. 1. Is licensed to do busine 2. Holds a certificate of a 3. Has twice the minimur Code at the time the ir 4. Is otherwise in compland, 5. Holds a currently valid Department of the Tre United States Code.	who hereby certifie ess in the State of Flo uthority authorizing it to m surplus and capital nvitation to bid is issue iance with the provis certificate of authorit easury under Section s Signature of C	es that, the insurer n rida; to write surety bonds required by the Flor ed; ions of the Florida y issued by the Unite	amed above: in Florida; ida Insurance Insurance Code; ed States 31 of the	on this
	:			
THE FOREGOING IN me thisday of is personally known to m identification and did take an [Notary, check appropriate bl	ne orhas produ oath.	_, 20by ced		, who as
number.]				
Notary Public My Commission Expires:		Printed Name of No	otary	
· · · · · ·		(Serial Number, if a	iny)	
[END OF ATTA	CHMENT 4 – PUB	LIC CONSTRUCT	ION BOND]	
	ITB O-02119 and O-0221	9 ~ Page 65 of 154		

<u>ATTACHMENT 4 –</u> <u>GENERAL PROVISIONS</u>

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- 1. Definitions and Terms
- 2. Standard Specifications and Codes
- 3. Public Convenience and Safety
- 4. Barricades, Warning Lights and Signal Lights
- 5. Sanitary Provisions
- 6. Cleaning Up
- 7. Dust Prevention and Air Pollution Control
- 8. Preservation and Restoration of Property
- 9. Permits, Licenses and Impact Fees
- 10. Laws to be Observed
- 11. Affirmative Action/Equal Employment Opportunity
- 12. No Waiver of Legal Rights
- 13. Patented Devices, Materials and Processes
- 14. Contractor Review and Constructability of the Work
- 15. Work by Others
- 16. Authority of Engineer
- 17. Authority and Duties of Authority Inspectors
- 18. Inspection
- 19. Authority and Duties of Authority Project Manager
- 20. Authority as Referee
- 21. Contractor's Project Responsibilities
- 22. Limitations of Operations
- 23. Plans and Specifications
- 24. Conformity with Plans and Allowable Deviations
- 25. Coordination of Plans and Specifications
- 26. Plans
- 27. Shop Drawings
- 28. Surveys, Bench Marks and Reference Points
- 29. Construction Stakes, Lines and Grades, Quantity Surveys
- 30. Responsibility for Insurance and Indemnification
- 31. Insurance Requirements
- 32. Bond Requirements
- 33. Construction Safety and Property Damage
- 34. Contractor's Responsibility for the Work
- 35. Schedule of Value
- 36. Source of Supply and Quality Requirements
- 37. Samples
- 38. Time for commencement and Completion
- 39. Excusable Delay: compensable: Non-compensable
- 40. Weather Delays
- 41. Other Delays to Contract Completion
- 42. Prosecution of the Work and Contractor Duties
- 43. The Schedules
- 44. Access to Site
- 45. Site Investigation, utilities Locations and Representation
- 46. Electricity, Telephone, Water and Sewer Service

- 47. Character of Workmen and Equipment
- 48. Subletting of Assigning of Contract
- 49. Extra Work
- 50. Change Orders
- 51. Value of Change Order Work and Force Account Work
- 52. Additional work on Other Property of Authority
- 53. Unsatisfactory Progress and Termination of Contract
- 54. Failure to Complete the Work on Time
- 55. Beneficial Occupancy
- 56. Final Inspection
- 57. Measurement of quantities
- 58. Increased or Decreased Quantities
- 59. Termination of Contractor's Responsibility and Warranty
- 60. Termination for Convenience
- 61. Claims for Adjustment and Disputes
- 62. Scope of Payment
- 63. Partial (Progress) Payments
- 64. Direct Purchase of Job Related Materials
- 65. Acceptance and Final Payment
- 66. Alternate Items
- 67. Trenching
- 68. Miscellaneous Provisions
- 69. Contractor's Record Retention
- 70. The Construction Schedule

APPENDIX:

FORM - Engineers Final Inspection and Notice of Substantial Completion

FORM - Certificate of Contract Completion and Contractor's Affidavit FORM - WAGES Schedule A

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Note: Although included in the General Provisions each section may not specifically apply to this contract but in no way relieves CONTRACTOR of responsibility of its requirements.

- 1. **DEFINITIONS AND TERMS**: To avoid undue repetition, whenever the following terms are used (or pronouns used in place of them) in these Contract Documents or any other documents forming a part of the Contract, the intent and meaning of such terms shall be interpreted as follows:
- **1.01.** <u>Act of God also called Force Majeure:</u> An act of God is construed to mean an earthquake, flood, cyclone, or other cataclysmic phenomenon of nature beyond the power of CONTRACTOR to foresee or to make preparation in defense.
- **1.02.** <u>Addenda</u>: Written interpretations or revisions of any of the Bidding Documents issued by AUTHORITY.
- **1.03.** <u>Application for Payment</u>: A notarized, written request, personally signed by CONTRACTOR or his authorized representative, submitted to AUTHORITY, on the dates as prescribed herein, prepared on AIA Document G702 or AUTHORITY-approved similar format and including AIA Document G703 Continuation Sheet or AUTHORITY-approved similar format, that describes CONTRACTOR'S Schedule of Values, quantity(ies) and value of work completed to date, previous total requested for payment and current requested payment, approved material(s) stored, and amount of retainage; and delivered to AUTHORITY as prescribed herein these Contract Documents.

1.04. As Built Drawings:

- **1.04.01.** <u>On Site As Built Drawings</u>: A record of the constructed work, maintained on site at all times, with daily "red line" entries by CONTRACTOR indicating all work completed and materials installed and horizontal and vertical locations of all existing underground systems and structures encountered during the progress of The Work.
- **1.04.02.** <u>Record Drawings</u>: Drawings submitted by CONTRACTOR precedent to Final Payment, (a) as a certified document copy (Site Survey), prepared and certified by a licensed Florida Surveyor and Mapper pursuant to Chapter 61G17-6 Florida Administrative Code, and (b) as electronic file format, AutoCad ver. 2000 or later, providing vertical and horizontal control for all accessible elements of the work, including but not limited to, invert and rim elevations of all drainage structures, pavement boundary locations and elevations, visible structures and appurtenance locations and elevations, surface transition elevations between existing facilities and constructed elements.
- **1.05.** <u>Authority</u>: The Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority.
- **1.06.** <u>Bid Bond</u>: The security instrument designated in the Contract Documents and submitted by the Bidder as guaranty that the Bidder will enter into a Contract with AUTHORITY for the construction of The Work if the Contract is awarded to him.
- **1.07.** <u>Bidder</u>: The Bidder is any person, firm or corporation submitting a Proposal for The Work contemplated, acting directly or through a duly authorized representative.

- **1.08. Board**: The Governing body of the AUTHORITY.
- **1.09.** <u>Change Order</u>: An order signed by CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY; (1) changing the scope of the work or, (2) changing the time for performance or (3) changing the contract price.
- 1.10. <u>Contract Documents</u>: Consist of Advertisement for Bids, Scope of Work, Instructions to Bidder, Bid Bond, Public Construction Bond, Certificate and Affidavit for Surety Bond Insurer, Contract, General Provisions, Supplemental General Provisions, Special Provisions & Technical Specifications, Proposal Form, Public Entity Crimes Statement, SBE Outreach Plan (consisting of Bidder's Opportunity List, Anticipated SBE Participation Statement and SBE Outreach Action Plan), Plans when listed in Table in Contents, Addenda pertaining to The Work or material thereof and supplements thereto (when issued) and signed Change Orders, Task Orders and Supplemental Agreements (when issued). The entire assembly of documents may also be referred to as the "Project Manual."
- **1.11.** <u>Contract Time also called Contract Duration:</u> The number of calendar days or the designated completion date(s) so stated in the Contract to: (1) achieve Substantial Completion of The Work, and (2) complete all of The Work so that it is ready for the Final Payment, as evidenced by completion of the previously incomplete miscellaneous works, such incomplete miscellaneous works so stated in writing by AUTHORITY to CONTRACTOR; said completion of all such previously incomplete miscellaneous works to result in written recommendation of Final Payment by AUTHORITY.
- **1.12.** <u>Contractor</u>: The successful bidder, whether an individual, partnership, corporation or any combination thereof, undertaking The Work described by the Contract Documents. Also referred to as Design/Builder.
- **1.13.** <u>Critical Path Method commonly called "CPM"</u>: As utilized for construction project planning and management in these Contract Documents, CPM is a resource loaded, time-phased network diagram of all operations and activities required for the Total Work to be completed and representing the complete cost of The Work, including but not limited to: resource loading reports, computerized network analysis reports, and a complete description of the relationships and sequences of all activities that permits the determination of the "Critical Path"; said "Critical Path" allows for completion of The Total Work within a specified number of calendar days or on a prescribed date.
- **1.14. Days:** A calendar day, when used in the Contract Documents, measured from midnight of the first day to the next midnight; Saturdays, Sundays and all holidays included.
- **1.15.** <u>Engineer</u>: Authorized representative of Owner employed by AUTHORITY and/or a designated representative of the Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority who is in responsible charge for administering and overseeing the design and construction contracts for the AUTHORITY. The Engineer is sometimes referred to as the "AUTHORITY Engineer" or "AUTHORITY."

- **1.16.** <u>Executive Director</u>: The principal AUTHORITY staff member charged by AUTHORITY Board of Commissioners with executing its policies and administering the day-to-day affairs of AUTHORITY.
- **1.17.** <u>Extra Work</u>: Unforeseen work, in addition to The Work described in the Contract Documents.
- **1.18.** <u>General Provisions</u>: General Provisions are those clauses of the Specifications which set forth general directions, provisions and requirements common to all portions of a Project.
- **1.19. Inspector:** An authorized representative of AUTHORITY assigned to make a detailed inspection of any or all portions of The Work, or materials thereof.
- **1.20.** <u>National Emergency</u>: National Emergency is defined as a state of affairs requiring the imposing of restrictive orders, controls, priorities, or similar measures, by the Federal or State governments which would restrict or otherwise control or allocate the supply of labor or the furnishing of materials, tools, and equipment during the periods such labor, materials, tools and equipment are required, as shown on the approved progress schedule, for the completion of The Work.
- **1.21.** <u>Notice:</u> A written notification. Notice may be served to CONTRACTOR'S Superintendent at the project site or to CONTRACTOR at the address listed on the Contract, and to AUTHORITY at the address prescribed in the Contract Documents, whether delivered by hand, telegram, tele-fax, email or U.S. Mail.
- **1.22.** <u>Notice of Award</u>: A written notice issued by AUTHORITY to the responsible low bidder stating that upon compliance by said low bidder with the precedent conditions enumerated in the Contract Documents, and within the time specified, an agreement between said Bidder and AUTHORITY shall be executed and a Notice to Proceed for The Work will be issued by AUTHORITY.
- **1.23.** <u>Notice to Proceed</u>: Written notice by AUTHORITY to CONTRACTOR setting forth the earliest date on which CONTRACTOR shall begin construction and prescribing the first day of contract duration.
- **1.24.** <u>**Owner**</u>: The Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority.
- **1.25.** <u>Plans</u>: The Plans are the official Plans, profiles, typical cross-sections, general crosssections, working drawings and supplemental drawings, or exact reproductions thereof, approved by AUTHORITY, which show the location, character, dimensions and details of The Work to be done, and which are to be considered as a part of the Contract Documents, supplementary to the Specifications. Also referred to as "drawings."
- **1.26.** <u>Project Manager (P.M.):</u> An authorized representative of Owner employed by AUTHORITY, familiar with the design, site conditions, technical and contractual requirements of the Contract Documents and assigned to manage and administer the project for AUTHORITY that is the subject of the Contract Documents.
- **1.27.** <u>Project Manual</u>: The Project Manual is the collection of documents pertaining to the proposed work and may contain the drawings.
- **1.28.** <u>Proposal</u>: The Proposal is the offer of the Bidder to provide The Work, when made out and submitted on the prescribed Proposal Form, properly signed and guaranteed and delivered as further described herein.

- **1.29. Proposal Form**: The Proposal Form is the approved form on which AUTHORITY requires formal bids to be prepared and submitted for The Work.
- **1.30.** Public Construction Bond. (Guarantee of Faithful Performance. Payment. Workmanship and Successful Operations): A security instrument, provided by CONTRACTOR, in accordance with Section 255.05, <u>Florida Statutes</u>, and meeting the Standards specified herein, on forms provided by AUTHORITY, in the amount not less than the total bid price, securing the performance of and payment for The Work described by the Contract Documents.
- **1.31.** <u>Shop Drawings:</u> Drawings, diagrams, illustrations, instructions and schedules, independently prepared and submitted by CONTRACTOR to AUTHORITY, to provide detailed and specific information as required by the Contract Documents.

1.32. Special Provisions and Technical Specifications:

- **1.32.01.** The Special Provisions are those clauses which set forth guidance for matters relating specifically to The Work of this Contract which are not covered in the Technical Specifications.
- **1.32.02.** Technical Specifications are those clauses of the Specifications which set forth specific directions, provisions and requirements pertaining to the method and manner of performance of The Work of this Contract and to the qualities of work and materials to be furnished for The Work of this Contract.
- **1.33.** <u>Specifications</u>: The Specifications are the directions, provisions, and requirements for The Work and are presented in two parts: (1.) General Provisions and Supplementary General Provisions (2.) Special Provisions and Technical Specifications.
- **1.34.** <u>Subcontractor</u>: The Subcontractor is any person, firm or corporation undertaking any part of the obligations of CONTRACTOR, who, prior to such undertaking receives the approval and written consent of AUTHORITY.
- **1.35.** <u>Submittals:</u> All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, samples, test results, and other data, specifically prepared by a CONTRACTOR, Subcontractor, manufacturer, fabricator, supplier or distributor and identified with the name of CONTRACTOR, Subcontractor, manufacturer, fabricator, supplier or distributor, including a description of the submittal on the title of said submittal, that describes a portion of The Work or a requirement of these Contract Documents. Copies of the contract drawings may not be modified for required submittals except with written approval from AUTHORITY.
- **1.36.** <u>Substantial Completion:</u> The status of completion of The Work or an identified portion thereof, which, in the opinion of AUTHORITY, as evidenced by a definitive Certificate of Substantial Completion, is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents, to permit AUTHORITY occupancy and use of The Work for which it is intended.
- **1.37.** <u>Substitution</u>: A product, service, component, system or designed installation procedure which is not equal to that specified, but is proposed by CONTRACTOR in lieu of that which is specified. Said substitution must be requested by CONTRACTOR and approved in writing at the sole discretion of AUTHORITY, and any cost savings shall be provided to AUTHORITY as an executed Change Order.
- **1.38.** <u>Superintendent</u>: The Superintendent is the authorized executive representative of CONTRACTOR, present on The Work at all times during its progress, authorized to

receive and fulfill instructions from AUTHORITY and capable of superintending The Work efficiently.

- **1.39.** <u>Supplemental Agreements</u>: Supplemental Agreements are written agreements executed by CONTRACTOR and by AUTHORITY covering alterations to the project or the character of The Work involving a substantial change in the nature of design or in the type of construction which materially increases or decreases the cost of The Work.
- **1.40.** Supplemental General Provisions: Supplemental General Provisions, when issued, amend or supplement the General Provisions and other provisions of the Contract Documents as described herein. All provisions which are not so amended or supplemented remain in full force and effect
- **1.41.** <u>Surety</u>: The Surety is the entity (corporate body or individual(s) which or who is bound with and for CONTRACTOR as Guarantor for acceptable performance of the Contract and for the completion of The Work.
- **1.42.** <u>**Task Order**</u>: A written order to CONTRACTOR signed by AUTHORITY, providing specific direction regarding The Work or a portion thereof.
- **1.43.** <u>The Work</u>: The Work consists of furnishing all plant, equipment, tools, materials, supplies, fees, permits, manufactured articles, transportation and services, all fuel and operating expenses, electricity, water, sewer, communication systems, office facilities, sanitary facilities and a safe and secure environment for individuals and property and for the performance of all labor, work or other operations required for the fulfillment of the Agreement, as further described herein.

2. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND CODES

- 2.01. Codes are referred to for minimum design criteria, and no reductions of design requirements will be permitted even if allowed by applicable codes. Codes are applicable for sections of these Contract Documents only when specifically referenced herein these Contract Documents. Codes are not intended to be and **should not be interpreted as inclusive of all sections of these Contract Documents.** Reference made hereinafter to Standard Specifications and Codes refer to current publication editions, including addenda and errata, if any, of the following organizations:
 - 2.01.01 American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO)
 - 2.01.02 American Concrete Institute (ACI)
 - 2.01.03 American Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers (AIEEE)
 - 2.01.04 American Institute of Steel Construction (AISC)
 - 2.01.05 American Refrigeration Institute (ARI)
 - 2.01.06 American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE)
 - 2.01.07 American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air 2.01.08 Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE)
 - 2.01.08 American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME)
 - 2.01.09 American Society for Testing Materials (ASTM)
 - 2.01.10 American Standards Association (ASA)
 - 2.01.11 American Water Works Association (AWWA)
 - 2.01.12 American Welding Society (AWS)
 - 2.01.13 Building Code of the City of Tampa, Florida or Hillsborough County, Florida as applicable
 - 2.01.14 Building Code, Florida 2001

- 2.01.15 Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction (edition in effect at Notice to Proceed)
- 2.01.16 Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Design Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction (edition in effect at Notice to Proceed)
- 2.01.17 Metal Building Manufacturers Association (MBMA)
- 2.01.18 National Board of Fire Underwriters (NBFU)
- 2.01.19 National Electric Code (NEC)
- 2.01.20 National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA)
- 2.01.21 National Plumbing Code
- 2.01.22 Pre-stressed Concrete Institute (PCI)
- 2.01.23 Steel Structures Painting Council Specification (SSPC)
- 2.01.24 Southern Pine Manual (SPM)

3. <u>PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY</u>

- **3.01.** CONTRACTOR shall provide for the safety and convenience of the general public and the residents along the project, to include the protection of persons and property.
- **3.02.** CONTRACTOR shall, at all times, conduct his work so as to insure the least possible obstruction to traffic.
- **3.03.** CONTRACTOR shall take all precautions to reduce noxious dusts, vapors and fumes resulting from performance of The Work.
- **3.04.** CONTRACTOR shall promptly remove dirt, mud, silt, rock, gravel and other debris from the public roads that are caused by access and egress of vehicles from the project site onto the public roads.
- **3.05.** Vehicular And Pedestrian Traffic: CONTRACTOR shall not block any public street nor use any part hereof for storage of materials.
- **3.06.** Where affected by his work, vehicular and pedestrian traffic shall always be accommodated and maintained in accordance with any specific local requirements, or in the absence of any such requirements, in accordance with the instructions of AUTHORITY. CONTRACTOR shall submit a plan for Maintenance of Traffic to AUTHORITY for approval, as herein further described.
- **3.07.** Accident Prevention: It shall be the sole responsibility of CONTRACTOR to provide and maintain warning signals and signs, lights, signal devices, flagmen and barricades appropriately located so as to give proper and unmistakable warning of the hazards of entry onto the land, structures, or equipment involved under the Contract. CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for providing instruction to employees and visitors to the site, describing the conditions that may cause accidents or injury to persons or property, and shall maintain and enforce the conduct of each and every person that enters the site to ensure the safety of the entire site.
- **3.08.** Site Personnel and Visitors: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all procedures prescribed by AUTHORITY for identification of all CONTRACTOR and Subcontractor employees and the control of persons visiting the job site.
- **3.09.** CONTRACTOR shall display on all business or commercial vehicles and equipment entering and leaving the site of The Work, the legal name of the individual, firm or corporation that is the owner of said commercial vehicles and equipment.

- **3.10.** CONTRACTOR shall designate, with approval of AUTHORITY, a parking area for privately-owned vehicles of CONTRACTOR and Subcontractor employees, such privately-owned vehicles to have limited access and egress to the construction site daily.
- **3.11.** CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the safety of all visitors to the site and shall establish and implement all necessary site regulations to ensure the safety of said site persons.
- **3.12.** Fire Prevention: CONTRACTOR shall comply with the regulations of the Fire Marshal and Fire Department having jurisdiction at the project site for the storage, handling and protection of all inflammable or combustible liquids and materials used for the work.
- **3.13.** CONTRACTOR shall locate all existing fire hydrants at the project and adjacent sites and shall avoid placing obstructions that prevent immediate access and use of said fire hydrants.

4. BARRICADES, WARNING LIGHTS AND SIGNAL LIGHTS:

- **4.01.** CONTRACTOR shall provide all necessary barricades, danger and warning lights, signs, watchmen and flagmen, necessary to protect construction workers, site visitors, the general public and all of The Work in progress, all such warning devices to be described in CONTRACTOR'S approved Maintenance of Traffic plan.
- **4.02.** CONTRACTOR shall use visual and audible warning devices as required to provide a safe project site environment. CONTRACTOR shall promptly remove all such safety devices installed at the project site, upon completion of The Work.

5. <u>SANITARY PROVISIONS</u>:

5.01. CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain in a neat, sanitary condition, such accommodations for the use of his employees and AUTHORITY representatives and all other site visitors as may be necessary to comply with the requirements and regulations of the Hillsborough County/State of Florida Environmental Health Department or of other authorities having jurisdiction. CONTRACTOR shall keep the construction area free of litter and debris and shall commit no public nuisance.

6. <u>CLEANING UP</u>:

- **6.01.** CONTRACTOR shall at all times keep the construction area clear of waste materials and rubbish.
- **6.02.** CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain waste and debris containers, adequate to allow for disposal of litter and debris. In the event that CONTRACTOR fails to keep waste materials, litter and debris from causing unsightly and nuisance conditions at the project site, AUTHORITY shall provide notice to CONTRACTOR, in writing, and after seven days of receipt of said letter, AUTHORITY shall have said waste materials, litter and debris removed from the site and taken to a proper disposal site. AUTHORITY shall charge the cost of the removal and proper disposal of such waste materials, litter and debris against monies due to CONTRACTOR.
- **6.03.** Open burning of waste materials is not permitted. AUTHORITY may, at its sole option, provide an area to deposit inorganic materials, as further described herein.
- **6.04.** CONTRACTOR shall constantly maintain the cleanliness of the project site so as to prevent debris, including, but not limited to, mud and other soils or dust and debris from the project site, from collecting on roadways and sidewalks.

7. <u>DUST PREVENTION AND AIR POLLUTION CONTROL</u>:

- **7.01.** CONTRACTOR shall take all precautions to minimize the emission of hazardous dust, smoke and vapor attributed to his operations.
- **7.02.** CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all local, State and Federal regulations regarding air quality.
- **7.03.** CONTRACTOR shall maintain clean roadways at the construction site where vehicles and equipment enter the road from the project site.

8. **PRESERVATION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY**:

- **8.01.** CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the preservation of all public and private property, affected by operations within his control, and shall take the precautions necessary to prevent damage or injury thereto.
- **8.02.** CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the damage or destruction of property of any character resulting from neglect, misconduct or non-execution of The Work, or caused by defective work or the use of unsatisfactory materials.
- **8.03.** CONTRACTOR'S responsibility for the preservation of all property shall continue until The Work is completed or terminated as further described herein these Contract Documents.
- **8.04.** Whenever public or private property is damaged or destroyed as a result of CONTRACTOR'S neglect, misconduct or non-execution of The Work, such property shall be restored by CONTRACTOR and at CONTRACTOR'S expense, to a condition equal to that existing before such damage or injury was done, by repairing, rebuilding, or otherwise restoring same, or he shall make good such damage or injury in an acceptable manner.
- **8.05.** AUTHORITY, at its sole discretion, may withhold monies from CONTRACTOR'S monthly progress payments, in an amount equal to twice the Owner-reported value of damaged items pending repair or replacement of said items.
- **8.06.** In the event such damages occur to private property, CONTRACTOR shall report such damages, in writing, by end of the work day, to AUTHORITY.
- **8.07.** Protection of Surveying Monuments: CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with AUTHORITY in protecting and preserving cornerstones, monuments and land markers that are within the limits of The Work or affected by construction operations for The Work.
- **8.08.** The cost to AUTHORITY for re-determination of location, repair and replacement of any cornerstone, monument or land marker damaged, destroyed or made inaccessible during the progress of The Work shall be deducted from monies due CONTRACTOR.

9. PERMITS, LICENSES AND IMPACT FEES

9.01. All permits and impact fees required by jurisdictional agency laws, rules, codes and regulations necessary for the prosecution of The Work undertaken by CONTRACTOR, and required recording and filing fees, pursuant to prescribed directions from these Contract Documents, shall be secured and paid for by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall be reimbursed the cost from the Proposal Item "Permit Allowance" upon presentation of a paid receipt. No markup or any other charge by CONTRACTOR will be reimbursed. It is CONTRACTOR's responsibility to have and maintain appropriate

business and occupational licenses and Certificate(s) of Competency for the work to be performed, valid for the duration of The Work and valid for the jurisdiction in which The Work is to be performed.

- **9.02.** CONTRACTOR shall assume all the obligations and shall comply with all of the requirements and provisions of all permit(s) which are applicable to The Work of the Contract, and pay all costs in connection therewith, including, but not necessarily limited to, the cost of all services performed by the regulatory agency, such as for inspections and surveys for dredging and disposal operations, including dumping inspections or fees, at or away from the site.
- **9.03.** Impact fees levied by any agency having jurisdiction shall be paid by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall be reimbursed only the actual amount of the impact fee levied as evidenced by an invoice or other acceptable documentation issued by the agency levying such impact fees. Reimbursement to CONTRACTOR in no event shall include profit, overhead or other expenses of CONTRACTOR.

10. LAWS TO BE OBSERVED

- **10.01.** CONTRACTOR warrants that he is familiar with and agrees at all times to comply with the provisions of all Federal and State laws and ordinances and regulations of political subdivisions of the State of Florida, Workmen's Compensation Laws and ordinance(s) and regulations of any manner affecting the conduct of The Work; and he shall indemnify and save harmless AUTHORITY, its successors, and all its officers, agents and employees against any claims arising from the violation of any such law, ordinance of regulation, either by CONTRACTOR or his agents, servants or employees, or the negligence of such CONTRACTOR, agent, servant or employee as further described herein.
- **10.02.** CONTRACTOR shall pay all taxes under the Federal Social Security Act, or assume responsibility of ascertaining that they have been paid by all Subcontractors including second tier Subcontractors, dealers, agents or manufacturers.

11. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

11.01. The Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority is an equal opportunity employer and encourages the firms and CONTRACTOR'S from which it procures goods and services to likewise follow these principles. CONTRACTOR shall comply with AUTHORITY Equal Employment Opportunity and Small Business Enterprise (SBE) policies as further defined herein these Contract Documents.

12. NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS

12.01. Neither the inspection by AUTHORITY; nor by any of his duly authorized agents, nor any order, measurements, or certificate by AUTHORITY, or said agents, nor any order by AUTHORITY for the payments of money, nor any payment for, nor acceptance of any work by AUTHORITY, nor any extension of time, nor any possession taken by AUTHORITY shall operate as a waiver of any provision of this Contract, or of any power herein reserved to AUTHORITY, or any right to damages herein provided; nor shall any waiver of any breach of these Contract Documents be held to be a waiver of any other breach and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of these Contract Documents.

13. PATENTED DEVICES, MATERIALS AND PROCESSES

13.01. It is mutually understood and agreed that without exception, the bid prices are to include all royalties and costs arising from patents, trademarks, and copyrights in any way involved in The Work. It is the intent that whenever CONTRACTOR is required or desires to use any design, device, material or process covered by letters patent or copyright, the right for such use shall be provided for by suitable agreement with the patentee, owner or assignee and a copy of this agreement is made or filed with AUTHORITY; however, whether or not such agreement is made or filed as herein provided the Bidder and the Surety in all cases shall indemnify and save harmless AUTHORITY and its successors, and all its officers, agents, and employees from any and all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any such patented design, device, material, or process, to be performed under the Contract, and shall indemnify AUTHORITY for any costs, expenses, and damages arising or accruing in favor of the holder of such patent, trademark or copyright by reasons of any such infringement at any time after the award of the Contract in all Proposals and projects where patented devices, materials, processes, or details are specified or involved.

14. CONTRACTOR REVIEW AND CONSTRUCTIBLITY OF THE WORK

- **14.01.** CONTRACTOR affirms that prior to submitting a Proposal with the costs to complete The Work that CONTRACTOR has made a careful review of these Contract Documents, including Performance Specifications and Drawings and has made a thorough investigation of the project site.
- **14.02.** CONTRACTOR agrees to submit to AUTHORITY such comments as may be appropriate concerning construction feasibility and practicality. CONTRACTOR shall call to the attention of AUTHORITY any defects discovered in the design, drawings, and specifications or other documents. At completion of CONTRACTOR'S review as prescribed herein, CONTRACTOR warrants, without assuming any architectural or engineering responsibility, that the plans and specifications are consistent, practical, feasible, and constructible.
- **14.03.** Time is of the essence in the performance of this Contract. CONTRACTOR warrants by submitting a properly executed Proposal Form that it is reasonable to construct The Work as described herein these Contract Documents within the prescribed construction time.
- **14.04.** Value Engineering: CONTRACTOR agrees to make recommendations with respect to the selection of systems and materials, and cost-reducing alternatives, including assistance to AUTHORITY in evaluating alternative comparisons versus long-term effects. CONTRACTOR shall furnish pertinent information as to the availability of materials and labor that will be required.

15. WORK BY OTHERS

- **15.01.** AUTHORITY may perform additional work related to the project by himself or he may let other direct contracts therefore. CONTRACTOR shall allow such other contractors (or AUTHORITY) reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of their materials, etc., and execution of their work; and shall properly connect and coordinate his work with theirs.
- **15.02.** If any part of CONTRACTOR'S work depends, for proper execution or results, upon the work of any other contractor (or AUTHORITY), CONTRACTOR shall inspect and

promptly report to AUTHORITY any defects in such work that may render it unsuitable for such proper execution and results.

- **15.03.** CONTRACTOR'S failure to so inspect and report to AUTHORITY shall constitute an acceptance of the other contractor's work as fit and proper for the reception of his work except as to defects which may develop in the other contractor's work after the execution of his own work.
- **15.04.** Prior to the release of these Contract Documents for Bidders bid preparation, AUTHORITY may establish interim milestone completion dates for the purpose of coordinating The Work between the various contractors or various portions of The Work. AUTHORITY shall utilize such milestone dates to ensure the availability of the Total Completed Work at an AUTHORITY-selected date. CONTRACTOR shall plan and schedule the completion of The Work in phases as required to meet such interim milestone completions dates, the same as for final project completion.

16. <u>AUTHORITY OF ENGINEER</u>

- **16.01.** ENGINEER shall decide any and all questions which may arise as to the quality or acceptability of materials furnished and work performed and as to the manner of performance, and shall decide all questions which may arise as to the interpretation of the Plans and Specifications and all questions as to the acceptable fulfillment of the Contract on the part of CONTRACTOR, and as to compensation.
- **16.02.** ENGINEER and AUTHORITY agents shall have the right to make periodic visits to the site and inspections of all completed work(s) and to review the On-Site As-Built Drawings upon request.
- **16.03.** ENGINEER shall have authority to reject or disapprove work that is defective and may, at the ENGINEER'S sole option, withhold payment to CONTRACTOR for such defective work.
- **16.04.** ENGINEER'S decisions shall be final. ENGINEER shall be the executive authority to enforce and provide remedy for such decisions and orders that CONTRACTOR fails to promptly execute.
- **16.05.** All applications for payment shall be subject to approval by the ENGINEER.
- **16.06.** Any approval by ENGINEER of any materials, workmanship, plant, equipment, drawings program, methods or procedure, or of any other act or thing done or furnished by CONTRACTOR, or proposed by CONTRACTOR to be done or furnished, in or in connection with the performance of The Work shall be construed merely to mean that at the time ENGINEER knows of no good reason for objecting thereto; and no such approval shall release CONTRACTOR from full responsibility for the accurate and complete performance of The Work in accordance with the Plans and Specifications or from any duty, obligation or liability imposed upon CONTRACTOR by the provisions of the Contract.

17. AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF AUTHORITY INSPECTORS

17.01. INSPECTORS, employed by AUTHORITY will be authorized to inspect all work done and all material furnished. Such inspection shall extend to all or any part of The Work and to the preparation, fabrication or manufacture of the materials to be used. INSPECTOR shall have access to all parts of The Work and to off-site Fabrication or Manufacturing Shops as required.

- **17.02.** INSPECTOR shall not be authorized to revoke, alter or waive any requirements of the Specifications or Plans.
- **17.03.** INSPECTOR shall be authorized to call the attention of CONTRACTOR to any failure of The Work or materials to conform to the Specifications and Contract.
- **17.04.** INSPECTOR shall document and advise CONTRACTOR of work and materials which (1.) do not meet specification requirements or (2.) do not readily display materials(s) information describing specification parameters.
- **17.05.** INSPECTOR shall immediately receive the results of all construction materials testing, and shall be given the results of field-conducted tests the same day such tests are conducted.

18. INSPECTION

- **18.01.** All materials and each part or detail of The Work shall be subject at all times to inspection by ENGINEER or AUTHORITY representatives and CONTRACTOR shall furnish every facility for making such inspections.
- **18.02.** ENGINEER and AUTHORITY representatives shall be provided all opportunity (ies) necessary to determine that all materials furnished and all work performed conforms to the requirements of the Specifications and Plans.
- **18.03.** ENGINEER and AUTHORITY representatives shall be furnished with such information and assistance by CONTRACTOR as is required to make a complete and detailed inspection, including means of ready access to all parts of the work.
- **18.04.** The inspection by ENGINEER or by any AUTHORITY agent(s) shall not construed to be an agreement of modification of the terms of these Contract Documents. It is understood that inspection by ENGINEER or AUTHORITY representative(s) does not relieve CONTRACTOR of any responsibility for complying with The Work as prescribed in these Contract Document.

19. AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF AUTHORITY PROJECT MANAGER

- **19.01.** ENGINEER may designate an individual as PROJECT MANAGER, employed by ENGINEER and assigned to manage and administer the project that is the subject of these Contract Documents.
- **19.02.** PROJECT MANAGER shall communicate with CONTRACTOR all such matters as necessary to complete The Work in compliance with these Contract Documents.
- **19.03.** PROJECT MANAGER shall maintain records for ENGINEER and AUTHORITY and shall deliver and receive written and verbal communication for ENGINEER AND AUTHORITY.
- **19.04.** PROJECT MANAGER shall receive submittals and other correspondence from CONTRACTOR and shall assist ENGINEER and AUTHORITY with the required response for such submittals.
- **19.05.** PROJECT MANAGER shall make such inspections as required, and shall be provided the same access to The Work and other privileges accorded to an INSPECTOR.
- **19.06.** PROJECT MANAGER shall not be authorized to authorize alteration of any of the requirements of these Contract Documents. All such alterations shall be in writing from AUTHORITY.

- **19.07.** PROJECT MANAGER shall not have authority to suspend The Work, but shall advise CONTRACTOR of work that is not in conformance with the requirements of these Contract Documents and provide ENGINEER and AUTHORITY with documentation of same, and may deliver to CONTRACTOR written notice of suspension or rejection of The Work or any portion(s) thereof from ENGINEER and AUTHORITY.
- 20. AUTHORITY AS REFEREE: AUTHORITY shall decide all questions, difficulties and disputes, of whatever nature, which may arise relative to the interpretation of the Plans, Specifications and other Contract Documents, and as to the character, quality, amount and value of any work done and materials furnished, under or by reason of the Contract, and its estimates and decisions upon all such claims, questions and disputes shall be final and conclusive upon the parties thereto.

21. CONTRACTOR' S PROJECT RESPONSIBILITIES

- 21.01. CONTRACTOR shall give The Work the constant attention necessary to facilitate the progress thereof, and shall cooperate with ENGINEER and with other contractors in every way possible.
- **21.02.** CONTRACTOR shall employ on the site a competent Superintendent for the full duration of The Work, who shall be present for all construction operations.
- **21.03.** The Superintendent shall be capable of reading and thoroughly understanding the Plans and Specifications, and shall act as CONTRACTORS agent on The Work, who shall receive instructions from ENGINEER or AUTHORITY representatives.
- **21.04.** CONTRACTOR shall keep said Superintendent continuously on The Work, during its progress, including those times when only Subcontractor forces are present and such Superintendent shall not be replaced without written notice to ENGINEER and AUTHORITY. Superintendent shall be furnished irrespective of the amount of work sublet.
- 21.05. The Superintendent shall be CONTRACTOR'S representative at the Site and shall be authorized to act on behalf of CONTRACTOR. All communications given to the Superintendent shall be as binding as if given to CONTRACTOR.
- **21.06.** The Superintendent shall have full authority to execute and shall execute the orders or directions of ENGINEER or AUTHORITY without delay and to promptly supply such materials, tools, plant, equipment and labor as may be required.
- **21.07.** ENGINEER or AUTHORITY shall have the authority to direct the removal and immediate replacement of the CONTRACTOR'S Superintendent for cause.
- **21.08.** Contractors Field Office: CONTRACTOR shall maintain a field office, including commercial telephone and telefax service available to ENGINEER or his representative or AUTHORITY representatives upon request, in the vicinity of The Work, at all times when The Work is in progress.
- 21.09. CONTRACTOR shall keep an attendant at CONTRACTOR'S office at all times, and orders, directions, and/or instructions of ENGINEER or AUTHORITY, left with said attendant as the agent of CONTRACTOR, shall be deemed to have been given to the agent the same as though they had been given to CONTRACTOR personally.
- **21.10.** CONTRACTOR shall make available to ENGINEER or AUTHORITY representatives a portion of the field office with commercial telephone service, suitable to view the project drawings and make notes and calculations as required.

- **21.11.** CONTRACTOR'S Work Coordination: CONTRACTOR and all Subcontractors shall coordinate their work with all adjacent work and with the work of AUTHORITY and shall cooperate so as to facilitate the progress of the work.
- **21.12.** CONTRACTOR and all Subcontractors will, at all times, schedule their work so as not to interfere with the normal operation of AUTHORITY and its leaseholders.

22. LIMITATIONS OF OPERATIONS

- **22.01.** CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to arrange all work and material so as not to interfere with the operations of other contractors engaged upon adjacent work and to join his work to that of others in a proper manner, and in accordance with the intent of the Plans and Specifications, and to perform his work in the proper sequence in relation to that of other contractors, all as may be directed by ENGINEER or AUTHORITY.
- **22.02.** Each CONTRACTOR shall be held responsible for any damage done by him or his agents to the work performed by another CONTRACTOR.
- **22.03.** Each CONTRACTOR shall so conduct his operations and maintain The Work in such condition that adequate drainage shall be in effect at all times. CONTRACTOR shall coordinate the discharge of said drainage such as not to interfere with the operations of other contractors or the AUTHORITY. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all regulatory agency requirements regarding the quality of the discharge of said drainage runoff.
- **22.04.** In case of a dispute arising between two or more contractors as to the respective rights of each under the Specifications, ENGINEER and AUTHORITY shall determine the matters at issue and shall define the respective rights of the various interests involved in order to secure the completion of all parts of The Work in general harmony and with satisfactory results, and his decision shall be final and binding on all parties concerned and shall not in any way be cause for claim for extra compensation by any of the parties.

23. PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

- **23.01.** AUTHORITY will provide to CONTRACTOR free of charge five (5) copies of the Plans and five (5) copies of the Specifications. CONTRACTOR shall request from ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY, in writing, additional sets of drawings required for obtaining permits for The Work. CONTRACTOR shall pay the cost of reproduction for all other copies of Plans and Specifications furnished to him.
- **23.02.** CONTRACTOR shall have available on The Work, at all times, one copy of said Plans and Specifications, and one copy of ENGINEER-approved Shop Drawings.
- **23.03.** All Drawings, Specifications and copies thereof furnished by ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY shall not be reused on other work and with the exception of the signed Contract sets, are to be returned to ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY on request at the completion of the work.
- **23.04.** The drawings are proprietary, and CONTRACTOR shall not make copies (or partial duplicates) and modifications to these Drawings and Specifications in whole or in part to be used for submittals required by AUTHORITY.
- **23.05.** The intent of the Plans and the Specifications is to prescribe a complete work or improvements which CONTRACTOR undertakes to do, in full compliance with the Plans, the Specifications, the Proposal and Contract.

- **23.06.** The complete set of Contract Documents is complementary and what is called for by any separate part is as binding as if called for by both or all parts.
- **23.07.** In the case of conflicting requirements, CONTRACTOR shall meet the more stringent requirement, as determined by ENGINEER without additional cost to the Authority.
- **23.08.** Should any misunderstanding arise as to the intent or meaning of said Plans, Specifications, or Proposal, or any discrepancy appear in either, the interpretation and/or decision of ENGINEER and AUTHORITY in such case shall be final and conclusive.
- **23.09.** CONTRACTOR shall perform all items of work covered and stipulated in the Proposal and perform altered and extra work as prescribed herein these Contract Documents; all in accordance with the lines, grades, typical cross-sections, and dimensions shown on the Plans, and shall furnish, unless otherwise provided in the Contract, all materials, implements, machinery, equipment, tools supplies, transportation and labor necessary for the prosecution of The Work.

24. <u>CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND ALLOWABLE DEVIATIONS</u>

- **24.01.** There shall be no deviation from the Plans, Specifications or approved working drawings except by mutual agreement, in writing, between the AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR.
- **24.02.** When changes and deviations are found necessary, they shall be covered in writing in a Task Order, Change Order or a Supplemental Agreement.
- **24.03.** Each Task Order, Change Order or Supplemental Agreement, so executed, shall become a supplement to the Contract.
- **24.04.** Nothing herein contained shall limit the rights of ENGINEER to interpret the Specifications, Plans, and working drawings to meet field conditions encountered in the prosecution of The Work.

25. <u>COORDINATION OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS</u>

- **25.01.** The Specifications, the Drawings (Plans), and all supplementary documents are essential parts of the Contract Documents, and a requirement appearing in one is as binding as though appearing in all. They are intended to describe and provide for a complete Project.
- **25.02.** In the case of any discrepancy or conflicting requirements, CONTRACTOR shall meet the more stringent requirement as prescribed herein these Contract Documents.
- **25.03.** If, in the progress of The Work, CONTRACTOR discovers any discrepancies, errors or omissions in any Plans or in the Specifications, or in the lines and grades or data furnished by AUTHORITY or ENGINEER, or in The Work undertaken and executed by him, he shall notify ENGINEER and AUTHORITY in writing within twenty-four hours of determining such discrepancies, and shall not proceed with The Work until corrections have been made by ENGINEER.
- **25.04.** If, with knowledge of any such discrepancy in the Contract Documents and prior to the correction thereof, CONTRACTOR proceeds with any work affected thereby, he shall do so at his own risk, and the work so done will not be considered as work done under and in the performance of the Contract unless and until approved and accepted by ENGINEER and AUTHORITY.

26. <u>**PLANS:**</u> The Plans (Drawings) forming a part of this Contract are as listed in the Table of Contents.

27. <u>SHOP DRAWINGS</u>

- **27.01.** CONTRACTOR shall submit to ENGINEER for approval, six (6) sets of required Shop Drawings stamped to show CONTRACTOR'S review and approval or comments.
- **27.02.** Said Shop Drawings shall be submitted in sufficient time to allow for reviews and corrections, if required, prior to beginning the work they cover. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to determine the schedule for submitting required Shop Drawings.
- **27.03.** Such Shop Drawings shall be submitted for approval as nearly as possible in the sequence in which materials are required: (a) by the performance of the work or (b) for materials required to be ordered in the event of "long lead time" items.
- **27.04.** ENGINEER shall be allowed ten days from the date of receipt of Shop Drawings for reviewing and returning such Shop Drawings to CONTRACTOR.
- **27.05.** Three sets of Shop Drawings will be returned to CONTRACTOR marked either: (a) "Approved" (b) "Approved as Noted", or (c) "Not Approved". The remaining three sets will be retained by the ENGINEER. CONTRACTOR shall correct and re-submit Shop Drawings marked "Not Approved" and shall comply with all conditions listed on Shop Drawing returned and marked "Approved as Noted".
- **27.06.** One complete set of approved Shop Drawings shall be maintained on the project site at all times.
- **27.07.** Approval of such Shop Drawings shall be deemed an aid to CONTRACTOR but the approval shall in no way relieve CONTRACTOR of his responsibility for the proper performance of the work.
- **27.08.** Prior to the approval of required Shop Drawings, any work done or materials ordered for the work involved shall be at CONTRACTOR'S risk.
- **27.09.** Errors or omissions in Shop Drawings, when discovered, shall be corrected by CONTRACTOR without additional cost to AUTHORITY whether or not such work was completed in accordance with the approved Shop Drawings.
- **27.10.** After approval of any Shop Drawings, no change will be permitted thereon unless approved in writing by ENGINEER.
- 27.11. Approval by ENGINEER of CONTRACTOR'S shop drawings does not relieve CONTRACTOR of any responsibility for accuracy of dimensions and details, or for conformity of dimensions and details. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for agreement and conformity of the Shop Drawings with the Approved Plans and Specifications.
- **27.12.** The Contract prices shall include the cost of furnishing all Shop Drawings and CONTRACTOR will be allowed no extra compensation for such drawings.
- **27.13.** It is CONTRACTOR'S responsibility to make all necessary working or field drawings, in addition to the contract drawings, which may be required for the field forces to complete any part of The Work.

28. <u>SURVEYS, BENCH MARKS AND REFERENCE POINTS</u>

- **28.01.** Unless otherwise specified, ENGINEER shall furnish the necessary land surveys to establish all base lines for locating the principal component parts of the work together with a minimum of two (2) bench marks adjacent to the work. CONTRACTOR shall notify ENGINEER in writing within 24 hours of the discovery of any error or discrepancy in established referenced points.
- **28.02.** AUTHORITY shall require CONTRACTOR to be responsible for the cost to re-establish benchmarks, reference points and stakes that have been damaged or disturbed from the original positions, regardless of the cause for such damage or disturbance. 29.02. From the information provided by the plans and specifications, CONTRACTOR shall develop and make all detail surveys needed for construction such as batter boards, stakes for pile location, base lines and other working points, lines and elevations.

29. CONSTRUCTION STAKES, LINES AND GRADES, QUANTITY SURVEYS

- **29.01.** CONTRACTOR is responsible for the project site and shall carefully preserve AUTHORITY provided bench-marks, reference points and stakes.
- **29.02.** CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the protection and preservation of said horizontal and vertical control points, and ENGINEER will assess a cost to CONTRACTOR for re-establishing said control points that are damaged or disturbed during the progress of The Work regardless of the cause of such damage or disturbance.
- **29.03.** CONTRACTOR shall perform all items of work covered in these Contract Documents, all in accordance with the lines, grades, typical cross-sections, and dimensions shown on the Plans.
- **29.04.** If, in the progress of The Work, CONTRACTOR discovers any discrepancies, errors or omissions in the lines and grades or data furnished by AUTHORITY, he shall notify ENGINEER in writing within twenty-four hours of determining such discrepancies, and shall not proceed with The Work until corrections have been made by ENGINEER.
- **29.05.** Upon completion of all of The Work and before Final Payment is made, CONTRACTOR shall submit to ENGINEER and AUTHORITY, Record As Built Drawings, prepared and certified by a Florida Licensed Land Surveyor and Mapper, as further described herein these Contract Documents. The final quantities of all items described in The Proposal for The Work shall be determined from the certified Record As-Built Drawings.
- **29.06.** Said certified Record As-Built Drawings shall become the permanent property of AUTHORITY.

30. RESPONSIBILITY FOR INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

- **30.01.** Before AUTHORITY issues the Notice to Proceed, CONTRACTOR shall obtain, deliver to AUTHORITY on AUTHORITY required forms, and maintain for the duration of the Contract period, the insurance(s) as further described herein these Contract Documents.
- **30.02.** CONTRACTOR and his Insurer shall indemnify and save harmless AUTHORITY and ENGINEER, their successors and all their officers, agents and employees from all suits, actions, costs, damages or claims of any character, name and description brought for, or on account of, any injuries or damages alleged to have been received or sustained by any person, persons, or property, in whole or in part, (a) by or from the said CONTRACTOR, (b) or by or in consequence of any neglect in safeguarding The Work, ITB 0-02119 and 0-02219 ~ Page 85 of 154

(c) or through the use of unacceptable materials in the construction of the improvement, (d) or by or on account of any act or omission, neglect or misconduct of the said CONTRACTOR, (e) or by or on account of any claims or amounts recovered for infringement of patent, trademark, or copyright under any law, by-law, ordinance, order or decree, (f) or by any breach or default by CONTRACTOR, and so much of the money due the said CONTRACTOR under and by virtue of his Contract, as shall be considered necessary by AUTHORITY, may be retained for the use of AUTHORITY, or in case no money is due, his Insurer shall be held liable until such suit or suits, action or actions, claim or claims for injuries or damages, as aforesaid, shall have been settled and suitable evidence to that effect furnished to AUTHORITY. As consideration for this indemnification, CONTRACTOR acknowledges receipt of separate consideration in the amount of \$25.00 given as part of the contract price herein.

- **30.03.** Any extension of time granted CONTRACTOR in which to complete the Contract shall not relieve him or his Surety from herein described indemnification.
- **30.04.** Ten days after AUTHORITY has issued the Notice to Proceed, if CONTRACTOR refuses or otherwise neglects to deliver the required Certificate(s) of Insurance personally and manually signed by the authorized representative of the insurance company (ies), AUTHORITY may, at AUTHORITY'S sole discretion purchase such insurance coverage and charge CONTRACTOR for such coverage purchased plus fifteen percent (15 %) for administrative costs. AUTHORITY will be under no obligation to purchase such insurance or be responsible for the coverage purchased, or the financial stability or responsibility of the insurance company used. The decision of AUTHORITY to purchase such insurance coverage will in no way be construed as a waiver of its rights under this Contract.
- **30.05.** In the event CONTRACTOR fails to provide or maintain the insurance coverage required in this Contract at any time during the term of the Contract, at AUTHORITY'S sole discretion AUTHORITY may (a) terminate or suspend this Contract or, (b) purchase such insurance coverage and charge CONTRACTOR for such coverage purchased plus 15% for administrative costs. AUTHORITY will be under no obligation to purchase such insurance or be responsible for the coverage purchased, or the financial stability or responsibility of the insurance company used. The decision of AUTHORITY to purchase such insurance coverage will in no way be construed as a waiver of its rights under this Contract.
- **30.06.** CONTRACTOR shall not occupy the premises nor shall any work commence unless and until the required Certificate(s) of Insurance are in effect and the written Notice to Proceed is issued to CONTRACTOR by AUTHORITY.
- **31. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:** CONTRACTOR shall obtain, deliver to AUTHORITY on AUTHORITY provided forms and maintain for the duration of the Contract, the insurance(s) as further described in the Contract Documents.

32. BOND REQUIREMENTS:

- **32.01.** Proposal (BID) Bond:
 - **32.01.01.** If required, each Submittal (Bid or RFP) must be accompanied by a Certified Check, Cashier's Check, or by a Proposal (Bid) Bond on the form provided by the AUTHORITY (See AUTHORITY's Bid Bond Form in the Proposal (Bid) Document), duly executed by the Contractor and meeting

the standards specified herein, in the amount of not less than ten percent (10%) of the total Base Bid price.

- **32.01.02.** Such Checks or Proposal (Bid) Bonds will be returned to all except the lowest bidder or highest ranked firm on RFP's within ten (10) days after the formal opening or ranking of firms, and the remaining Checks or Proposal (Bid) Bonds will be returned within forty-eight (48) hours after the AUTHORITY and the successful Firm have executed the Contract for the work, or if no such Contract is executed, within ninety (90) days after the date of the opening of proposals, upon demand of the Firm at any time thereafter if he has not been notified of Proposal acceptance or award of Contract.
- **32.01.03.** Failure on the part of the successful lowest responsible Bidder or highest ranked firm on RFP's, as determined by the AUTHORITY, to execute the Contract and file an acceptable Public Construction Bond as provided herein, within ten (10) days after being presented with the prescribed Contract forms, shall be just cause for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bond guarantee to the AUTHORITY, which forfeiture shall be considered not a penalty but liquidation of damages sustained. Award may then be made to the next lowest responsible Bidder or next highest ranked firm on RFP's, or all proposals or bids may be rejected.
- **32.02.** <u>PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND (Guarantee of Faithful Performance, Payment.</u> <u>Workmanship and Successful Operations</u>) - A Public Construction Bond, meeting the requirements of Section 255.05, Fla. Stat., and specifications set forth herein, on the forms provided by the AUTHORITY (See AUTHORITY's Public Construction Bond Form in the Proposal (Bid) Document), and in the amount not less than the Contract award amount will be required of the successful Bidder and delivered to the AUTHORITY with the signed Contract. The Public Construction Bond shall commence from the date of Notice to Proceed and shall be valid for the duration of the project and continue for one year after the date of Substantial Completion.
- **32.03.** <u>Surety Bond Specifications</u> (applies to Bid, Public Construction, Supply and Fidelity, and all other types bonds.).
 - **32.03.01.** All bonds shall be written through a reputable and responsible surety bond agency licensed to do business in the State of Florida and with a surety company or corporation meeting both of the following specifications:
 - **32.03.02.** Minimum ratings in the latest revision of Best's Insurance Reports of:

Contract Amount Pol	licyholder	Financial
\$0 to \$250,000	B+	Class IV
\$250,001 to \$2,500,000	A	Class V
\$2,500,001	A	Class VI

32.03.03. Current certificate of authority as acceptable surety on Federal Bonds in accordance with U. S. Department of Treasury Circular 570, current revision. If the amount of the bond exceeds the underwriting limitations set forth in the Circular, in order to qualify, the net retention of the surety company shall not exceed the underwriting limitation in the Circular and

ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 87 of 154

the excess risk must be protected by co-insurance, reinsurance, or other methods in accordance with Treasury Circular 297, revised September 1, 1978 (31 CFR §§ 223.10 - 223.111). Further the surety company shall provide the AUTHORITY with evidence satisfactory to the AUTHORITY, that such excess risk has been protected in an acceptable manner.

- **32.03.04.** Notwithstanding the foregoing Paragraph, Surety Bond Specification, paragraphs 1 and 2, in the event the bond requirement does not exceed \$500,000, bonds with a surety company in compliance with the following requirements shall be acceptable.
 - a. The surety company holds a certificate of authority authorizing it to write surety bonds in Florida.
 - b. The surety company has twice the minimum surplus and capital required by the Florida Insurance Code at the time the invitation to bid is issued.
 - c. The surety company is otherwise in compliance with the provisions of the Florida Insurance Code.
 - d. The surety company holds a currently valid certificate of authority issued by the United States Department of the Treasury under 31 U.S.C.§§ 9304 to 9308.
- **32.04.** In order to qualify as an acceptable surety company under this subparagraph (d), a Certificate and Affidavit for Surety Bond Insurer (See last page of AUTHORITY's Bid Bond Form OR Public Construction Bond Form) shall be executed by an Officer of the surety bond insurer as evidence that a surety company is in compliance with the foregoing requirements.
- 32.05. Additional Bond
 - **32.05.01.** If, at any time after delivery of Public Construction Bond, the AUTHORITY deems the surety or sureties upon the bond to be unsatisfactory, or if, for any reason, such bond ceases to be adequate to cover the performance of the work, the Contractor shall, at his expense within five (5) days after the receipt of notice from the AUTHORITY so to do, furnish an additional bond or bonds in such form, amount, and with such surety or sureties as shall be satisfactory to the AUTHORITY.
 - **32.05.02.** In such event, in addition to the other remedies available to AUTHORITY, no further payments to the Contractor shall be deemed to be due under this Contract until such new or additional security for the faithful performance of the work shall be furnished in manner and form satisfactory to the AUTHORITY.

33. CONSTRUCTION SAFETY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE

33.01. CONTRACTOR shall have sole responsibility for developing and implementing requirements for safety of individuals and protection of property not under the ownership and control of CONTRACTOR.

- **33.02.** CONTRACTOR shall comply with construction safety laws, by-laws, ordinances and regulations, of all agencies having jurisdiction, including but not limited to the construction safety regulations of the U.S. Occupational Safety and Health Construction (29 CFR 1926).
- **33.03.** CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and save harmless AUTHORITY and all of its officers, agents and employees against any claims or liability arising from or based on the violation of any such laws, by-laws, ordinances and regulations.
- **33.04.** CONTRACTOR shall notify ENGINEER and AUTHORITY in writing by end of the following work day of any accident resulting in injury to CONTRACTOR employees or others, or of any damage to property or materials not under ownership or control of CONTRACTOR, said injury(ies) or property damage(s) occurring at the construction site or adjacent to the construction site.
- **33.05.** If death or injuries requiring medical attention are caused to CONTRACTOR'S employees or others, the accident shall be reported verbally before end of the workday to ENGINEER and AUTHORITY, and in writing, to ENGINEER and AUTHORITY by end of the following work day.
- **33.06.** If any claim is made by any third person against CONTRACTOR or any Subcontractor, on account of any accident, injury or property damage occurring on AUTHORITY's project site or adjacent to the project site, CONTRACTOR shall report the fact in writing to ENGINEER and AUTHORITY by end of the day following notification of said claim, giving full details of the claim and statements of witness (es) and promptly provide notice to CONTRACTOR'S insurance carrier.
- **33.07.** CONTRACTOR shall provide at the site such equipment and medical supplies as are necessary to supply first aid service to any person who may be injured on or adjacent to the project site.
- **33.08.** CONTRACTOR shall make the necessary inquiries to determine the availability of emergency medical facilities to the project site and shall ascertain and display the street address or other site location information necessary to direct Emergency Medical Technicians to the Site as may be required.

34. CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE WORK

34.01. Until the final acceptance of The Work by AUTHORITY, including any periods of suspension of work for any cause whatever, The Work shall be under the charge and care of CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall rebuild and make good at his own expense all damages, for any cause whatever, occurring before the completion and acceptance of The Work, as further described herein these Contract Documents.

35. <u>SCHEDULE OF VALUES</u>

- **35.01.** CONTRACTOR shall prepare and submit to ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY for approval, a "Schedule of Values", not later than fifteen (15) days prior to the date the first monthly Application For Payment is due to be submitted. ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY may, at his sole discretion, defer processing of CONTRACTOR'S invoice pending receipt of an approved "Schedule of Values".
- **35.02.** The "Schedule of Values" shall be sufficiently detailed so as to form a basis for determining the value of the work completed and calculating monthly payments.

- **35.03.** Lump Sum amounts shall be separated into components and material quantities and shall be given in units easy to verify in the field.
- **35.04** For those items that the AUTHORITY may elect to purchase materials stored on site, separate values shall be given for materials cost and for installation.
- **35.05.** AUTHORITY'S payment for materials stored on site shall be supported by invoices or other documents acceptable to ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY. Only materials stored on site or stored in a bonded warehouse approved by ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY, in writing, shall be eligible for payment to CONTRACTOR prior to installation of said materials.
- **35.06.** The sum of the extensions of all quantities and unit values in the Schedule of Values shall equal the contract amount.
- **35.07.** CONTRACTOR'S unit prices for items prescribed and submitted on the Proposal Form and on the Schedule of Values shall be the complete amount to be paid to CONTRACTOR by AUTHORITY for proper completion of such work; said unit price payments to include all mark-up, profit, overhead and all other applicable costs.

36. SOURCE OF SUPPLY AND QUALITY REQUIREMENTS

36.01. Within ten (10) days after the date established in the Notice to Proceed as Day Number One, CONTRACTOR shall furnish ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY with a complete written statement showing the source, producer and intended use of the materials required in The Work.

37. <u>SAMPLES</u>

- **37.01.** CONTRACTOR shall submit to ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY for approval, samples of all items which are specifically required by these Contract Documents, said samples to become the property of AUTHORITY, except as mutually agreed in writing that said samples to be returned to CONTRACTOR after evaluation by ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY.
- **37.02.** CONTRACTOR shall furnish information to ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY, describing items of sample materials offered as being equal to those specified, as may be necessary to establish such equality; ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY'S decision will be final.
- **37.03.** The samples shall be marked clearly to show:
- **37.04.** Name of trade, type, quality or grade and any further designation necessary to identify the items of materials.
 - **37.04.01.** Manufacturer's or producer's name.
 - **37.04.02.** Availability of sample.
 - **37.04.03.** Name of CONTRACTOR and Subcontractor, if any.
 - **37.04.04.** Name and number of project.
- **37.05.** CONTRACTOR shall submit samples of such size and/or number sufficient to show quality, types, range of color, finish or texture.

37.06. ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY shall approve or disapprove the sample submitted within ten (10) days of the date of receipt of said sample and approved samples. In the event the material of the submitted sample is not readily available, then a Request for Substitution shall be submitted, as further described herein these Contract Documents, for approval by ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY and any cost savings shall be credited to the AUTHORITY.

38. TIME FOR COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION

- **38.01.** CONTRACTOR shall commence The Work and mobilize to the site within four (4) calendar days after the date prescribed as "Day Number One" of the contract duration in the Notice To Proceed and shall complete the entire project within the number of calendar days prescribed herein these Contract Documents. In no case shall CONTRACTOR occupy the site or begin The Work prior to the date prescribed to do so by AUTHORITY in the Notice To Proceed.
- **38.02.** The Notice To Proceed shall specify the date to be considered Day Number One of the contract duration and shall specify the date that "The Construction Schedule" shall be submitted to ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY for approval.
- **38.03.** AUTHORITY reserves the option to revise or establish, in writing, milestone date(s) for completion of portions of The Work. CONTRACTOR shall promptly implement such revisions by Authority and shall revise The Construction Schedule and submit same to ENGINEER and/or AUTHORITY within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of notice of AUTHORITY'S revisions.
- **38.04.** If The Work is revised in any way and said revision causes delay in the completion of The Work, CONTRACTOR shall submit documentation of the delay caused to the Critical Path of The Work and a request for extension of contract duration within twenty-four (24) hours of the start of said revision. ENGINEER shall review the request and, if applicable, prepare a Change Order or Supplemental Agreement and extend the completion date by the number of calendar days the Critical Path is extended.
- **38.05.** Time extensions shall only be effective upon execution of a written Change Order by CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY. No verbal extensions may be given or relied upon.
- **38.06.** CONTRACTOR must have all insurance requirements confirmed and approved by AUTHORITY prior to mobilization on the project site.

39. EXCUSABLE DELAY: COMPENSABLE: NON-COMPENSABLE

- **39.01.** EXCUSABLE DELAY: Delay which extends the completion of The Work and which is caused by circumstances beyond the control of CONTRACTOR or its Subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or vendors is excusable delay; said delays to include but not be limited to Acts of God, actions by governmental agencies that interfere with progress of the work, strikes, materials shortages, war and riots, CONTRACTOR is entitled to a time extension to the Contract Duration for each day The Work is delayed due to Excusable Delay. CONTRACTOR shall provide notification and documentation of such delay as herein further prescribed.
- **39.02.** Excusable Delay may be compensable or non-compensable.
 - **39.02.01.** COMPENSABLE EXCUSABLE DELAY: Excusable delay is compensable when (a) the delay extends the Contract Duration, (b) the delay is caused by circumstances

beyond the control of CONTRACTOR or its Subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or vendors and (c) the delay is caused by act(s) or omission(s) by AUTHORITY. In no the Contract Time.

- **39.02.02.** CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to ENGINEER approved Direct Costs for Compensable Excusable Delay. Direct costs recoverable by CONTRACTOR are those costs which occur on the project site and are approved by ENGINEER.
- **39.02.03.** AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR recognize and agree that the amount of CONTRACTOR'S precise actual indirect costs for delay in the performance and completion of The Work is impossible to determine as of the date of execution of these Contract Documents, and that proof of the precise amount will be difficult to ascertain. Therefore, indirect costs recoverable by CONTRACTOR shall be liquidated on a daily basis for each day the Contract Duration is delayed due to a Compensable Excusable Delay. These liquidated indirect costs shall be paid to compensate CONTRACTOR for all indirect costs caused by a Compensable Excusable Delay and shall include, but not be limited to, all profit on indirect costs, home office overhead, acceleration, loss of earnings, loss of productivity, loss of bonding capacity, loss of opportunity and all other indirect cost incurred by CONTRACTOR. The amount of indirect costs recoverable shall be \$300.00 per day for each day the Contract Duration is delayed due to a Compensable Excusable Delay.
- **39.02.04.** NON-COMPENSABLE EXCUSABLE DELAY: A delay to the Contract Duration when: (a) an excusable delay is caused by circumstances beyond the control of CONTRACTOR, its Subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or vendors, and is also beyond the control of AUTHORITY and is not the fault of AUTHORITY. For non-compensable excusable delay CONTRACTOR shall be entitled only to a time extension and no further compensation for the delay.
- **39.02.05.** No compensation will be paid to CONTRACTOR for delays due to weather, even if some of those days of weather delay are concurrent with days which may otherwise have been compensable.
- **39.03.** AUTHORITY will not consider requests for extensions of time and/or compensation on account of an Excusable Delay except when CONTRACTOR provides written notice to ENGINEER within twenty-four hours (24) of start of, or knowledge of the start of, said delay, and written application there-for is filed within seven (7) days of the date of the termination of said delay. AUTHORITY shall have the right to demand supporting documentation for requests for time extensions and compensation.
- **39.04.** Only delays determined to extend the critical path for the schedule of constructing the project will be considered an Excusable Delay for extending the Contract Duration.
- **39.05.** CONTRACTOR'S sole remedy for all delays not caused by AUTHORITY shall be a claim for extension of Contract Duration at no cost to AUTHORITY.

40. WEATHER DELAYS

- **40.01.** The Contract duration does not take into account delays to the completion of The Work due to interference to the progress of The Work by causes of weather or weather related conditions.
- **40.02.** The Contract Duration will be extended for one calendar day for each calendar day that weather or weather-related conditions prevent a minimum of seventy-five percent (75%) of CONTRACTOR'S normally scheduled labor and equipment from performing the

the normally scheduled work day.

- **40.03.** It is the sole responsibility of CONTRACTOR to provide notice, in writing, to ENGINEER within 24 hours of the onset of the weather phenomena causing said weather delay to the progress of the Critical Path work activities and to demonstrate to ENGINEER the validity of said weather delay.
- **40.04.** The extension of the Contract Duration by weather or weather-related conditions shall be at no additional cost to AUTHORITY.
- **40.05.** No extension of time for performance under this Contract shall be granted nor shall CONTRACTOR be entitled to any time extension, unless such extension is specifically agreed to in writing by the ENGINEER.
- **40.06.** AUTHORITY shall periodically prepare and execute a Change Order for agreed-upon extensions to the Contract Duration.

41. OTHER DELAYS TO CONTRACT COMPLETION

- **41.01.** If AUTHORITY should suspend The Work in whole or in part, the date for Contract Completion shall be extended the number of days that the suspension delays the completion of the work, provided that such suspension is not due to the acts, negligence or omissions of CONTRACTOR.
- **41.02.** For such suspension of The Work not due to the acts, negligence or omissions of CONTRACTOR, if CONTRACTOR can demonstrate additional costs caused by said suspension, AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR shall mutually agree on a cost per day to compensate CONTRACTOR for said suspension; such agreement shall be in writing and executed prior to re-starting The Work.

42. PROSECUTION OF THE WORK AND CONTRACTOR DUTIES

- **42.01.** Time is the essence this Agreement for completion of The Work prescribed herein these Contract Documents. CONTRACTOR shall prosecute The Work with such manpower, equipment and materials as necessary to complete The Work within the number of days prescribed herein these Contract Documents.
- **42.02.** CONTRACTOR shall take into account all contingent work which has to be done by other parties, arising from any cause whatsoever, and shall not plead his want of knowledge of said contingent work as an excuse for delay in his work, or for its nonperformance.
- **42.03.** CONTRACTOR shall provide adequate labor, materials and equipment to prosecute The Work in the order and at such points as described by CONTRACTOR'S Construction Progress Schedule to insure the completion of The Work by the date specified.
- **42.04.** CONTRACTOR shall make recommendations with respect to the selection of systems and materials, and cost-reducing alternatives, including assistance to AUTHORITY in evaluating alternative comparisons versus long-term effects.
- **42.05.** CONTRACTOR shall furnish pertinent information as to the availability of materials and labor that will be required to complete The Work by the date specified.
- **42.06** CONTRACTOR shall submit to AUTHORITY such comments as may be appropriate concerning construction feasibility and practicality as described herein these Contract Documents.

42.07. In the event CONTRACTOR suspends or temporarily terminates The Work before completion, said CONTRACTOR shall notify ENGINEER at least two (2) days in advance of the date which he expects to resume operations on suspended work.

43. THE SCHEDULES.

43.01. CONTRACTOR shall prepare, submit and update construction schedules as further described herein these Contract Documents. In the event CONTRACTOR neglects or otherwise fails to submit any required construction schedule including, but not limited to, The Initial Schedule, Three Week Look Ahead Schedule and The Construction Schedule, at the prescribed time(s) for such schedule delivery to ENGINEER, as herein described, ENGINEER shall notify CONTRACTOR in writing of first such failure to submit said required schedule(s). In the event CONTRACTOR fails to submit the required schedule a second time, ENGINEER shall, in addition to other available remedies, prepare notice to CONTRACTOR, in writing, that ENGINEER may engage an independent schedule consultant to timely prepare and submit the prescribed schedules to ENGINEER with CONTRACTOR'S assistance, the complete cost of such action to be deducted from monies due to CONTRACTOR.

43.02. The Initial Schedule

- **43.02.01.** CONTRACTOR shall, no later than ten (10) days after receipt of an executed Contract, prepare and submit to ENGINEER, for approval, an Initial Schedule showing the sequence and duration of the operations in which he proposes to carry out the various parts of The Work and a written narrative of the complete labor, plant and equipment he proposes to use.
- **43.02.02.** The project management tool Critical Path Method, commonly called "CPM", shall be utilized to prepare the Initial Schedule. The Initial Schedule shall be in the form of a time-scaled network diagram drawn to suitable scale and arranged to describe the planned duration of all activities of The Work. The network diagram shall be submitted on sheets no smaller than 18" X 24" and no larger than 36" X 42".
- **43.02.03.** At the left hand side, the schedule shall list each principal feature of the major elements of The Work and under each such heading shall be listed its necessary work operations and activities including all temporary work. Mobilization and Demobilization of plant and equipment, and final clean up shall be listed separately.
- **43.02.04.** Horizontally across the top, the chart shall be divided into equally spaced monthly periods, with the scheduled starting date given thereunder for each operation and activity listed in the left hand column. The operations and activities shall be displayed such that the duration and relationship to other operations and activities are clearly described.
- **43.02.05.** The Initial Construction Schedule shall be of such detail to include all work activities as described on the Bid Proposal Form and in the Schedule of Values. The planned sequential activities and durations shall reflect the interdependency(ies) of the work activities and shall clearly illustrate the Critical Path of The Work.
- **43.02.06.** The Initial Construction Schedule shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR until The Construction Schedule is submitted or for the duration of the project as directed by Payment submittal except the Final Application for Payment submittal. ENGINEER may, at his sole discretion, withhold progress payments, pending the preparation and

submittal of an updated Initial Construction Schedule with each Application for Payment.

- **43.02.07.** Submittal of The Construction Schedule as further prescribed herein these Contract Documents, and approval of The Construction Schedule by ENGINEER, shall, upon mutual agreement in writing between CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY, relieve CONTRACTOR of the requirement to maintain all or part of said Initial Construction Schedule requirements.
- **43.02.08.** ENGINEER'S acceptance and approval of a submitted Initial Construction Schedule is for conformance to Contractual requirements only and does not relieve CONTRACTOR of the responsibility for the accuracy or feasibility of the project schedule; nor does ENGINEER'S acceptance and approval of said schedules expressly or impliedly warrant, acknowledge or admit the reasonableness of the logic or activity durations of CONTRACTOR'S Initial Construction Schedule.

43.03. Three Week Look-Ahead Schedule

- **43.03.01.** Before CONTRACTOR mobilizes to the job site, CONTRACTOR shall prepare and submit a detailed Three Week Look-Ahead Schedule, describing in detail all of the planned daily work for the initial three-week period of the project. Such Three Week Look-Ahead Schedule may be on 8.5" X 11" sheets, may be prepared either by hand or by machine, and may be in a format selected by CONTRACTOR and approved by ENGINEER.
- **43.03.02.** Such Three Week Look-Ahead Schedule to be of such detail to describe daily work activities planned by all work forces on the project for the three weeks of the affected plan period and shall identify all Subcontractors planned to be on the project site each day of said three week plan period. The Three Week Look Ahead Schedule shall be coordinated with The Initial Schedule and The Construction Schedule, as applicable, such schedules describing CONTRACTOR'S plan for completion of The Work.
- **43.03.03.** CONTRACTOR shall update said Three Week Look-Ahead Schedule weekly. An updated Three Week Look-Ahead Schedule shall be presented to PROJECT MANAGER on Monday of each work-week or, in the event of a holiday on Monday, the first day of the work week, and an updated version shall be available for discussion at each Progress Meeting.

43.04. The Construction Schedule

- **43.04.01.** ENGINEER shall prescribe a date in the Notice to Proceed for submittal of The Construction Schedule, as further described herein these Contract Documents.
- **43.04.02.** The scheduling tool required for this project is the "Critical Path Method", commonly called CPM, as further described herein these Contract Documents.

44. ACCESS TO SITE

44.01. CONTRACTOR shall provide all temporary access roads to the site and maintain said access; such maintenance to include, but not be limited to, grading, compacting and providing adequate drainage of said roads for the duration of the Contract period. CONTRACTOR must control drainage runoff to comply with water quality requirements and to avoid nuisance complaints and damage to adjacent sites.

- 44.02. Location of temporary access roads shall be approved in advance by the ENGINEER.
- **44.03.** CONTRACTOR shall not have access to additional sites, including adjacent sites and road right-of-way, for staging, materials storage, parking or any other reason, except as agreed in writing by ENGINEER; said agreement to prescribe the area available to CONTRACTOR and any conditions required for access to said area.

45. SITE INVESTIGATION. UTILITIES LOCATIONS AND REPRESENTATION

- **45.01.** Prior to preparing a bid cost submittal, CONTRACTOR shall satisfy himself as to the nature and location of the work, the general and local conditions, particularly those bearing on transportation, materials disposal, handling and storage of materials, availability of labor, power and roads, uncertainty of weather, physical conditions at the site, the conformation and condition of the ground, the character or quality and quantity of surface and subsurface materials to be encountered, the type of equipment and facilities needed preliminary to and during the prosecution of the work and all other matters which can in any way affect the work or cost thereof under this Contract.
- **45.02.** Any failure of CONTRACTOR to acquaint himself with all of the available information concerning these conditions will not relieve him from the responsibility for estimating properly the difficulty or cost of successfully performing the work.
- 45.03. The CONTRACTOR shall notify each property owner, utility company and Sunshine State One-Call of Florida, Inc. (1-800-432-4770), at least two (2) weeks prior to the start of construction to arrange for positive underground location, relocation or support of its' utility where such utility may be in conflict with or endangered by construction activities by CONTRACTOR. All costs of permanent utility relocation shall be considered the responsibility of the utility company involved, provided that such utility company is given said two (2) weeks advance notice. CONTRACTOR shall conduct and schedule all work activities in such a manner not to be delayed by the utility companies relocating or supporting their utility. No compensation shall be made for any loss of time for utility locations, relocations, support or repairs in the event of damage to the utility system by CONTRACTOR. All underground utility information is shown on the Contract Documents to the extent known and is as complete and accurate as can be determined by ENGINEER. It shall be CONTRACTOR'S responsibility to verify known utility locations. CONTRACTOR shall fully understand that certain structures may not be located precisely as shown on the Contract Documents or may be omitted entirely. Such mutual agreement to pre-existing conditions shall place on CONTRACTOR the following obligations under this Contract:
 - **45.03.01.** The position of certain structures and utilities directly affects the proposed construction. Therefore, in order to insure that the proposed work can actually be positioned as planned CONTRACTOR shall make any excavation necessary for location of structures and utilities prior to construction of the affected portion of the project.
 - **45.03.02.** CONTRACTOR shall make all necessary arrangements with the utility companies concerned for maintenance of the utility systems during the construction period. In the event that a complete relocation of utilities is required, but has not been accomplished prior to the starting date established in AUTHORITY'S Notice to Proceed, CONTRACTOR nevertheless shall commence work under these Contract Documents, and shall schedule all work activities to avoid interference with the utility relocation work. AUTHORITY will not be liable for any delay or added cost which CONTRACTOR experiences due to the activities of the utility companies, nor shall

AUTHORTY be held responsible for any costs of damages to identified utilities due to actions of CONTRACTOR.

- **45.03.03.** At points where CONTRACTOR'S operations are adjacent to utility facilities or other property, damage to which could result in expense, loss, disruption of service or other undue inconvenience to the public or to the owners, work shall not be commenced until all arrangements necessary for the protection of said utility facilities or other property are complete. CONTRACTOR shall be solely and directly responsible to the property owners and operators of such facilities or property for any damage, injury, expense, loss, inconvenience or delay caused by operations or actions of CONTRACTOR.
- **45.03.04.** All existing utilities, communications facilities and other existing systems, including but not limited to structures, conduit, pipe, wiring or cable (hereinafter referred to as "improvements"), whether above or below ground, shall be protected by CONTRACTOR from damage or destruction. CONTRACTOR shall ascertain from these Contract Documents and from his own reasonable administrative and physical efforts, including but not limited to notifications to involved organizations for proper marking, the location of any improvements at or near the site of The Work. Any destruction of, or damage to existing pre-identified improvements, above or below ground, shall be promptly repaired, restored or replaced to the satisfaction of the utility company or owner, and at no cost to AUTHORITY. This may require complete replacement of conduits, pipes, wiring, cables or similar improvements where original installation was made under a requirement for continuous, un-spliced lengths. Whenever CONTRACTOR neglects to complete repairs in a timely manner, AUTHORITY shall have the right to have the necessary corrective work performed by CONTRACTOR or by others at the expense thereof to CONTRACTOR.
- **45.04.** AUTHORITY assumes no responsibility for any understanding or representations, regarding utilities locations or any other matter, made by any of its officers, agents, employees or consultants during or prior to the preparation of Bid Costs and execution of this Contract, unless (a) such understanding or representations are expressly stated in the Contract, and (b) the Contract expressly provides that responsibility therefore is assumed by AUTHORITY.
- **45.05.** Representations made, but not in the Contract shall be deemed to be only for the information of CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY will not be liable or responsible for the accuracy therefore.

46. ELECTRICITY. TELEPHONE. WATER AND SEWER SERVICE

- **46.01.** CONTRACTOR shall make private arrangements for all temporary utility services except as otherwise stated in writing herein these Contract Documents.
- **46.02.** CONTRACTOR shall pay all security deposits, service connection fees, monthly usage charges and all other applicable costs for temporary utility services.
- **46.03.** AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR shall mutually agree in writing, upon the date the temporary utility services for CONTRACTOR'S use shall terminate and the permanent utility charges to AUTHORITY shall begin.

47. CHARACTER OF WORKMEN AND EQUIPMENT

- **47.01.** CONTRACTOR shall at all times employ sufficient labor and equipment necessary for the prosecution of the several classes of work to full completion in the manner and time described herein these Contract Documents.
- **47.02.** All workmen must have sufficient skill and experience to perform properly The Work assigned to them. All workmen engaged in special or skilled work shall have sufficient experience in such work and in the operation of the equipment required to perform it properly and in a satisfactory and safe manner.
- **47.03.** Any superintendent, foreman or workman employed by CONTRACTOR or by any Subcontractor who, in the opinion of ENGINEER or his authorized representative does not perform his work in a proper and skillful manner; or is disrespectful, intemperate, disorderly, or otherwise objectionable shall, at the written request of ENGINEER, be forthwith discharged by CONTRACTOR or Subcontractor employing such person, and shall not be employed again on any portion of The Work without the written consent of ENGINEER. For security AUTHORITY may require that all persons under CONTRACTOR'S supervision display recognizable identification or company uniforms.
- **47.04.** Should CONTRACTOR fail to remove such person or persons or fail to furnish suitable and sufficient machinery, equipment, or personnel for the proper prosecution of The Work, in addition to other remedies, ENGINEER may withhold all progress payments, which are or may become due or may suspend The Work until CONTRACTOR shall comply with such orders.
- **47.05.** All equipment and plant submitted by CONTRACTOR and proposed to be used on The Work shall be of sufficient size and in such mechanical condition as to meet the requirements of The Work and to produce a satisfactory quality of work. Said equipment and plant provided to the project site shall be equal in size and condition as that submitted with the Proposal Form.
- **47.06.** Equipment used on any portion of the project shall be in such condition that it presents no hazard to individuals, visitors to the site, The Work, or adjacent property. ENGINEER may order the removal and require replacement of any equipment that ENGINEER determines to be unsatisfactory.

48. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING OF CONTRACT

- **48.01.** AUTHORITY acknowledges that CONTRACTOR may select Subcontractors with various areas of specialty expertise to complete portions of The Work. The selection of said Subcontractors shall be the sole choice and responsibility of CONTRACTOR subject to approval by ENGINEER.
- **48.02.** CONTRACTOR shall submit to ENGINEER for approval, not less than ten days (10) prior to the first day of scheduled work by each Subcontractor, a request for approval of said Subcontractor; such approval request providing the following information: (a) description of the Scope of Work to be completed by the Subcontractor, (b) the Subcontractor qualifications, (c) the names of key Subcontractor personnel proposed for The Work, (d) record of similar work completed by said Subcontractor within the past three calendar years.
- **48.03.** CONTRACTOR shall not sell or assign any portion of this Contract or The Work provided for therein without the written consent of AUTHORITY. Approval of such

Contract assignment shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of any responsibility under the Contract.

- **48.04.** CONTRACTOR agrees to bind specifically every Subcontractor to the applicable terms and conditions of these Contract Documents, including but not limited to the General Provisions and the Special Provisions, for the benefit of AUTHORITY. AUTHORITY will not consent to the making of any subcontract unless the proposed Subcontractor is acquainted with all the provisions of the Contract and agrees thereto.
- **48.05.** Nothing in these Contract Documents shall create any contractual relationship between any Subcontractor and AUTHORITY or any obligation on the part of AUTHORITY to pay or to see to the payment of any monies due any Subcontractor, except as may be otherwise required by law. AUTHORITY may upon request in writing from the Subcontractor, provide evidence of amounts paid to CONTRACTOR for specific work done and submitted in Requests for Payment.
- **48.06.** CONTRACTOR will be held responsible for the satisfactory settlement by any and all Subcontractors, of all claims and obligations arising in connection with the execution of his portion of the Contract.
- **48.07.** A Subcontractor shall be recognized only in the capacity of an employee or agent of CONTRACTOR and his removal may be required as in the case of an employee.
- **48.08.** The consent to sublet any part of The Work shall not be construed to be an approval of the said subcontract or of any of its items, but shall operate only as an acknowledgement of said Subcontractor's access to the various part(s) of the work.
- **48.09.** The Subcontractor shall look only to CONTRACTOR or his Surety for the payment of any claims of any nature whatsoever arising out of the said subcontract, and said Subcontractor agrees, as a condition of the granting by AUTHORITY, of the consent to the making of said subcontract, that he shall make no claim whatsoever against AUTHORITY and ENGINEER, their officers, agents or employees for any work performed or thing done by reason of said subcontract, or for any other cause whatsoever that may arise by reason of the relationship created between CONTRACTOR and Subcontractor by the subcontract.
- **48.10.** If, for proper reason, at any time prior to or during the progress of The Work, ENGINEER determines that a Subcontractor is incompetent or undesirable, it will notify CONTRACTOR accordingly, and immediate steps will be taken to remedy the condition(s) of ENGINEER'S objection(s) to said Subcontractor, including cancellation of the subcontract.

49. EXTRA WORK

49.01. Quantities of work or material in excess of those named in the Proposal Form and CONTRACTOR'S Bid, and of the same kind as described in said Proposal Form, are not to be considered as extra work. Such quantity excesses, when authorized in writing by Authority will be paid for at contract rates, as specified in the Proposal. Such contract rates to be the total payment for the cost of said excess quantities. CONTRACTOR'S profit, insurance expenses, cost of general conditions, and all other overhead costs to be included in said contract rates. Aside from work thus included in the Proposal schedule, no claim whatever for extra work will be considered or paid, except when ordered in writing by the Authority at a price stated in said order.

- **49.02.** AUTHORITY may order changes in the work required pursuant to the drawings and specifications incorporated herein. If such changes increase or decrease the cost of the work, as changed, CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY shall mutually agree, in writing, to an adjustment to the contract amount and time.
- **49.03.** By mutual agreement this Contract may be modified during the term of the Contract to include additional work substantially similar to work required under the Contract on property of AUTHORITY.
- **49.04.** Extra Work: CONTRACTOR shall perform unforeseen work, for which there is no price included in the Contract, whenever it is deemed necessary or desirable to complete fully The Work as contemplated, and such extra work shall be performed in accordance with the Specifications and as directed, provided, however, that before any such extra work is started, CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY shall mutually agree upon the cost and the additional time required to complete the extra work and a Change Order shall be issued and executed.
- **49.05.** The extra work will be paid for at a unit price or lump sum to be agreed upon in the Change Order by CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY, or where such a price or sum cannot be agreed upon by both parties, or where this method of payment is impracticable, ENGINEER may order CONTRACTOR to perform such work on a "Force Account" basis, by issuance of a letter to CONTRACTOR directing Force Account work.
- **49.06.** It is the sole responsibility of CONTRACTOR to notify its surety(s) of any changes affecting the scope of The Work, Contract Sum or duration of the scheduled work.
- **49.07.** A Field Order, sometimes called Field Directive, is a written instruction from ENGINEER that effects a minor change in the Work and does not require a change in the Contract amount or Contract duration.
- **50.** <u>CHANGE ORDERS:</u> Changes in the quantity or character of The Work which result in changes to the Contract Price or the Contract Duration, shall be authorized only by Change Orders, approved and issued by AUTHORITY and mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR.
- **50.01.** All Change Orders must be approved by AUTHORITY in advance of CONTRACTOR'S start of subject work.
- **50.01.01.** Change Orders of less than 10% of the Board approved contract value may be approved by the Executive Director.
- **50.01.02.** Change Orders in amounts greater than 10% of the Board approved contract value requires approval by the Board.
- **50.02.** In the event mutual agreement cannot be reached between AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR for any item(s) requiring a change in the Contract Total Price or the Contract Time, and a Change Order has not been issued for said item(s), AUTHORITY reserves the right at it's sole option, to terminate the Contract as it applies to such item(s) in question and make such arrangements as may be deemed necessary to complete the disputed item(s). Such arrangements by AUTHORITY shall include, but not be limited to, ENGINEER directing CONTRACTOR to proceed with said disputed work on Force Account basis as further described herein.
- **50.03.** Upon mutual agreement regarding changes in the Contract Price(s) between AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR and execution of a Change Order as described increased to reflect the Total Contract Price as changed.

51. VALUE OF CHANGE ORDER WORK AND FORCE ACCOUNT WORK

- **51.01.** The value of all work covered by a Change Order, or of any claim for an increase or decrease in the Contract Price, shall be determined by one of the methods as further described herein.
- **51.02.** Where The Work involved is covered by Unit Prices in the Contract Document Proposal Form, the appropriate unit prices shall apply to the quantities of the items of work involved, subject to the provisions for increased and decreased quantities of work further described herein these Contract Documents.
- **51.03.** By mutual acceptance of a Lump Sum Amount which AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR acknowledge, such amount will contain a component for overhead and profit.
- **51.04.** Unit price costs not contained in the Bid Proposal Form, negotiated between ENGINEER and CONTRACTOR will include CONTRACTOR'S fee for all overhead, profit and any other costs.
- **51.05.** In the event that CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY fail to mutually agree upon the cost of Extra Work for which no cost is contained within the Bid Proposal items, ENGINEER shall order in writing, the work to be accomplished on FORCE ACCOUNT basis.
- **51.06.** Extra force account work, when ordered, shall be paid for under a written order in accordance with the terms herein provided.
- **51.07.** For all labor and supervision in direct charge of the specified operations, including CONTRACTOR'S own forces, CONTRACTOR shall receive the rate of wage agreed upon in writing before starting such work for each and every hour that said labor and supervision are actually engaged in such work; of insurance upon such labor and supervision under the State of Florida Workmen's Compensation Law, and taxes upon such labor and supervision under other Employees Benefits Acts in accordance with the law in force where The Work is being performed; of contributions, if any, made by CONTRACTOR as employer pursuant to collective labor agreements applicable to The Work under this Contract requiring CONTRACTOR (1) to pay the employees' contributions under the Social Security Act and/or (2) to contribute to welfare or pension plans including employees engaged on The Work as eligible beneficiaries; to all of which shall be added an amount equal to ten percent (10%) of the sum thereof, for CONTRACTOR'S bond, profit, superintendence, administration and all other overhead expenses.
- **51.08.** The wages of any foreman or time keeper, who is employed partly on Force Account Work and partly on other work, shall be pro-rated between the two classes of work according to the number of men employed on each class of work as shown by the payrolls.
- **51.09.** For all materials entering permanently into The Work, CONTRACTOR shall receive the actual cost of such material delivered to The Work, including freight, handling and hauling charges as shown by original receipted bills; to such cost may be added a sum equal to ten percent (10%) thereof for CONTRACTOR'S bond, profit, superintendence, administration and all other overhead expense.
- **51.10.** For any CONTRACTOR-owned machinery or special equipment other than small tools, and including fuel and lubricants, which it may be deemed necessary or desirable to use,

CONTRACTOR shall be allowed a reasonable rental price to be agreed upon in writing before such work is begun, for the time that such equipment is in use on The Work. No profit or overhead shall be added to any rental charges in connection with the use of owned equipment.

- **51.11.** Rental equipment, for which use CONTRACTOR shall submit true copies of rental agreements and invoices and including the cost of fuel and lubricants, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid actual total cost plus ten percent (10%) thereof for CONTRACTOR'S, profit, superintendence, field administration and all other overhead expenses.
- **51.12.** Except as provided hereinafter, the compensation as before described shall be the total amount received by CONTRACTOR as payment in full for extra work done on a Force Account basis, including administration, overhead, bonds, use of tools and equipment for which no rental is allowed, profit, taxes, premiums on insurance and all other overhead expense incidental to performing the Force Account Work.
- **51.13.** In case, however, CONTRACTOR is ordered to perform work under this Section, which, in the opinion of CONTRACTOR and ENGINEER, it is impracticable to have performed by CONTRACTOR'S own employees; CONTRACTOR will, subject to the approval of ENGINEER in writing, engage additional qualified Subcontractor(s) and be paid the actual cost of such subcontracted work and, in addition thereto, five percent (5%) to cover CONTRACTOR'S profit, bonds, superintendence, administration and all other overhead expenses. No additional cost shall be allowed for the before described work.
- **51.14.** CONTRACTOR and ENGINEER, or their authorized representatives, shall compare records of payrolls, equipment usage and materials installed, for Force Account work at the end of each and every day; and claim for extra work done on Force Account basis shall be submitted monthly to ENGINEER by CONTRACTOR upon certified quadruplicate statements to which shall be attached all original receipted bills and invoices covering the cost of freight, handling and haulage charges of all materials permanently entering into such work and satisfactory evidence of all insurance rates and premiums, taxes and other employees benefits and contributions upon labor and supervision allowable under the provisions before provided; such statement shall be filed not later than the 20th day of the month following that in which the work was actually performed.
- **51.15.** AUTHORITY shall compensate CONTRACTOR for properly documented Applications for Payment for Force Account work, submitted as hereto described, within the number of days prescribed herein these Contract Documents for progress payments.

52. ADDITIONAL WORK ON OTHER PROPERTY OF AUTHORITY

52.01. At any time during the initial term of the Contract, the parties may modify the Contract by mutual agreement to include additional work substantially similar to the work required under the Contract and for which unit prices have been established. Such additional work shall be performed in accordance with the Specifications applicable to the additional work, unless otherwise modified by mutual agreement. In the event that the parties agree to such additional work, the Completion Date of the Contract will be extended by the time required for the completion of the additional work and the Contract amount will be adjusted based on the original Contract unit prices set forth in the "Schedule of Values". All other terms of the Contract shall remain the same.

53. UNSATISFACTORY PROGRESS AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

- **53.01.** If CONTRACTOR should make a general assignment for the benefit of his creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed on account of his insolvency, or if he should persistently or repeatedly refuse or fail, except in cases for which the extension of time is provided, to supply enough properly skilled workmen or proper material, or if he should fail to make prompt payment for material or labor or other services entering into the work, or persistently disregard laws, ordinances or inspections of ENGINEER, or otherwise be guilty of a substantial violation of any provision of the Contract, then AUTHORITY, upon the certificate of ENGINEER that sufficient cause exists to justify such action, may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy and after giving CONTRACTOR seven (7) days written notice, terminate the employment of CONTRACTOR and take possession of the premises and of all materials, tools and appliances thereon and finish the work by whatever method it may deem expedient. In such case, CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the work is finished.
- **53.02.** If the unpaid balance of the Contract price shall exceed the expense of finishing The Work, including compensation for additional managerial and administrative services and all other costs associated with the termination and completion of The Work, then such excess shall be paid to CONTRACTOR. If such expense shall exceed such unpaid balance, CONTRACTOR shall pay the difference to AUTHORITY. The expense incurred by AUTHORITY as herein provided, and the damage incurred through CONTRACTOR'S default, shall be certified by ENGINEER.

54. FAILURE TO COMPLETE THE WORK ON TIME

- **54.01.** If CONTRACTOR fails to complete The Work within the time prescribed by the Contract, AUTHORITY, if satisfied that CONTRACTOR is carrying the work forward with reasonable progress and deems it to be in the best interest of the public, may, even without consent of CONTRACTOR'S Surety or Sureties, allow him to continue in control of The Work. Payments shall be made to CONTRACTOR for work performed and materials provided as herein described, but there shall be deducted from monies due CONTRACTOR, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages, the sum set forth in the Contract for each and every calendar day, including Sundays and legal holidays, by which CONTRACTOR fails to complete The Work within the time set forth in the Contract.
- **54.02.** When The Work is not completed within the time allowed by the Contract and CONTRACTOR is permitted to remain in control of The Work, it shall be prosecuted at as many different places, at such times, and with such forces as ENGINEER may determine to be required, all without added cost to AUTHORITY or increase in the Contract price.

55. BENEFICIAL OCCUPANCY

- **55.01.** Prior to final completion, AUTHORITY shall have the right to beneficial occupancy of substantially completed sections of the work for itself or for the use of its tenant.
- **55.02.** In the event The Work, or any portion thereof, is occupied by AUTHORITY, prior to final completion, the responsibility for the cost of all utilities and all other costs shall be mutually agreed upon by CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY in writing.
- **55.03.** If such beneficial occupancy causes unreasonable interference to CONTRACTOR in completion of the remaining work, CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY shall mutually

agree in writing of an equitable adjustment to the cost and time allowed by the Contract for completion of the remaining work.

56. FINAL INSPECTION

- **56.01.** Whenever all the materials are furnished, all work performed and the construction prescribed and contemplated by the Contract has been satisfactorily completed, all in accordance with the Plans and Specifications, CONTRACTOR shall request ENGINEER to make the final inspection.
- **56.02.** Upon due notice from CONTRACTOR or presumptive completion of The Work, ENGINEER, will, within seven (7) days of receipt of a written request by CONTRACTOR, make his final inspection. If all construction provided for and contemplated by the Contract is found to be completed to ENGINEER'S satisfaction, said ENGINEER will accept The Work by issuance of a signed ENGINEER'S Final Inspection and Notice of Substantial Completion, similar to the same in Section 69.0.
- **56.03.** If, however, at such inspection, any work in whole or in part is found unsatisfactory, ENGINEER shall give CONTRACTOR the necessary instructions as to unsatisfactory or incomplete work, necessary and prerequisite for final acceptance and CONTRACTOR shall comply with and execute such instructions subject, if required, to another inspection prior to acceptance. In any event, it is CONTRACTOR'S responsibility to maintain The Work until final acceptance.
- **56.04.** CONTRACTOR shall provide Certifications of Completion and Final Inspections from all agencies having issued permits for the completed work. Such certifications shall include, but not be limited to, City or County Certificate of Occupancy, tests for water and waste water system installation, final inspections for wells or septic tanks, and final inspection of storm water facilities.
- **56.05.** CONTRACTOR shall provide the number of keys for each lockable door, gate or fixture as further prescribed herein; such number of keys shall not be less than two keys for each lock.
- **56.06.** CONTRACTOR shall provide not less than four (4) sets of operating instructions, maintenance instructions, test reports, parts lists and warranties for all systems that have been incorporated in The Work.

57. MEASUREMENT OF QUANTITIES

- **57.01.** After each item of The Work is completed and before final payment is made therefore, ENGINEER will determine the quantity of work performed, as the basis for final settlement. All such quantity determination shall be subject to verification by CONTRACTOR'S submittal of Record As-Built Drawings, sealed by a Florida Registered Land Surveyor and Mapper as before described herein.
- **57.02.** CONTRACTOR will be paid for the actual amount of work ordered and performed in accordance with these Contract Documents as provided under the various items.

58. INCREASED OR DECREASED QUANTITIES

58.01. AUTHORITY shall have the right to make alterations in the Plans or character of work as may be considered necessary or desirable during the progress of The Work to satisfactorily complete the proposed construction.

- **58.02.** Because mobilization is the subject of a separate bid item, AUTHORITY will not adjust unit prices due to changes in quantities of said unit price items and may change any unit price quantities or may completely delete all of any unit price work item(s).
- **58.03.** Whenever the terminus of the project is changed and whenever an alteration in character of work involves a substantial change in the nature of the design or in the type of construction which materially increases or decreases the cost of performance, the work shall be performed in accordance with the Specifications and as directed; provided however, that before such work is started, a Supplemental Agreement acceptable to both parties to the Contract shall be executed. In all other cases, The Work involved in the changes shall be performed on the basis of the contract unit prices and no Supplemental Agreement shall be necessary.
- **58.04.** If CONTRACTOR fails to execute the Supplemental Agreement, AUTHORITY may have the materials furnished or The Work performed by others and CONTRACTOR shall not interfere therewith.
- **58.05.** If any acceptable materials have been furnished by CONTRACTOR which cannot be used because of a change of the Plans, such materials may be purchased from CONTRACTOR at the actual without markup and shall then become the property of AUTHORITY, or other allowance may be made therefore as approved by AUTHORITY.
- **58.06.** Alterations provided for herein shall not be considered as a waiver of any conditions of either the Contract or the bond, or as invalidating any of the provisions or either.
- **58.07.** When alteration in Plans or quantities or work, not requiring Supplemental Agreements as prescribed in these Contract Documents, are ordered and performed, CONTRACTOR shall accept payment in full at the contract unit prices for the actual quantities of work done and no allowance will be made for any increased expenses, loss of expected reimbursement, or loss of anticipated profits suffered or claimed by CONTRACTOR resulting either directly from such alterations, or indirectly from unbalanced allocation among the contract items of overhead expense on the part of CONTRACTOR and subsequent loss of expected reimbursement therefore, or for any other cause.
- **58.08.** Increased or decreased work involving Supplemental Agreements shall be paid for as stipulated in such agreements.

59. <u>TERMINATION OF CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY AND WARRANTY</u>

- **59.01.** The Contract will be considered complete when all work contemplated by the Contract Documents has been satisfactorily completed, Engineer's Final Inspection and Notice of Substantial Completion issued or the Work accepted by AUTHORITY in writing, Certificate of Completion and Contractor's Affidavit executed and delivered to ENGINEER, final release of liens submitted and the final estimate paid. AUTHORITY will establish the one-year warranty inspection date. CONTRACTOR will then be released from further obligations except as to latent defects.
- **59.02.** CONTRACTOR shall warrant that all materials and equipment included in The Work will be new, except where indicated otherwise in the Contract Documents, and that The Work will be of good quality, free from improper workmanship and defective materials, and in conformance with the Drawings and Specifications and other Contract Documents.

- **59.03.** CONTRACTOR further agrees to warrant and correct all work determined by ENGINEER to be defective in equipment, material and workmanship or not in conformance with the Drawings, Specifications, and Contract Documents for a period of one (1) year from the date of Owner Occupancy or date of Engineer's Certificate of Substantial Completion, or for such longer periods as may be set forth with respect to specific warranties relating to certain components of the work. This warranty is in addition to and not a limitation of remedies for latent defects discovered after final completion.
- **59.04.** CONTRACTOR shall collect and deliver to AUTHORITY any specific written warranties given by others as required by the Contract Documents.
- **59.05.** CONTRACTOR shall conduct, jointly with ENGINEER, a warranty inspection during the twelfth month of the warranty period.

60. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

60.01. AUTHORITY shall have the right to terminate for convenience, any or all remaining portions of The Work upon ten days written notice to CONTRACTOR of the Intent to Terminate and the date on which said termination will be effective. In such case, CONTRACTOR shall be paid for all work executed and expenses incurred prior to termination.

61. CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES

- **61.01.** Where CONTRACTOR deems that extra compensation is due him for unforeseen conditions, work or material not clearly covered in the Contract, or not ordered by AUTHORITY as an extra, or for any other reason, CONTRACTOR shall notify ENGINEER in writing of his intention to make claim for such extra compensation before he begins the work on which he bases the claim.
- **61.02.** If such notification is not given or if ENGINEER is not afforded the opportunity by CONTRACTOR for inspecting and evaluating said changed condition or keeping strict account of actual costs thereof, then CONTRACTOR agrees to waive the claim for extra compensation.
- **61.03.** Such notice by CONTRACTOR and the fact that ENGINEER has kept account of the cost as aforesaid, shall not in any way be construed as proving the validity of the claim.
- **61.04.** In case the claim, after consideration by AUTHORITY, is found to be just, it shall be allowed and paid for as an extra as provided herein.
- **61.05.** Nothing herein shall be construed as establishing any claim contrary to the terms of the Contract Documents.

62. <u>SCOPE OF PAYMENT</u>

62.01. The Scope of Payment represents the total compensation to which CONTRACTOR may be entitled under the terms of these Contract Documents, based upon the estimated quantities of items listed herein or upon a lump sum price. The actual total compensation paid to CONTRACTOR for The Work described in these Contract Documents may vary from that amount stated in the Bid Proposal due to: (a) Variations in the "actual" quantity(ies) of work completed versus the "estimated" quantity(ies) in the Bid Proposal, (b) Changes in the pay quantity(ies) by means prescribed herein these Contract Documents, (c) Changes in the scope of The Work as prescribed herein these Contract Documents.

- **62.02.** CONTRACTOR shall accept the compensation, as herein provided, in full payment for furnishing all materials, labor, tools, equipment and all other required services, unless otherwise provided, necessary to the completed work and for performing all work contemplated and embraced under the Contract; also for loss or damage arising from the nature of The Work, or from the action of the elements, except as herein provided, or from any unforeseen difficulties which may be encountered during the prosecution of The Work until the final acceptance by AUTHORITY, and for all risks of every description connected with the prosecution of The Work; also for all expenses incurred in consequence of any suspension or discontinuance of The Work, as herein specified, and for any loss or liability sustained by CONTRACTOR resulting from any infringement of patent, trademark, or copyright; and for completing The Work according to the Plans and Specifications.
- **62.03.** CONTRACTOR shall accept the compensation for Unit Price items in the Proposal Form submitted to AUTHORITY for The Work, as full payment for the actual quantities, as herein described, of said Unit Price items installed. CONTRACTOR **shall not be entitled** to additional compensation for home office or field overhead, taxes, fees, insurance, licenses, profit or loss of profit, travel expense, or all other miscellaneous costs. CONTRACTOR shall include such costs in each and every Unit Price item in The Work.
- **62.04.** Neither the payment of any Application for Payment nor any retained percentage shall relieve CONTRACTOR of any obligation to make good any defective work or material.
- **62.05.** Except as specifically provided otherwise, no direct payment will be made for any of the requirements of the General Provisions, the cost thereof being deemed to be included in the various prices bid for The Work in CONTRACTOR'S Proposal.

63. PARTIAL (PROGRESS) PAYMENTS

- **63.01.** If satisfactory progress is being made, CONTRACTOR will receive monthly payments based on the amount or value of work and materials in place and materials stored on AUTHORITY site.
- **63.02.** Before any allowance will be made for a partial estimate on any bid Item for which a lump sum price was bid, CONTRACTOR shall submit to ENGINEER, for his approval, a breakdown estimate of said lump sum price, showing in detail the cost of such items. The sum of the total costs shall equal the lump sum price bid for the item.
- **63.03.** The compilation of such costs together with all unit price bid items for the total contract is termed the "Schedule of Values."
- **63.04.** Partial payment will be made under each Item for which a lump sum price was bid in proportion to the estimated value of the work completed thereunder during the given payment period.
- **63.05.** Retainage will not be withheld until the percent of allowable Contract time used exceeds 75%. From that time forward, the Authority will withhold retainage of 10% of the amount due on the current estimate as retainage when the percent of allowable Contract time used exceeds the percent of Contract amount earned by more than 15%.
- **63.06.** Any reduction of retainage is at the sole discretion of the Authority and will only be considered upon Contractor providing a Consent of Surety agreeing to the reduction.

- **63.06.01.** If the reduction in retainage is approved, CONTRACTOR shall furnish a notarized affidavit that all indebtedness to each Subcontractor, including second-tier Subcontractors, materials supplier, vendors, laborers, required taxes on laborers and rental equipment suppliers by reason of the Contract has been paid with each subsequently submitted Application for Payment.
- **63.06.02.** If the reduction in retainage is approved, CONTRACTOR shall obtain and furnish to AUTHORITY a Waiver of Lien from such Subcontractor(s), materialmen, vendor(s) or rental equipment supplier(s) having filed Notice To Owner to AUTHORITY, as prescribed in Florida Statutes 255.05, with each and every monthly Application for Payment until Final Payment is made to CONTRACTOR.
- **63.07.** Should any defective work or material(s) or acceptable work that has been damaged by CONTRACTOR'S operations be discovered previous to the final acceptance, or should a reasonable doubt arise previous to the final acceptance as to the integrity of any part of the completed work; the estimate and payment for such defective or questioned work, and for any amount estimated by ENGINEER for its repair or replacement, shall not be allowed and may, at the sole discretion of ENGINEER, be withheld, until the defect has been remedied and cause for doubt removed.
- **63.08.** CONTRACTOR may request payment for materials stored (but not installed as part of the completed work) on the AUTHORITY project site as prescribed herein these Contract Documents.
- **63.09.** CONTRACTOR shall submit such evidence to substantiate the value of the materials stored on the project site, including, but not limited to, purchase orders, invoices and delivery receipts, as required by ENGINEER. AUTHORITY shall pay to CONTRACTOR the full documented cost of said stored materials.
- **63.10.** CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for protection, storage cost(s) and any necessary maintenance of stored materials, to ensure the availability of materials in new condition when installed.
- **63.11.** On or about the twenty-fifth day of each month ENGINEER or other person designated for that purpose will, in consultation with CONTRACTOR, estimate the value of the work done and the materials stored at the site for the current monthly payment period. CONTRACTOR shall submit two (2) completed Application and Certificate for Payment, AIA Document G702 and G703 (forms attached at the end of this document) on the first day of the month on a form approved by ENGINEER. A completed Application for Payment shall be signed by an officer of the company, or by an individual authorized by CONTRACTOR in writing to fully bind the company. The Application for Payment shall be embossed with the company seal on said application. Within thirty (30) days after CONTRACTOR has submitted an invoice for such work and materials, ninety percent (90%) of the value determined, less previous payments and discounts, shall be paid to CONTRACTOR.
- **63.12.** CONTRACTOR may elect to offer a discount to AUTHORITY provided that payment is made within a specified number of days of AUTHORITY'S receipt of a completed Application for Payment by CONTRACTOR. AUTHORITY shall, at it's sole discretion, elect to accept said discount and make payment within the number of days specified. CONTRACTOR is forewarned that a "completed" Application for Payment must include a correct Application for Payment Form and all additional required submittals further described herein these Contract Documents.

- **63.13.** CONTRACTOR shall submit to AUTHORITY with each Application for Payment a written report setting forth the current small business enterprises ("SBE") project participation, SBE Form D (form attached at the end of this document) as a condition precedent to AUTHORITY'S payment of said invoice. Said report shall include the name and address of each SBE firm, a description of the work performed by each firm, and the dollar value of the work performed by each firm.
- **63.14.** Each Application for Payment submitted must be accompanied by a current project completion schedule and the projected monthly dollar values of work to complete the Contract.
- **63.15.** If, during the progress of the work, it appears that CONTRACTOR'S bills or any Subcontractor's or second-tier Subcontractor's bills for materials and labor are not being paid or Subcontractors or second or lower-tier Subcontractors, if any, are not being paid by CONTRACTOR, AUTHORITY shall have the right to obtain releases, Waivers of Claims, Waivers of Lien and information from sub-CONTRACTORS and providers, and to withhold from CONTRACTOR'S monthly payments sufficient sums to protect itself against all losses from possible claims, and to apply the said sums to the payment of such debts. Payment of monthly estimates or invoices shall not constitute an acceptance of the work or an admission by AUTHORITY that the work is done or that its quantity or quality is satisfactory.
- **63.16.** Precedent to receipt of Final Payment, CONTRACTOR shall provide a Certificate of Contract Completion and Contractor's Affidavit (form attached at the end of this document), avowing full payment to all laborers, Subcontractors, material men, miscellaneous vendors and rental equipment suppliers, in form acceptable to AUTHORITY.
- **63.17.** The prices paid for both the monthly and final estimates of the work done will be based on the prices shown in the Price Schedule of the Proposal or as presented in the approved Schedule of Values. The quantities paid for shall be determined as herein described in these Contract Documents.

64. <u>DIRECT PURCHASE OF JOB RELATED MATERIALS</u>.

- **64.01.** The AUTHORITY may elect to procure certain major items of material or equipment for use in this Contract, as its best interest may dictate, to minimize sales tax expense to the Project.
- **64.02.** The AUTHORITY as a public body corporate is deemed a political subdivision within the meaning of section 196.199, Florida Statutes, and has been issued Florida State Sales Tax Exemption No.85-8012529519C-1. The Work falls under the definition of "Public Works" pursuant to Florida Administrative Code Section 12A-1.094(1)(b) and is a project of great public importance to the AUTHORITY and Hillsborough County.
 - **64.02.01.** The Parties mutually agree and covenant to comply with the following procedures and provisions relating to the AUTHORITY'S direct purchase of certain goods, and materials from third party suppliers so as to minimize sales tax expense in connection with the Work, to wit:
 - **64.02.01.a.** The AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR shall mutually agree upon certain items which shall be purchased pursuant to the terms of this subparagraph ("Subparagraph") so as to minimize the sales tax consequences of such purchase. The criteria for those item(s) purchased pursuant to this Subparagraph shall generally be:

- **64.02.01.a.(1)** The item(s) to be purchased would be subject to sales tax if not purchased in accordance with the terms of this Subparagraph;
- **64.02.01.a.(2)** The item(s) of any single procurement action has a total cost of at least \$10,000.00;
- **64.02.01.a.(3)** The item(s) to be purchased shall be clearly and precisely identified in order to facilitate the ordering of such item(s); and
- **64.02.01.a.(4)** The item(s) to be purchased shall only be purchased directly from third party suppliers ("Vendors") and not from contractors or subcontractors providing construction services for the Work.
- **64.02.01.b.** Upon mutual agreement of the parties to purchase an item pursuant to the terms of this Subparagraph, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to the AUTHORITY, the cost, said cost to be documented with a written quote from the proposed vendor, and a complete and full description, sufficient to identify the item to be purchased including, where applicable, the manufacturer or brand, model or specification number, quantity, price, vendor, the necessity of such item in connection with the construction of the Work, and any other relevant information which may reasonably be required by the AUTHORITY. The AUTHORITY shall prepare a change order deducting the cost of said materials plus applicable sales tax from the Contract.
- 64.02.01.c. The AUTHORITY will timely prepare and issue a purchase order in its name directly to the third party Vendor for each item purchased pursuant to the terms of this Subparagraph and in accordance with the construction schedule for the Work. Each purchase order shall define the Authority as the purchaser and ultimate consumer of the item(s) purchased and will include the AUTHORITY'S State of Florida Sales Tax Exemption Number. The Executive Director, or a representative designated by him, is hereby authorized to approve the issue of each purchase order of whatever amount, under this Subparagraph. Upon delivery of the purchase order to the Vendor, CONTRACTOR shall be authorized to implement its procedure for the scheduled delivery of the item in the name of the Authority, in accordance with the terms of the purchase order and shall act as procurement agent for the Authority as to such order. AUTHORITY shall attach to said purchase order, AUTHORITY conditions of the purchase which Vendor shall accept, in writing, precedent to the delivery of materials to the project site.
- **64.02.01.d.** Upon Vendor's acceptance of the purchase order, CONTRACTOR agrees that it shall assume and remain fully responsible for all matters thereafter relating to the procurement of the item including, but not limited to, assuring the correct quantities, assuring coordination of purchases, providing and obtaining all warranties and guaranties required by the Contract, inspection and acceptance of the goods at the time of delivery.
- **64.02.01.e.** CONTRACTOR further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the AUTHORITY, from any and all claims of whatever nature resulting from any nonpayment of goods by the Vendors arising from the actions of CONTRACTOR.

- **64.02.01.f.** Title to item(s) purchased shall vest in the AUTHORITY upon delivery of the item(s) to the job site. Risk of loss and theft of all AUTHORITY purchased item(s) shall be upon the AUTHORITY from the time title and/or possession of the item(s) leaves the Vendor.
- **64.02.01.g.** Notwithstanding any obligations of the CONTRACTOR cited in the preceding paragraph, the AUTHORITY shall obtain such insurance as it may deem necessary to protect itself in connection with the risk of loss to the items purchased in accordance with this Subparagraph, or, shall reimburse CONTRACTOR for the cost of the insurance on the direct purchase items if CONTRACTOR obtains said insurance at the AUTHORITY'S direction. A Builder's Risk Insurance policy or acceptable Installation Floater policy, as further described herein these Contract Documents, shall be purchased, and kept in full force and effect during the construction of the Work on an "All Risk" form, including flood, theft, fire and extended coverage. The policy for the Work will designate the AUTHORITY as the insured.
- **64.02.01.h.** CONTRACTOR shall assure that each delivery of materials or goods purchased pursuant to the terms of this Subparagraph is accompanied by documentation adequate to identify the purchase order against which the purchase is made. This documentation may consist of a delivery ticket and an invoice from the Vendor conforming to the purchase order together with such additional information as the AUTHORITY may require. CONTRACTOR or its agent shall be responsible for approving the delivery and accepting responsibility in accordance with paragraph(d.) above, and giving a written approval of the Vendor's invoice for the delivered items purchased pursuant to the terms of this Subparagraph.
- **64.02.01.i.** In order to arrange for payment to the Vendor, CONTRACTOR shall provide to the AUTHORITY, proof of delivery of said materials. Said proof of delivery of materials shall include, but not be limited to, a copy of the applicable delivery tickets, written approval of acceptance of the delivered items, bill of lading(s) and such order documentation as may be reasonably required.
- **64.02.01.j.** Upon receipt of the appropriate documentation, the AUTHORITY shall prepare a check drawn to the Vendor based upon the data provided. The check will be released, delivered, and remitted directly to the Vendor. CONTRACTOR agrees to assist the AUTHORITY to immediately obtain partial or final release of waivers as appropriate.
- **64.02.01.k.** Pursuant to Section 15, of its Enabling Act (Chapter 84-447), Laws of Florida) the AUTHORITY finds the purchase of all items and materials obtained pursuant to the terms of this Subparagraph consistent with the provisions of said Section 15, in that the Contract has been awarded to the lowest responsible bidder after public advertising, and recognizing that the CONTRACTOR, in its own interest, will have obtained the best available price for furnishing the required materials, thus rendering any further competitive bidding not practicable.
- **64.02.01.I.** In the event the AUTHORITY elects to purchase any items pursuant to the terms of this Subparagraph, the purchase price, taking any and all discounts which may have been offered by Vendor to CONTRACTOR

together with CONTRACTOR'S sales tax liability avoided, shall be deducted by change order from the Contract amount. The monies which otherwise would have been utilized to pay sales tax shall be deducted from the Contract amount and allocated to the contingency budget established for The Work.

64.02.01.m. The purchase or manufacture of supplies or materials by CONTRACTOR for incorporation into the Work shall be taxable to CONTRACTOR.

65. ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT

- **65.01.** Time is of the essence for this Contract. CONTRACTOR shall pursue The Work diligently until completion. Upon completion of The Work, CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify ENGINEER such that the required duration of the contract period is determined and CONTRACTOR is paid for the full cost of The Work performed.
- **65.02.** Before the final estimate is allowed, CONTRACTOR shall prepare and submit to AUTHORITY all required final documents, including but not limited to operating and maintenance manuals, warranty(ies), On Site Certified Record As-Built Drawings, Survey and As-Built Contract Drawings and electronic disk of same, (which will meet the minimum AUTHORITY standards), final SBE participation report, final Release of Liens from all entities who are on record with the Authority as having provided a Notice to Owner, and recap of Total SBE participation report, all as required herein these Contract Documents.
- **65.03.** The Work shall have been inspected by ENGINEER, and if he has found that it has been completed according to the Contract, there shall be issued an "ENGINEER'S FINAL INSPECTION AND NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION". ENGINEER, (form attached at the end of this document) shall approve amount of work done and materials furnished under the contract, all subject to verification by Record As-Built Drawings as herein before prescribed, and CONTRACTOR shall submit final release of liens from all subcontractors and shall prepare and submit his final Application for Payment, accompanied by his Certificate of Contract Completion and Contractor's Affidavit (form attached at the end of this document) for the balance due on the Contract. It is expressly stipulated that AUTHORITY will make final acceptance and payment as hereinafter described after the Contract has been fully completed , final submittals received by ENGINEER and final inspection made. The date of the approval of the final estimate by AUTHORITY shall be the date of acceptance of The Work and shall be "Day Number One" of CONTRACTOR'S one-year warranty period.
- **65.04.** All prior quantity estimates and partial payments shall be subject to correction in the final estimate and payment. No payment will be made for any unauthorized work.
- **65.05.** The final payment, less any allowable discount for prompt payment, as stated in the Proposal, shall be made within thirty (30) days of AUTHORITY receipt of CONTRACTOR'S Application for Payment, and after the proposed work has been fully and properly completed as herein before prescribed. CONTRACTOR'S final invoice shall be on a form supplied by, or approved by AUTHORITY.
- **65.06.** Final acceptance shall occur only with final payment and certification.
- **65.07.** Acceptance of Final Payment shall be a release by CONTRACTOR for all claims except as expressly reserved in writing, accompanied with Application For Final Payment.

66. <u>ALTERNATE ITEMS</u>

66.01. Items shown as "Alternate" on the Proposal Form may be or may not be awarded, as the best interests of AUTHORITY dictate.

67. <u>TRENCHING</u>

67.01. If applicable CONTRACTOR shall comply with the Trench Safety Act (Chapter 90-96, Laws of Florida) effective October 1, 1990 and include costs for complying in the Bid Prices.

68. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS:

- **68.01.** <u>Labor Harmony</u>. CONTRACTOR is advised and hereby agrees that all labor employed by the CONTRACTOR and his subcontractors for work on the Project shall work in harmony with and be compatible with all other labor being used by contractors now in the site of the project. The Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority does at all times reserve the right to prevent a continued performance of any such contract when it in any way interferes with the operation and usage of any Authority property of facilities or construction by Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority or its contractor at the project site and vicinity.
- **68.02.** <u>Preference to Home Industries</u>. The CONTRACTOR agrees that it shall give preference, in the purchase of material and in letting contracts to subcontractors, second-tier subcontractors, laborers and material men who reside within the State of Florida whenever such labor, services or material can be employed or obtained at no greater expense than that which would obtain if such employment was given, contract was let or purchase was made to a person residing beyond the limits of the State of Florida in accordance with the provision of Section 255.04, Florida Statutes.</u>
- **68.03.** <u>Specification of Florida Produced Lumber</u>. The CONTRACTOR agrees it shall always (price and quality being equal) specify lumber, timber and other forest products produced and manufactured in Florida whenever such products are available in accordance with the provisions of Section 255.20, Florida Statutes.</u>
- **68.04.** <u>Labor Standards for ratios of Apprentices or Trainees to Journeymen</u>. The CONTRACTOR agrees to fully and faithfully comply with the requirements of Section 446.101, <u>Florida Statutes</u>, concerning labor standards for ratios of apprentices or trainees to journeymen, as more fully set forth in the Contract Documents herein.
- **68.05.** <u>Work and Gain Economic Self-Sufficiency Participation (WAGES):</u> Section 320.20 of the Florida Statutes authorizes the use of motor vehicle license tax moneys to finance various projects:
- **68.05.01.** Additionally, Section 320.20(4) encourages participation of individuals in the WAGES program by establishing an employment goal which states that 25% of all new employees specifically hired for the projects involving construction should be WAGES participants.
- **68.05.02.** CONTRACTOR should work with the Jobs and Benefits Offices and The WAGES Coalition of Hillsborough County to recruit WAGES candidates for new openings which result from the award of this contract. To assist contractors, contact the Division of Jobs and Benefits, Department of Labor and Employment Security in Tallahassee, Florida at 1-850-488-7228, for referral.
- **68.05.03.** If applicable, "Schedule A" entitled "Work and Gain Economic Self-Sufficiency Participation (WAGES) Good Faith Effort" (form attached at the end of this

document) must be completed and submitted with the bid documents. Failure to complete and submit this schedule could result in bid disqualification.

68.06. E-Verify System:

- **68.06.01.** Contractor shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify System (www.uscis.gov) in accordance with the terms governing use of the system to confirm the employment eligibility of:
 - **68.06.01.a.** All persons employed by the Consultant during the term of the Contract to perform employment duties within Florida; and
 - **68.06.01.b.** All persons, including subcontractors, assigned by the Consultant to perform work pursuant to this Agreement with the Authority.
- **68.06.02.** Contractor shall provide proof of registration in the E-Verify system to the Authority upon execution of this Contract.

69. CONTRACTOR' S RECORD RETENTION

- **69.01.** Contractor and its sub-contractors shall make available records, which includes books, documents, accounting procedures and practices, and other data, regardless of type and regardless of whether such items are in written form, in the form of computer data, or in any other form, and other supporting evidence to satisfy contract negotiation, administration, and audit requirements of the Authority and the agencies funding grant funds for:
 - **69.01.01.** 3 years after final payment or for certain records;
 - **69.01.02.** Contractor and sub-contractors shall make available the forgoing records and supporting evidence for a longer period of time if:
 - **69.01.02.a.** A retention period longer than three years if specified in any contract clause; or
 - **69.01.02.b.** The Contractor, for its own purposes, retains the foregoing records and supporting evidence for a longer period. Under this circumstance, the retention period shall be the period of the Contractor's retention or 3 years after final payment, whichever period expires first.
- **69.02.** Nothing in this section shall be construed to preclude a Contractor or Subcontractor from duplicating or storing original records in electronic form unless they contain significant information not shown on the record copy. Original records need not be maintained or produced in an audit if the Contractor or subcontractor provides photographic or electronic images of the original records and meets the following requirements:
 - **69.02.01.** The Contractor or Sub-contractor has established procedures to ensure that the imaging process preserves accurate images of the original records, including signatures and other written or graphic images, and that the imaging process is reliable and secure so as to maintain the integrity of the records.
 - **69.02.02.** The Contractor or Sub-contractor maintains an effective indexing system to permit timely and convenient access to the imaged records. ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 114 of 154

- **69.02.03.** The Contractor or Sub-contractor retains the original records for a minimum of one year after imaging to permit periodic validation of the imaging systems.
- **69.03.** If any information described herein is maintained on a computer, Contractor shall retain the computer data on a reliable medium for the time periods prescribed. Contractor may transfer computer data in machine-readable form from one reliable computer medium to another. Contractor's computer data retention and transfer procedures shall maintain the integrity, reliability, and security of the original computer data. Contractor shall also retain an audit trail describing the data transfer. For the record retention time periods prescribed, Contractor shall not destroy, discard, delete, or write over such computer data.

70. THE CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

- **70.01.** The project management scheduling tool "Critical Path Method", commonly called CPM, shall be utilized by the CONTRACTOR for the planning and scheduling of all work required under the Contract.
- **70.02.** <u>Scheduling Competency</u>. The CONTRACTOR shall demonstrate qualifications and competency to adequately perform CPM scheduling **or** shall employ the services of a CPM consultant who can demonstrate the qualifications and competency to perform CPM scheduling. Demonstration of said qualifications and competency to adequately perform CPM scheduling shall include, but not be limited to, submitting scheduling samples of entirely similar projects in duration, type of construction and cost, all of which have occurred in the three (3) most recent years. Such scheduling samples shall include name(s), address(es) and telephone number(s) of owner(s) and engineer/construction manager(s) of submitted projects.</u>
- 70.03. Submittal Procedures.

70.03.01 <u>Submittal Requirements:</u>

- a. Time phased logic network, computer generated.
- b. Computerized tabulated schedules:
 - 1. Activity sort by sequential activity numbers
 - 2. Activity sort by early start, organized by related elements
 - 3. Activity sort by late start, organized by related elements
 - 4. Activity sort by total float, organized by related elements
 - 5. Activity sort by predecessor/successor activities
- c. Written narrative description of the logic and reasoning of the schedule.
- d. Resource allocation by activity (Labor, equipment and materials).
- e. Disc copy of schedule and resources.

70.03.02 <u>Time of Submittal</u>

a. The Contractor shall submit to the AUTHORITY a detailed CPM Construction Schedule within seven (7) days from the date of the Notice to Proceed. Contractor shall submit a narrative of the logic and reasoning of the schedule, a network diagram describing the activities to be accomplished in the project and their dependency relationships predecessor/successor) and tabulated schedules as herein defined. The schedule produced and submitted shall include and indicate, if applicable, interim milestone and completion dates identical to the milestone and completion dates specified elsewhere herein. The AUTHORITY shall review the proposed plan and schedule within ten (10) days of receipt of said submittal and state his acceptance or rejection of the schedule.

- b. Within ten (10) days of receipt of the AUTHORITY's response, CONTRACTOR shall revise the network diagram as required and resubmit the network diagram and the revised tabulated schedules as previously referenced.
- c. The revised network diagram and tabulated schedules shall be reviewed and accepted or rejected by the AUTHORITY within ten (10) days after receipt. The network diagram and tabulated schedules when accepted by the AUTHORITY shall constitute the project work schedule unless a revised schedule is required due to substantial changes in the Work or a change in contract time, delinquency by the CONTRACTOR requiring a recovery schedule, or as otherwise provided for herein these Contract Documents. Activities not occurring as scheduled are delinquent if they begin after late start or they finish after late finish. The CONTRACTOR shall provide a written report with each monthly progress update listing the delinquent activities and a recovery plan for said activities.
- d. An updated copy of the schedule, clearly showing progress made and projected monthly pay application amounts to project completion, shall be submitted precedent to each monthly Application for Payment.

70.03.03 Acceptance

- a. The finalized schedule will be acceptable to the AUTHORITY when it provides an orderly progression of the Work to completion in accordance with the contract requirements, adequately defines the CONTRACTOR's work plan, provides a workable arrangement for processing the required submittal(s) in accordance with the Contract Documents, and properly allocates resources (manpower, equipment and costs) to each activity (free of unbalances in resources). When the network diagram and tabulated schedule(s) have been accepted, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the AUTHORITY: three (3) copies of the time-scaled network diagram, three (3) copies each of computerized, tabulated schedule reports in which the activities have been sequenced by: activity numbers, early starting date, late starting date, total float, and predecessor/successor activities. The time scaled network diagram shall display the projected monthly cost of The Work to completion of the project.
- b. The Authority's review and acceptance of the Contractor's project schedule is for conformance to the requirements of the Contract Documents only. Review and acceptance by the AUTHORITY of the Contractor's project schedule does not relieve the CONTRACTOR of any of its responsibility whatsoever for the accuracy or feasibility of the project schedule, or of the Contractor's ability to meet the interim milestone date(s) and the contract

completion date, nor does such AUTHORITY review and acceptance of a submitted schedule, either expressly or impliedly warrant, acknowledge or loading of the Contractor's project schedule.

70.03.04 Revised Schedules

- a. CONTRACTOR shall provide a revised Construction Schedule within ten (10) days, if requested by the AUTHORITY, when, in the opinion of the AUTHORITY, the project completion date is in jeopardy because of "activities behind schedule." "Activities behind schedule" are all activities that start later than the "Late Start Date", or are completed later than the "Late Finish Date" regardless of the existence of positive float on the activity or any successor activity(ies). The revised Construction Schedule shall include a new network diagram and tabulated schedules conforming to the requirements of Section 3.03.03.a. with an accompanying narrative describing how the CONTRACTOR plans to accomplish The Work to meet the completion date or established milestones. The form and method employed by CONTRACTOR shall be the same as for the original Construction Schedule.
- b. The CONTRACTOR shall incorporate into every Construction Schedule submitted, any contract requirements regarding the order of performance of portions of The Work. The CONTRACTOR shall use all practicable means to make the progress of The Work conform to that shown on the construction schedule which is in effect. No payment will be made to the CONTRACTOR while he is delinquent in the submission of a construction schedule.
- c. No change may be made to the sequence, duration or relationships of any activity without the express written acceptance of the AUTHORITY.

70.04. Change Orders, Supplemental Agreements and Force Account Work

70.04.01 Upon approval of a Change Order, Supplemental Agreement or force Account Work allocating additional contract time for performance of work demonstrated by the CONTRACTOR to be on the Critical Path, the added cost and time of said Change Order, Supplemental Agreement or Force Account Work shall be reflected in the next regular schedule submittal(s) by CONTRACTOR

70.05. CPM Standards

- **70.05.01** As utilized for construction project planning and management in these Contract Documents, CPM is a time-phased network representation of all operations and activities required for the Total Work to be completed, representing the complete cost of The Work. Such time-phased network to include, but not be limited to: computerized network logic diagram computerized tabulated schedules narrative reports resource loading of all activities. A completed CPM schedule shall fully describe the relationships and sequences of all the activities that permits the determination of the "Critical Path"; said "Critical Path" that permits completion of The Total Work within the fewest or a prescribed number of calendar days.
- **70.05.02** <u>Activity Schedules:</u> Activity schedules shall include a graphic network and computerized, tabulated schedules as further described. To be acceptable the schedule must demonstrate the following: (a) A logical succession of work from

start to finish. This logical succession, when accepted, is the Contractor's work plan and is only designated as early start to accommodate standard crews/equipment (crews are to be defined by manpower category and manhours; equipment by type and hours), (d) Description of all work activities and interfaces including all submittals, major material and equipment procurement and deliveries.

- a. <u>Networks:</u> The CPM network, or diagram, shall be in the form of a timescaled diagram of the customary "activity on node" type and may be divided into a number of separate pages with suitable notation relating the interface points among the pages. Individual pages shall not exceed 36inch by 60-inch. Notation on each activity line shall include a brief Work description and a duration estimate as further described herein.
- b. All construction activities and procurement shall be indicated in a timescaled format, and a calendar shall be shown on all sheets along the entire top of the sheet length. Each activity shall be plotted so the beginning and completion dates of said activity can be determined graphically by comparison with the calendar scale. All activities shall be shown using symbols that clearly distinguish between critical path activities, non-critical activities, and period(s) of float for each non-critical activity. All non-critical path activities shall show estimated performance time and float time in scaled form.
- **70.05.03** Duration: The duration indicated for each activity shall be in calendar days and shall represent the single best time for completion of said activities, considering the scope of The Work and resources planned for the activity. Weather delays, as defined herein these Contract Documents, shall be reflected on the next submitted updated Construction Schedule. Except for certain non-labor activities, such as curing concrete, procurement or delivering materials, activity durations shall not exceed fourteen (14) days, be less than one (1) day, nor exceed \$50,000 in value unless otherwise accepted in writing by the AUTHORITY.
- **70.05.04** <u>Tabulated Schedules:</u> The initial schedule reports shall include the following minimum data for each activity:
 - 1. Activity Numbers
 - 2. Estimated Duration
 - 3. Activity Description
 - 4. Early Start Date (Calendar Dated)
 - 5. Early Finish Date (Calendar Dated)
 - 6. Status (Whether Critical)
 - 7. Float
 - 8. Cost of Activity
 - 9. Other resources including equipment hours by type, manpower by craft or crew, and materials by units.
- **70.05.05** <u>Project Information:</u> Each tabulation report shall be prefaced with the following summary data:
 - 1. Project Name
 - 2. CONTRACTOR
 - 3. Type of Tabulation (Initial or Updated)

- 4. Project Duration
- 5. THEA Project Scheduled Completion Date
- 6. CONTRACTOR Projected Completion Date
- 7. Variance Analysis per Activity
- **70.06.** <u>Progress Meetings</u>: For the weekly progress meeting, CONTRACTOR shall submit a three (3) week look-ahead schedule as prescribed herein these Contract Documents. Such Three Week Look Ahead Schedule shall show all activities in progress, uncompleted or scheduled to be worked during the three week period. The three-week schedule shall list all activities from the current approved CPM (most recently revised CPM, if applicable) that are scheduled for work during the three week period; are currently planned to be worked even if out of sequence; and work that is unfinished but scheduled to be finished. The schedule shall also show the planned resources and any deviations from that plan.
- **70.07.** <u>CONTRACTORS Daily Log</u>: CONTRACTOR shall keep a daily log and provide a copy to the AUTHORITY (daily), with legible and comprehensive notes of all matters that may impact The Construction Schedule including, but not limited to, weather and work conditions, problems, states of all trades and subcontractors, materials deliveries, site visitors, injuries or damage to equipment or materials and other significant events that may affect the scheduled completion date of the project.

[END OF GENERAL PROVISIONS]

ENGINEERS FINAL INSPECTION AND NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

DATE _____

THEA PROJECT NUMBER

PROJECT NAME:

FACILITY or DESIGNATED PORTION NAME:

CONTRACTOR:______

The date of Substantial Completion of the Work is defined as the date certified by ENGINEER when the construction is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so the Owner can occupy or utilize the designated work for which it is intended.

The Date of Substantial Completion shall be determined when CONTRACTOR provides notification to ENGINEER, in writing, that the Total Project or a specifically designated portion thereof, is completed and available for Engineer's inspection. CONTRACTOR and Engineer's Representative shall have prepared a Punch List in advance of CONTRACTOR's notification for inspection to ENGINEER. The ENGINEER shall approve the Punch List separately and shall inspect the completed project within seven (7) days of receipt of notification. ENGINEER shall notify CONTRACTOR, in writing, of any deficiencies that prevents the Work from being accepted as complete. Upon correction of any noted deficiencies, ENGINEER shall re-inspect The Work and CONTRACTOR and ENGINEER shall mutually agree, in writing, upon the Date of Substantial Completion.

ENGINEERS INSPECTION RESULTS:

(Continue on additional pages as required)

ENGINEER has inspected the above-referenced facility and finds the Work to be adequately completed to permit OWNERS occupancy and use of the facility. Substantial Completion is given on condition that CONTRACTOR complete all of the Punch List items within calendar days of the agreed upon date of Substantial Completion (Punch list items to be complete by end of business on _____). It is agreed by both parties that failure to complete all of the Punch List items within the allotted time shall result in liquidated damages being assessed to CONTRACTOR at the rate of _____ per calendar day (one-half the rate of Liquidated Damages assessed for Contract Completion) for each and every calendar day Punch List items remain not completed beyond the previously established date for completion of the Punch List.

The agreed upon Date of Substantial Completion is: ______.

Signed

Director of Expressway Operations Contractor Name

THEA General Consulting Engineer

CERTIFICATE OF CONTRACT COMPLETION and CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT

CONTRACTOR:

CONTRACT FOR:

CONTRACT DATE:

PROJECT NO .:

I CERTIFY: That the work under the above named contract, including all amendments thereto, has been satisfactorily completed; that all charges or bills for labor or services performed or materials furnished, and other charges against the project, including those incurred by Subcontractors, have been paid in full and in accordance with the terms of the contract; that no liens have attached against the property and improvements of Owner; that no notice of intention to claim liens is outstanding; that no suits are pending by reasons of work on the project under the contract; that all Workmen's Compensation

claims have been settled and that no public liability claims are pending. Affidavit is made for the purpose of obtaining final payment on said contract.

CONTRACTOR:

BY:______ Signature

Typed Title

Sworn to and subscribed before me, a notary public, this day of _____, 20____.

Notary Public

My commission Expires:

Schedule A

Work and Gain Economic Self-Sufficiency Participation (Wages) Good Faith Effort

Bid Number (THEA ITB Project Number)

Company _____

I acknowledge the WAGES provisions of this contract and will make every attempt to fill new job openings associated with this project with WAGES participants who are qualified to perform the duties of the job.

Signature of Company Representative

Title

Date

[END OF ATTACHMENT 5 – GENERAL PROVISIONS]

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENT 5

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

- 01010
- Summary of Work Special Conditions and Precautionary Measures Governing Work 01015
- Measurement and Payment Protection of Environment 01026
- 01450

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

01010 - SUMMARY OF WORK

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

I. <u>INTRODUCTION</u>

Below are the scope of work for two projects:

- 22nd Street Ramp and 50th Street Ramp Concrete Pavement Reconstruction and Asphalt Pavement Resurfacing (O-02119)
- East Selmon Expressway Toll Gantry Area & REL Resurfacing. (O-02219)

II. <u>SUMMARY OF WORK ~ 22nd Street Ramp and 50th Street Ramp ~ O-02119</u>

01010 - SUMMARY OF WORK

1. **DESCRIPTION**

1.01 This section provides a general summary or overview of the work to be performed in the Invitation to Bid (ITB) No. O-02119. In performing the work, the contract documents, plans and specifications shall be adhered to.

2. SCOPE OF WORK

- 2.01 The general Scope of Work consists of, but is not limited to: Providing all the labor, equipment, materials, tools, transportation, supplies, insurance, incidentals, mobilization, demobilization and maintenance of traffic necessary to construct concrete pavement, mill and resurface asphalt pavement, apply temporary striping, permanent thermoplastic striping and reflective pavement markings to the eastbound Selmon Expressway (SR 618) exit ramp at 22nd Street, and the Selmon Expressway (SR 618) eastbound and westbound exit ramps at 50th Street. Replacement of sections of asphalt ramp with concrete pavement and milling and resurfacing of the remaining asphalt ramp segments shall be performed. Milling will include the removal of existing loops in the toll gantry areas. Contractor will be required to coordinate with the Authority's Tolling Contractor on the installation of replacement loops in the gantry areas.
- 2.02 The following materials are anticipated:

See project plans dated 11/5/2019 prepared by Kisinger Campo & Associates (KCA)

It is the Contractor's responsibility to determine all quantities for which the bid will be based on.

- 2.03 The milling and paving activities are to be performed in accordance with the latest edition of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Section 300, for Bituminous Treatment Surface Courses and Concrete Pavement as per the project plans.
- 2.04 The temporary and permanent striping activities are to be performed in accordance with the latest edition of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction. In addition, the Contractor shall install pavement markings in accordance with all applicable manuals, guidelines, standards, handbooks, procedures and current design memorandums.
- 2.05 Maintenance of Traffic, (MOT), to be provided by the Contractor during all set-up and take-down activities and work activities. Maintenance of Traffic to include at a minimum one (1) off-duty law enforcement officer per work operation. Maintenance of Traffic to

be performed by "MOT certified" staff in accordance with the latest edition of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Section 102, Maintenance of Traffic and the latest edition of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Standard Plans for Road Construction.

- 2.06 Work to be performed as per the TTC PLAN TTC NOTES in the project construction plans. No two ramps in the same direction can be closed at the same time.
- 2.07 Work performance total duration is **120 calendar days** (90 calendar days with an additional 30 days for thermoplastic application cure time for a total work performance time of **120** calendar days). Application of the permanent thermoplastic striping to be applied at the conclusion of the 30-calendar day asphalt curing period.
- 2.08 An FDOT certified tack truck will be required.
- 2.09 The Contractor is to take any and all precautions to protect the vehicular traffic and any appurtenances during all phases of construction. All claims for damage due to the activities of the Contractor and/or its sub-contractors will be the responsibility of the Contractor.
- 2.10 The Contractor shall coordinate with the Authority and its toll facility contractor (Transcore) to minimize interruptions to the tolling equipment during construction operations. In addition, the Contractor shall be responsible for liquidated damages for failure to complete the work necessary to allow the Authority to re-establish tolling mechanisms within the Contractor's Maintenance of Traffic Plan.
- 2.11 The Authority has entered into a Construction Agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation for work within the FDOT right-of-way. The Contractor shall adhere to the applicable requirements of the Construction Agreement.

3. SUBMITTALS

- 3.01 Submit the following in accordance with shop drawing submittal requirements of the General Provisions.
 - 3.01.01.02 Maintenance of Traffic Plan. The Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Authority a Maintenance of Traffic Plan in accordance with the most recent edition of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Standard Plans for Road Construction Section. The Maintenance of Traffic Plan shall include time to allow the Authority's tolling contractor to sawcut and install inductor loops at the toll sites.

4. CONTRACT DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS PACKAGE

- 4.01 Construction drawings have been prepared for this project. Provided drawings may not be reflective of all existing conditions. Should disagreements between the drawings, specifications and/or general conditions or existing field conditions be uncovered, said disagreements shall be promptly brought to the attention of the Authority.
 - 4.01.01 Construction Drawings

4.01.01.THEA_22nd_50thSt-Plans-Final.pdf dated 11/5/2019

4.02 Drawings, Diagrams, Reports and Photographs are provided for reference of existing conditions as illustrative and not inclusive of all existing conditions and not intended to limit or take the place of an examination of existing conditions by the Contractor.

4.02.01	Drawings	
	4.02.01.	None
4.02.02	Diagrams of Ex	kisting Conditions
	4.02.02	None
4.02.03	Inspection Rep	orts
	4.02.03	None
4.02.04	Photographs	
	4.02.04	None

4.03 Specifications Package

4.03.01	Specifications Package	
	4.03.01	THEA_22ndand50th_SpecsPkg.pdf

5. **PRODUCTS**

5.01 None

6. **EXECUTION**

6.01 Work Sequence: **All** contract work shall be completed within 120 calendar days of Day One as established in the Notice to Proceed. Work to be performed as per the TTC PLAN TTC NOTES in the project plans. Application of the permanent thermoplastic striping to be applied at the conclusion of a thirty (30) calendar day asphalt curing period.

7. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

7.01 See Section 01026

[END OF 01010 - SUMMARY OF WORK No. O-02119]

III. <u>SUMMARY OF WORK ~ EAST TOLL GANTRY AREA & REL RESURFACING ~ 0-</u> 02219

01010 - SUMMARY OF WORK

1. **DESCRIPTION**

1.01 This section provides a general summary or overview of the work to be performed in the Invitation to Bid (ITB) No. O-02219. In performing the work, the contract documents, plans and specifications shall be adhered to. This project will be let with THEA Project O-02119.

2. SCOPE OF WORK

- 2.01 The general Scope of Work consists of, but is not limited to: Providing all the labor, equipment, materials, tools, transportation, supplies, insurance, incidentals, mobilization, demobilization and maintenance of traffic necessary to mill and resurface, apply temporary striping, permanent thermoplastic striping and reflective pavement markings to the designated eastbound main line gantry area, westbound mainline gantry area, the 50th Street eastbound off-ramp gantry area, the 50th Street westbound on-ramp gantry area of the east Selmon Expressway (SR 618)), and the Reversible Express Lanes (REL) from west of the CSX Railroad to West of 34th Street. Milling and resurfacing shall be performed for the asphalt roadway and ramps including shoulders. Milling will include the removal of existing loops in the toll gantry areas. Proposed temporary and permanent striping and pavement markings shall match existing. Contractor will be required to coordinate with the Authority's Tolling Contractor on the installation of replacement loops in the gantry areas.
- 2.02 The following materials are anticipated:

DESCRIPTION
TRAFFIC CONTROL OFFICER
MILLING EXIST. ASPH PAVT
 3" Avg. Depth on Non-Toll Lanes
 1.5" Avg. Depth on Non-Toll Shoulders
3" Avg. Depth on Toll Lanes and Shoulders
SUPERPAVE ASPHALTIC CONCRETE, TRAFFIC C, PG76-22
 1.5" SP-12.5 on Toll Lanes and Shoulders (First Layer)
• 1.5" SP-12.5 on Non-Toll Shoulders (May be FC-12.5, see notes below)
 1.5" SP-12.5 on Non-Toll Lanes (First Layer)
ASPHALT CONCRETE FRICTION COURSE, TRAFFIC C, PG76-22
 1.5" FC-12.5 on Toll Lanes and Shoulders (Surface Course)
 1.5" FC-12.5 on Non-Toll Lanes (Surface Course)
GROUND-IN RUMBLE STRIPS, 16"
RETRO-REFLECTIVE/RAISED PAVEMENT MARKERS
PAINTED PAVT MARK,STD,WHITE,SOLID,6"
PAINTED PAVT MARK,STD,WHITE,SOLID,8"
PAINTED PAVT MARK,STD,WHITE,SOLID,12" FOR INTERCHANGE
MARKINGS
PAINTED PAVT MARK,STD,WHITE,SOLID, 18" FOR DIAGONALS AND
CHEVRONS
PAINTED PAVT MARK, STD, WHITE, SKIP, 6", 10'-30' SKIP OR 3'-9' SKIP
PAINTED PAVT MARK,STD,YELLOW,SOLID,6"

THERMOPLASTIC, STANDARD, WHITE, SOLID, 8"
THERMOPLASTIC, STANDARD, WHITE, SOLID, 12" FOR INTERCHANGE
MARKINGS
THERMOPLASTIC, STANDARD, WHITE, SOLID, 18" FOR DIAGONALS AND
CHEVRONS
THERMOPLASTIC, STANDARD, OPEN GRADED, WHITE, SOLID, 6"
THERMOPLASTIC, STANDARD, OPEN GRADED, WHITE, SKIP, 6", 10'-30'
SKIP OR 3'-9' SKIP
THERMOPLASTIC, STANDARD, OPEN GRADED, YELLOW, SOLID, 6"

FC-12.5 may be used in lieu of SP-12.5 at the Contractor's option so lanes and shoulders can be constructed in a single pass.

This is a Lump Sum project. It is the Contractor's responsibility to determine all quantities for which the bid will be based on.

2.03 The milling and paving activities are to be performed in accordance with the latest edition of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Section 300, for Bituminous Treatment Surface Courses and Concrete Pavement as follows:

2.03.01	300 - Prime and Tack Coats for Base Courses
2.03.02	320 - Hot Mix Asphalts – Plant, Methods and Equipment
2.03.03	327 - Milling of Existing Asphalt Pavement
2.03.04	330 - Hot Mix Asphalt – General Construction
	Requirements
2.03.05	334 – Superpave Asphalt Concrete
2.03.06	337 - Asphalt Concrete Friction Courses
2.03.07	546 – Rumble Strips
	_

The Contractor shall remove any asphalt lip caused by existing friction course overlap by reducing the milling depth of the adjacent shoulder to ensure a smooth transition. Shoulders shall be milled so that the top layer of travel lane and the adjacent shoulder can be resurfaced in a single pass, which may require reducing the mill depth to 0.75" in some locations.

Reducing the milling depth of travel lanes is not allowed.

2.04 The temporary and permanent striping activities are to be performed in accordance with the latest edition of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction. In addition, the Contractor shall install pavement markings in accordance with all applicable manuals, guidelines, standards, handbooks, procedures and current design memorandums.

2.04.01	706 – Retro-Reflective Pavement Markers
2.04.02	710 – Painted Pavement Markings
2.04.03	711 – Thermoplastic Traffic Stripes and Markings

2.05 Maintenance of Traffic, (MOT), to be provided by the Contractor during all set-up and take-down activities and work activities. Maintenance of Traffic to include at a minimum one (1) off-duty law enforcement officer per work operation. Maintenance of Traffic to be performed by "MOT certified" staff in accordance with the latest edition of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Standard Specifications for Road and

Bridge Construction, Section 102, Maintenance of Traffic and the latest edition of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Standard Plans for Road Construction.

2.05.01	For the EB and WB Mainline Detour Route, the Contractor shall utilize applicable sheets from "REL_Cleaning_SelmonSeg4TCPfinal20170123.pdf" to develop its Temporary Traffic Control Plan (TTCP).
2.05.02	For the 50 th Street WB On-Ramp Detour, the Contractor shall utilize applicable sheets from the "REL_Cleaning_SelmonX-Way-SEG-3_11- 2216rd.pdf" to Develop its Temporary Traffic Control Plan (TTCP).
2.05.03	For the 50 th Street EB Off-Ramp Detour, the Contractor Shall utilize the Detour shown in the 22 nd and 50 th Street Ramp Concrete Reconstruction and Resurfacing Project
2.05.04	For the work on the REL, coordination with the Authority and the Traffic Management Center operated by the City of Tampa will be required for REL gate openings and closings.

- 2.06 Work to be performed during the weekend between the hours of 8:00 PM on a Friday night and 5:00 AM the following Monday. Contractor shall complete the toll site milling and resurfacing on Friday night or Saturday night to allow the Authority's Tolling Contractor to sawcut and install loop detectors at the toll sites before 5:00 am Monday morning. The work may be performed across multiple weekends, however work for each resurfacing location SR 618 Westbound and toll site, SR 618 Eastbound and toll site, and the 50th Street Westbound Entrance Ramp and toll site shall be milled and resurfaced in the same weekend. Thermoplastic pavement markings may be installed in any 8:00 PM to 5:00 AM single work period when there are no impacts to tolling equipment. Work on the 50th Street Eastbound Exit Ramp and toll site shall be coordinated with the concrete pavement replacement work and shall be performed as part of the Phase 2 TTC Project Phasing of THEA Project O-02119. No two ramps in the same direction can be closed at the same time. Work on the REL is to be performed between the hours of 7:00 pm EST and 5:00 am EST, Sunday through Thursday.
- 2.07 Work performance total duration is **120 calendar days** (90 calendar days with an additional 30 days for thermoplastic application cure time for a total work performance time of 120 calendar days). Application of the permanent thermoplastic striping to be applied at the conclusion of the 30-calendar day asphalt curing period.
- 2.08 An FDOT certified tack truck will be required.
- 2.09 If base material is encountered during milling operations, the Contractor shall apply a prime coat before the tack coat application.
- 2.10 The Contractor is to take any and all precautions to protect the vehicular traffic and any appurtenances during all phases of construction. All claims for damage due to the activities of the Contractor and/or its sub-contractors will be the responsibility of the Contractor.

- 2.11 The Contractor shall coordinate with the Authority and its tolling contractor (Transcore) to minimize interruptions to the tolling equipment during construction operations. In addition, the Contractor shall be responsible for liquidated damages for failure to complete the work necessary to allow the Authority to re-establish tolling mechanisms within the Contractor's Maintenance of Traffic Plan.
- 2.12 Contractor shall feather the Superpave Asphalt layer as needed to ensure a smooth transition between the FC-5 (Non-Toll) and FC-12.5 (Toll) surface courses.

3. SUBMITTALS

- 3.01 Submit the following in accordance with shop drawing submittal requirements of the General Provisions.
 - 3.01.01.02 Maintenance of Traffic Plan. The Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Authority a Maintenance of Traffic Plan in accordance with the most recent edition of the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Standard Plans for Road Construction Section. The Maintenance of Traffic Plan shall include time to allow the Authority's tolling contractor to sawcut and install inductor loops at the toll sites.

4. CONTRACT DRAWINGS

- 4.01 Construction drawings have not been prepared for this project. Provided drawings may not be reflective of all existing conditions. Should disagreements between the drawings, specifications and/or general conditions or existing field conditions be uncovered, said disagreements shall be promptly brought to the attention of the Authority.
- 4.02 Drawings, Diagrams, Reports and Photographs are provided for reference of existing conditions as illustrative and not inclusive of all existing conditions and not intended to limit or take the place of an examination of existing conditions by the Contractor. Drawings/Markups provided for the Contractor's information are included below.

4.02.01	Drawings	
	4.02.01.	REL_Cleaning_Selmon_X-Way_SEG-3_11-22- 16rd.PDF
		REL_Cleaning_SelmonSeg4TCPfinal20170123.pdf THEA Project Plans O-02119 22 nd and 50 th St.
		THEA_22 nd _50thSt-PLANS-FINAL.pdf
4.02.02	East Mainline Gantry, Ramps and REL Estimated Asphalt Paving Areas	
	4.02.02	East_Selmon_Xway_toll_Gantry_&_REL_Resurfacing_
	_	Areas.PDF
4.02.03	Inspection Rep	ports
	4.02.03	None

4.02.04	Photographs
	e i

4.02.04 None

- 4.03 Specifications Package
 - 4.03.01 Specifications Package

4.03.01 THEA_TollResurfacing_Specs_111819_S&S.pdf

5. **PRODUCTS**

5.01 None

6. EXECUTION

6.01 Work Sequence: **All** contract work shall be completed within 120 calendar days of Day One as established in the Notice to Proceed. Work to be performed between the hours of 8:00 PM and on a Friday night and 5:00 AM the following Monday, and any work impacting tolling equipment shall only be performed on the weekend. For each toll resurfacing location, milling, resurfacing, and loop installation shall be performed during a single weekend. Work on the REL is to be performed between the hours of 7;00 pm EST and 5:00 am EST, Sunday through Thursday Application of the permanent thermoplastic striping to be applied at the conclusion of a thirty (30) calendar day asphalt curing period.

7. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

7.01 See Section 01026

[END OF 01010 - SUMMARY OF WORK No. O-02219]

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

01015 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES GOVERNING WORK

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

01015 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES GOVERNING WORK

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 <u>SCOPE</u>

This section describes the special conditions and precautionary measures required of the Contractor when working at the Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority (hereafter referred to as "AUTHORITY" or "Authority") relating to safety, security, and protection for personnel; protection of AUTHORITY facilities (equipment and property); protection of wildlife; protection of the environment; coordination of work so as not to impede or impact AUTHORITY operations; maintenance of traffic and utilities; handling and isolation of any sub-surface contaminated material which may be encountered; and other special conditions which are unique to the AUTHORITY.

1.02 **DEFINITIONS**

A. Engineer

The Engineer is the authorized representative employed by the AUTHORITY or a designated representative of the Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority who is in responsible charge for administering and overseeing the design and construction contracts for the AUTHORITY. The Engineer is sometimes referred to as the "AUTHORITY Engineer" or "AUTHORITY".

B. Environmental Projects Manager

The individual, within the AUTHORITY, who is in responsible charge for overseeing all environmental and wildlife matters within the AUTHORITY's Jurisdiction.

C. <u>Contractor</u>

Whenever the contract language talks directly to a third party, i.e., a subcontractor, supplier, manufacturer, etc., it is in fact to mean the General Contractor through the third party.

PART 2 - MATERIAL

The Contractor shall provide such material, equipment and consumable supplies as necessary to carry out the intent of this section.

PART 3 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS AND PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES

3.01 <u>SAFETY</u>

- A. General Safety and Security Requirements
 - 1) <u>Safety Requirements</u>

The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of his organization at the site whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor's superintendent unless designated otherwise in writing by the Contractor, and shall be on 24-hour call. All construction shall be subject to the requirements and safety standards of O.S.H.A.

2) <u>Explosives</u>

No explosives will be allowed within the AUTHORITY lands without written approval of the AUTHORITY except as otherwise allowed in the Special Provisions.

3) Existing Utility Safety Measures

The Contractor, prior to commencement of work, shall ascertain exact locations of all utility facilities including electrical distribution and transmission lines within the demolition and new construction areas, shall instruct his personnel concerning these and shall take all appropriate safety steps to see that these lines are secured from contact or physical damage during construction.

4) <u>Health Protection</u>

The Contractor is required to take all measures to protect public health and to eliminate sources of nuisance and disease which includes but is not limited to the following:

Sanitary conveniences and running and drinking water for the use of all persons employed or associated with the work shall be provided and maintained by the Contractor in sufficient number, in such manner and at such places as required by local ordinances, health regulations and safe practice and as approved by the AUTHORITY Engineer for any proposed connections to AUTHORITY utilities.

Arrange for collection and disposal of refuse and garbage and for the maintenance of premises and all work areas in a well-kept condition, free of litter, debris and safety hazards. Areas which impact AUTHORITY operations must be kept reasonably clean of all debris.

5) <u>Traffic Safety</u>

The Contractor shall, at his own cost, erect and maintain barricades and sufficient safeguards around all excavation, embankments or obstructions; he shall place sufficient red lights, flags, signs or other warnings at or near the work to control, warn and to protect against injury or damages to employees, pedestrians, and vehicular traffic. All work shall be fully protected at all times including the covering of trenches, so that areas are left clean and passable where required for public or AUTHORITY use.

3.02 ENVIRONMENTAL

A. Excavations and Dewatering

Any proposed excavations at the AUTHORITY require precautions and procedures to be followed to ensure the safety of personnel and the protection of AUTHORITY equipment, property and the environment:

- Prior to performing any excavation work, the Contractor shall Contact Sunshine State One Call of Florida, Inc. (1-800-432-4770), for locations of all underground utilities.
- 2) Excavations performed by backhoe and other mechanical equipment require a full-time laborer to assist in searching the excavation between shovel lifts to locate and help protect underground utilities from damage. The Contractor shall comply with the Florida Trench Safety Act and OSHA when performing excavations. Current OSHA Construction Safety Standards require that:
 - a. The walls and faces of trenches 5 feet or more deep and all excavations, in which employees are exposed to danger from moving ground or cave-in, shall be guarded by a shoring system, sloping of the ground, or some other equivalent means.
 - b. In excavations which employees may be required to enter, excavated or other material shall be effectively stored at least 2 feet or more from the edge of the excavation.
 - c. Trenches four (4) feet deep or more shall have an adequate means of exit such as ladders or steps, so as to require no more than 25 feet of lateral travel for workers to exit the excavation.
 - d. Daily inspection of excavations shall be made by a competent Safety Supervisor (of the Contractor's staff). If evidence of possible cave-ins or slides is apparent, all work shall cease until the necessary precautions have been taken to safeguard the employees. Any excavation which the AUTHORITY Engineer deems not in compliance with these requirements shall be immediately corrected by the Contractor.
 - e. Any contaminated soil which is encountered by the Contractor shall be removed, handled and isolated in accordance with applicable governmental regulations and in accordance with the following Paragraph B.

B. <u>Protection of the Environment</u>

1) The Contractor shall take preventative measures to protect the environment from pollution and damage as the result of construction. The Contractor's work shall be performed and be in accordance with all of the restrictions and special conditions delineated in the regulatory permits and licenses for the project as contained in the Contract Documents and/or the requirements of Federal NPDES if applicable to the project site. Environmental pollution and damage are defined as the presence or spread of chemical, physical or biological elements or agents which adversely affect human life; affect other species of importance to man; or degrade the quality of the environment for aesthetic, cultural and/or historical purposes. The control of environmental pollution and damage applies to air, water, and land, and includes management of visual aesthetics, noise, solid waste, as well as other pollutants.

- 2) The Contractor shall establish and maintain quality control protection for the environment for his work throughout the contract duration. This includes the deployment of turbidity booms, silt curtains, and/or hay bales for turbidity control when required.
- 3) The AUTHORITY Engineer will notify the Contractor in writing of any observed non-compliance with Federal, State, or Local laws or regulations. The Contractor shall inform the AUTHORITY Engineer of his planned corrective action, and immediately commence the corrective action with any modifications which may be suggested by the AUTHORITY Engineer and/or governmental agents which have jurisdiction. If the Contractor fails to act promptly, the AUTHORITY Engineer may issue a stop work order for all or part of the project until satisfactory corrective actions have been taken. Any costs which the AUTHORITY incurs as a result of the Contractor. No time extensions shall be granted or costs for damages allowed to the Contractor for any such suspension.
- 4) The environmental resources within the project boundaries and those adjacent to the Lands of Work for this Contract shall be protected during the entire duration of the Contract.
- 5) Truck Clean Outs and Wash Outs: Under no circumstances will material delivery trucks be cleaned out or washed out on AUTHORITY property or waterways. The Contractor is responsible for proper clean out facilities.

3.03 GENERAL CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

- A. <u>Maintenance of Traffic and Utilities</u>
 - 1) Traffic Provisions

The Contractor shall so conduct his operations that he shall not close any thorough fare, nor interfere in any way with any traffic on railway, highways or on water, without the written consent of the proper authorities. The Contractor shall confine operations of his equipment and workmen and the storage of materials and equipment to areas permitted by law, ordinances, permits or the requirements of the Contract Documents, and shall not unreasonably encumber the premises with materials or equipment.

2) Utilities

The Contractor shall notify each utility company and Sunshine State One-Call of Florida, Inc. (1-800-432-4770), at least two (2) weeks prior to the start of construction to arrange for positive underground location, relocation, or support of its utility where that utility may be in conflict with or endangered by the proposed construction. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Document, all costs of permanent utility relocation shall be considered the responsibility of the utility company involved. The Contractor shall schedule his work in such a manner that he is not delayed by the utility companies relocating or supporting their utilities. No compensation shall be made for such loss of time. All underground information is shown on the Plans to the extent known and is as complete and accurate as can be determined by the AUTHORITY Engineer. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to verify the known locations. He shall fully understand that certain structures may not be located precisely as shown or may be omitted entirely. Such, mutually agreed to, pre-existing conditions shall place on the Contractor the following obligations under this Contract:

- a. The position of certain structures and utilities directly affects the proposed construction. Therefore, in order to insure that the proposed work can actually be positioned as planned, the Contractor shall make any excavation necessary for location of structures and utilities prior to construction of that particular portion of the project.
- b. The Contractor shall make all necessary arrangements with the utility companies concerned for maintenance of their lines or facilities during the construction period. In the event that a complete relocation of utilities is required, but has not been accomplished prior to the effective date of the Notice to Proceed, the Contractor, nevertheless, shall commence work under this Contract, and shall schedule his work to avoid interference with the utility relocation work. The AUTHORITY will not be liable for any delay or added expense which the Contractor experiences due to the activities of utility companies, nor shall the AUTHORITY or the AUTHORITY Engineer be held responsible for any damages to identified utilities due to any actions of the Contractor.
- c. At points where the Contractor's operations are adjacent to utility facilities or other property, damage to which might result in expense, loss, disruption of service or other undue inconvenience to the public or to the AUTHORITYs, work shall not be commenced until all arrangements necessary for the protection thereof have been made. The Contractor shall be solely and directly responsible to the property owners and operators of such facilities for any damage, injury, expense, loss, inconvenience or delay caused by the Contractor's operations.
- d. All existing utilities, communications facilities and other improvements, including but not limited to conduit, pipe, wiring or cable (hereinafter referred to as "improvements"), whether above or below ground, shall be protected by the Contractor from damage or destruction. The Contractor shall ascertain from the Drawings and Specifications and from his own reasonable administrative and physical efforts, including notifications to involve organizations for proper marking, the location of any concealed improvements at or near the site of the work. Any destruction of or damage to existing pre-identified improvements, above or below ground, shall be promptly repaired, restored or replaced to the satisfaction of the utility or owner at no cost to the AUTHORITY. This may require complete replacement of conduits, pipes, wiring, cables or similar improvements where original installation was made under a requirement for continuous,

unspliced lengths. Whenever the Contractor neglects to complete repairs in a timely manner the AUTHORITY has the right to have the necessary corrective work performed by the Contractor or by others and charge the cost thereof to the Contractor.

B. <u>Coordination Required for Operations of Others</u>

1) Railroad Operations

The Contractor shall notify the CSX Railroad at least 72 hours in advance of its intent to work adjacent or within any railroad right of way at the AUTHORITY. Arrangements shall be made by the Contractor to provide any flagmen or other safety and security measures deemed necessary by the railroad.

2) Rights of Access

The Contractor shall provide, at all times, rights of access to all vehicular and pedestrian traffic in areas of activity and passage. No facility shall be cut off by the Contractor's activities on a permanent basis. All temporary interruptions of access shall be scheduled, with the concurrence of the parties affected, to hours of least interference.

3) Cooperation with other Contractors

The AUTHORITY reserves the right to let other contracts in connection with this work or in adjacent areas of the AUTHORITY's facilities. The Bid Documents include Additive Alternates, such as dredging, which the Authority may elect to be performed by others. The Contractor shall conduct his work so that it will not interfere with concurrent work by others. Further, the Contractor shall make every reasonable effort to familiarize himself with such concurrent work so as to afford the satisfactory coordination and cooperation of their respective efforts. The Contractor shall afford other contractors reasonable access and opportunity for the introduction and storage of their materials and equipment and the execution of their work and shall properly connect and coordinate this work with the work of the other contractors. Generally, such cooperation and such provision for the work of others that could be reasonably anticipated as determined by the AUTHORITY Engineer shall not constitute a claim for additional work. In no event shall such cooperation be deemed to require the Contractor to do work which constitutes a change to the Contract without first complying with the Contract provisions relating to "Change Orders".

If any part of the Contractor's work depends on proper execution or results upon the work of any other contractor, the Contractor shall inspect and promptly report to the AUTHORITY Engineer discrepancies or defects in such work that render it unsuitable for such proper execution and results. The Contractor's failure to so inspect and report shall constitute an acceptance of the other contractor's work as fit and proper for the reception of his work, except as to defects which may develop in other contractors' work after the execution of this Contractor's work. To insure the proper execution of his subsequent work, the Contractor shall measure the work already in place and shall at once report to the AUTHORITY Engineer any discrepancy between executed work and the Drawings. Should the actions of any other contractor cause interference with or damage the progress of the work and/or the work of the Contractor, the Contractor's sole remedy shall be a sanction against the other contractor.

4) AUTHORITY's Right in Securing Cooperation

Whenever work being done by the AUTHORITY's forces or by other contractors contiguous to work covered by this Contract, the respective rights of the various interests involved may, at the AUTHORITY Engineer's discretion, be established to secure the completion of the various portions of the work in general harmony.

C. <u>Construction Phase Field Conditions</u>

1) Hurricane Provisions

The construction period for this project may occur during Florida's Hurricane Season. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure adequate provisions are applied to secure the construction site in the event a Hurricane Warning is issued. This includes moving Contractor's equipment out of AUTHORITY facilities and/or property when so directed. No reimbursement by the AUTHORITY shall be made for such provisions.

2) Responsibility for Materials

The Contractor shall be responsible for materials, equipment and supplies sold directly to the AUTHORITY, for its tax exempt status, and delivered to the AUTHORITY which will be incorporated by the Contractor in the work. The Contractor shall securely store these materials and, upon delivery, shall be responsible for and shall maintain partly or wholly finished work during the Contract until final acceptance of work.

With the exception of damage caused by a force majeure condition, any damaged materials or executed work forming part of this Contract shall be assumed to have been in the Contractor's custody until final acceptance and shall therefore be immediately replaced or repaired by the Contractor at his expense, irrespective of the identity of the perpetrator of such damages. The Contractor's only recourse for reimbursement of such expenditures shall be through direct claims from the perpetrators or involved insurers.

3) Security

The Contractor is wholly responsible for providing security for the project site during construction. Any security fencing which the Contractor may have installed shall be removed at the end of construction.

4) Protection of Existing Vegetation

The Contractor will preserve and protect all existing vegetation (such as trees, shrubs, plants and grass) on or adjacent to the site of work which is not to be removed and which does not unreasonably interfere with the construction work. Care will be taken, in removing trees authorized for removal, to avoid damage to vegetation to remain in place. Any limbs or branches of trees broken during such operations or by the careless operation of equipment or by workmen, shall be trimmed with a clean cut and painted with an approved tree pruning compound, as directed by the AUTHORITY Engineer.

5) Debris and Unsuitable Materials

All debris, waste and unsuitable material shall be disposed of by the Contractor at a licensed disposal site, in accordance with Federal, State, and Local laws and ordinances.

The responsibility for the conformance to Federal, State, and Local statutes as applicable to the disposal of waste is solely that of the Contractor and any resulting fines or levies for non-adherence to those statutes is for the account of the Contractor.

6) Temporary Power

The Contractor shall be responsible for arranging for the installation and paying the cost of any temporary power supply needed for the project.

7) Telephone

The Contractor shall provide his own telephone communication for the construction site field office.

8) Water Supply

Water required for testing, flushing, disinfection and construction of the project may be available from existing outlets as authorized by the AUTHORITY Engineer at no charge to the Contractor. If water is not readily available from the AUTHORITY connection, then the Contractor shall arrange as necessary to secure a water source for its use. The Contractor shall make all arrangements and incur all expenses involved in having the necessary water meters, backflow preventers and hoses furnished, installed, and removed. There shall be installed in each water service line one backflow preventer, which shall meet the municipal requirements.

9) Project Signs (if required)

The Contractor shall provide project signs as follows:

a. No Trespassing Sign: Provide three (3) signs to be located where designated by the AUTHORITY Engineer. The signs shall be 36" x 48" x 12 gauge steel, galvanized and painted white, mounted on

steel angle posts at a height of 6'-0" above the ground level. The signs shall read:

THIS AREA IS A DESIGNATED CONSTRUCTION SITE ANYONE TRESPASSING ON PROPERTY UPON CONVICTION SHALL BE GUILTY OF A FELONY.

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

- b. Project Identification Sign: The Contractor shall provide one project identification sign, size 4' x 8', that will contain the Project Name, Names of Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority Commissioners, AUTHORITY Executive Director, AUTHORITY Chief Operations Officer, AUTHORITY Engineer, Consultant, and Primary Contractor and the Anticipated Project Completion Date. The design and color shall be as approved by the AUTHORITY. Sign construction shall be ³/₄" marine grade plywood, painted by a professional sign painter and mounted on 4" x 4" pressure treated wood posts. The Contractor shall remove and dispose of the sign after final acceptance of the project.
- 10. Progress Photographs

The Contractor shall engage and pay for progress photographs to be taken monthly of the project during the construction period and to be submitted with Contractor monthly Pay Request. The type of photographs shall be as follows:

- a. Remodel, renovation, or reconstruction projects above \$500,000 in value; land development, or new vertical building construction projects: Furnish four (4) aerial photographs sized 11 inches by 14 inches taken of the project site from the north, south, east and west direction. Provide three (3) glossy prints of each aerial photograph which shall be labeled on the back with the name of the photographer, print identification number, and date of photograph. Aerial photos are to be taken before start of construction and monthly thereafter until project is completed
- b. Remodel, renovation or reconstruction projects \$500,000 in value or less, or project not visible for aerial photography. Furnish up to twenty-four (24) photographs each month at the locations as directed by the AUTHORITY Engineer. Three (3) glossy prints of each photograph, at least 3 inches by 5 inches in size, with the date, location of work shown and photographer's identification affixed thereto, and suitable bound shall be furnished to the AUTHORITY Engineer with each monthly invoice. At the completion of the work, negatives, which shall be 35mm or larger in format, shall be turned over to the AUTHORITY Engineer.

11. Pavement Restoration

All existing pavement cut or damaged by the Contractor in existing AUTHORITY operational areas, shall be repaired within 24 hours to match the original surface, thickness, and grade.

12. Engineer and Testing Service Overtime Rate

The Contractor shall pay for failing quality control tests and engineering or testing services required on an overtime basis. The fee for such services, which shall be deducted from the Contractor's Monthly Application and Certificate for Payment, shall be:

- a. Inspection
 - Testing Service
- c. Density Failures
- d. All Other Test Failures
- e. Overtime

\$45.00/hour/person \$20.00/failing test \$20.00/failing test Pay Premium Cost of Labor

\$80.00/hour/person

13. Testing

b.

Except as stated otherwise in the contract documents, the AUTHORITY will perform acceptance testing at the project site. Any off-site testing, manufacturer's testing, bacteriological testing, or manufactured product certification testing is the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor is responsible for all testing specified or indicated to be performed by the Contractor along with materials or quality control testing necessary for submittals, all systems/assemblies testing and any other testing the Contractor feels necessary to verify conformance with contract requirements. The Contractor shall provide the AUTHORITY Engineer with a minimum 24 hour notice of when elements will be available for acceptance testing.

The Contractor shall provide an independent construction materials testing laboratory accredited by an acceptable laboratory accreditation authority to perform sampling and tests required by this Contract. Submit to the AUTHORITY Engineer a copy of the Certificate of Accreditation and Scope of Accreditation.

[END OF 01015 - SPECIAL CONDITIONS & PRECAUTIONARY MEASURES GOVERNING WORK]

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

01026 - MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

01026 - MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

1. GENERAL

- 1.1. <u>Related Documents</u>: Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Provisions and other Specification Sections, apply to this Section.
- 1.2. <u>Summary:</u> This Section includes administrative and procedural requirements for measurement and payment.
- 1.3. <u>Definitions</u>: Unit price is an amount proposed by bidders, stated on the Bid Form, as a price per unit of measurement for materials or services added to or deducted from the Contract Sum by appropriate modification, if the estimated quantities of Work required by the Contract Documents are increased or decreased. Unit prices and extensions indicated with brackets on the Bid Form are deductions (credits) to the overall project cost
 - 1.3.1. <u>Pay items</u> have been grouped into an overall category by primary discipline Architectural, General, Civil and Structural.
- 1.4. <u>Procedures:</u> Unit prices include all costs required for the complete construction of the specified unit of work, including all necessary material, plus cost for delivery, installation, labor, insurance, overhead, profit, and applicable taxes. Labor costs shall include Social Security, insurance, and other fringe benefits.
 - 1.4.1. <u>Measurement and Payment:</u> Methods of measurement and payment for unit prices are specified in this Section.
- 2. PRODUCTS -Not Used
- 3. EXECUTION -Not Used
- 4. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
- 4.1. Price Schedule:
 - 4.1.1. Lump Sum, Unit Price. and Allowance Items -General:

Lump Sum Pay Items are intended to Compensate the Contractor for all work associated with completion of the entire Contract Scope of Work, excluding that work which is covered by Unit Price and Allowance Pay items. This shall apply for all Lump Sum Pay Items within the Bid Proposal. Lump Sum Pay Items shall include all costs associated with the work including all necessary material, delivery, installation, labor, equipment, consumable supplies, insurance, overhead, profit and applicable taxes for completion of the work. Unless otherwise specified, progress payments for Lump Sum Pay Items will be based upon the agreed percentage of work complete and meeting the acceptance of the AUTHORITY.

Unit Price Pay Items are established in the Bid Proposal Form as a means of compensating the Contractor for work items for which the quantity has been estimated at the time of bid. The following conditions apply to Unit Price Pay Items:

- a. Should it become necessary, as ordered by the AUTHORITY in writing, to increase quantities of Unit Price Pay Items above those required to complete the work shown on the Drawings or specified herein due to changes in the design or layout of the work, the Contractor shall do so with such additional quantities at the same unit prices as included in the Bid Proposal Form.
- b. If such changes of plan result in a decrease in the quantities of Unit Price Pay Items, the Contractor shall allow credit against the total cost of the Contract in accordance with the unit prices as included in the Bid Proposal Form. This credit shall apply to any and all decreases up to one hundred percent (100%) of the original amount. The Authority has the right to eliminate any Unit Price Pay Item in its entirety.
- c. Progress payments for Unit Price Pay Items will be determined on the basis of field measurements of the number of estimated units completed meeting the acceptance of the AUTHORITY.
- d. Allowance Pay Items may be established by the Authority in the Price Schedule in the Bid Proposal Form to readily deal with certain unforeseen conditions should they be encountered during the course of construction. Any item to be considered for reimbursement under an Allowance Item requires prior approval by the AUTHORITY. The Contractor shall be allowed a 3% markup (Contractor's handling fee) on costs which are authorized to be paid under an Allowance Item. Should the value of the Allowance Item be insufficient to cover the cost of the authorized work, then the Authority shall increase the Allowance Item amount by Change Order. The unspent balance of any Allowance Items shall be deducted from the Contract by a Final Reconciliation Change Order prior to close out of the Contract. Contractor's invoicing on Allowance Items shall be accompanied by substantiating invoices and paid receipts from permit agencies, utility companies, and testing laboratories, whose services are authorized under the Allowance Item.
- 4.2 <u>Specific Pay Items:</u> Description, Measurement and Payment
 - 4.2.1 Pay Item G1 -Consideration for Indemnification of the Authority.
 - a. Description: This lump sum item is compensation for indemnification to the Authority which is required for the duration of the Contract.
 - b. Measurement and Payment: The lump sum amount is billable on the first monthly payment application.
 - c. Payment shall be made under:

Pay Item G1 -Indemnification -Lump Sum

- 4.2.2. Pay Item G2 -Consideration for Bond Premium.
 - a. Description: This lump sum item is compensation for 100% Performance, Payment and/or Construction Bonds Premiums which are required for the duration of the Contract.

- b. Measurement and Payment: The lump sum amount is billable on the first monthly payment application. The lump sum amount for bond premiums shall not exceed three percent (3%) of the total bid price.
- c. Payment shall be made under:

Pay Item G2 -Bond Premiums -Lump Sum

- 4.2.3. Pay Item C1 General Construction
 - a. Description: This lump sum item is compensation to provide all the labor, equipment, materials, tools, transportation, supplies, insurance, incidentals, mobilization, demobilization and maintenance of traffic necessary to mill, pave, apply temporary striping, permanent thermoplastic striping and reflective pavement markings to areas designated along the Eastbound and Westbound Selmon Expressway from South Boulevard to Gandy Boulevard located in Hillsborough County, Florida, (the "Project"). The linear distance is approximately 4.2 miles.
 - b. Measurement and Payment: The lump sum amount is billable on each monthly payment application based upon the agreed percentage of work complete and meeting the acceptance of the Authority. Payment shall be made based on the completion of all work as per the plans and construction documents.
 - c. Payment shall be made under:

Pay Item C1 – General Construction - Lump Sum

[END OF 01026 - MEASUREMENT & PAYMENT]

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

01450 - PROTECTION OF ENVIRONMENT

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

01450 - PROTECTION OF ENVIRONMENTAL

1. GENERAL

1.1 <u>SCOPE:</u>

This Specification covers prevention of environmental pollution or damage as the result of construction and work activities. Environmental pollution and damage are defined as the presence of chemical, physical, or biological elements or agents which adversely affect human health or welfare: unfavorably alter ecological balances of importance to human life: affect other species of importance to man: or degrade the utility of the environment for aesthetic, cultural, and/or historical purposes. Environmental pollution and drainage are also defined as any violation of Federal, State and Local Environmental Regulations and Requirements.

The control of environmental pollution and damage requires consideration of air, water, and land, and includes management of visual esthetics, noise, solid waste, radiant energy and radioactive materials, as well as other pollutants.

1.2 <u>SUBMITTALS:</u>

Submit the following in accordance with shop drawing submittal requirements of the General Provisions.

1.2.1. Environmental Protection Plan

The Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Authority an Environmental Protection Plan. This plan shall include but not be limited to, the following items:

- a. A list of Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and permits concerning environmental protection, pollution control, and abatement that are applicable to the proposed operations and the requirements imposed by those laws, regulations, and permits.
- b. Methods for protection of features to be preserved within authorized work areas. Prepare a listing of methods to protect resources needing protection, i.e., trees, shrubs, grasses and ground cover, air and water quality, fish and wildlife.
- c. Procedures to be implemented to provide the required environmental protection and to comply with the applicable laws and regulations. Set out the procedures to be followed to correct pollution of the environment due to accident, natural causes or failure to follow the procedures set out in accordance with the environmental protection plan.
- d. Environmental monitoring plans for the jobsite, including land, water, air, and noise monitoring.
- e. Methods of protecting surface and ground water during construction activities.
- f. Work area plan showing the proposed activity in each portion of the area and identifying the areas of limited use or nonuse. Plan should include measures for marking the limits of areas to be used.

1.2.2. Implementation

Then Contractor shall submit, in writing, the above referenced Environmental Protection Plan within twenty (20) days after receipt of Notice to Proceed. No work affected by the permits shall commence until the Environmental Protection Plan is reviewed by the AUTHORITY. AUTHORITY's review of the Contractor's plan will not relieve the Contractor of his responsibility for adequate and continuing control of pollutants and other environmental protection measures.

1.2.3. Quality Control Reports

The Contractor shall establish and maintain daily quality control for environmental protection of all items set forth herein. The Contractor shall record on daily quality controls reports or attachments thereto any problems in complying with laws, regulations and ordinances, and corrective action taken. Quality control reports shall be provided to the AUTHORITY no later than 9:00 am on the work day following the work day reported. Quality Control reports shall be signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer, licenses in the State of Florida, employed by a Certified Laboratory other than the AUTHORITY's own Laboratory Consultant.

1.3 SUBCONTRACTORS

Assurance of compliance with this specification by subcontractors will be the responsibility of the Contractor.

1.4 NOTIFICATION

The AUTHORITY will notify the Contractor in writing of any observed noncompliance with the aforementioned federal, state or local laws or regulations, permits and other elements of the Contractor's Environmental Protection Plan. The Contractor shall, after receipt of such notice, inform the AUTHORITY of proposed corrective action and take such action as may be approved. If the Contractor fails to comply promptly, the AUTHORITY may issue an order stopping all or part of the work until satisfactory corrective action has been taken. No time extensions shall be granted or costs for damages allowed to the Contractor for any such suspension.

2. MATERIALS

2.1 <u>GENERAL</u>

The Contractor shall provide such material and equipment required to carry out the intent of this specification.

3. EXECUTION

The environmental resources within the project boundaries and those affected outside the limits of permanent work under this Contract shall be protected during the entire period of this Contract. The Contractor shall confine his activities to areas defined by the Drawings and Specifications.

3.1 PROTECTION OF LAND RESOURCES

Prior to the beginning of any construction the Contractor shall identify all land resources to be preserved within the Contractor's work area. The Contractor shall not remove, cut, deface, injure, or destroy land resources including trees, shrubs, vines, grasses, top soil, and land forms without special permission from the AUTHORITY. No ropes, cables, or guys shall be fastened to or attached to any trees for anchorage unless specifically authorized. Where such special emergency use is permitted, the Contractor shall provide effective protection for land and vegetation resources at all times.

3.1.1 Disposal of Solid Waste

Solid waste (excluding clearing debris) shall be placed in containers which shall be emptied daily by the Contractor. All handling and disposal shall be conducted to prevent contamination.

3.1.2. Disposal of Chemical Waste

Chemical waste shall be stored in corrosion resistant containers, removed from the work area and disposed of in accordance with federal, state and local regulations.

3.1.3. Disposal of Discarded Materials

Discarded materials other than those which can be included in the solid waste category shall be handled as directed by the AUTHORITY.

3.1.4 Restoration of Landscape Damage

The Contractor shall restore all landscape features damaged or destroyed during construction operations outside the limits of the approved work areas. Such restoration shall be in accordance with the plan submitted to the AUTHORITY for approval. This work will be accomplished at the Contractor's expense.

3.1.6 Equipment Maintenance and Repair

No equipment repair will be allowed on the project site.

3.2. PROTECTION OF WATER RESOURCES

The Contractor shall keep construction activities under surveillance, management, and control to avoid pollution of surface and ground waters. Special management techniques as set out herein shall be implemented to control water pollution resulting from construction or work activities which are included in the Contract.

3.2.1. Turbidity

The Contractor shall conduct his work in a manner to minimize turbidity and shall conform to all water quality standards as prescribed by Chapter 17-3, State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection, and required by the Permits. The Contractor shall perform such tests and submit such reports required by those regulations.

3.2.2 Monitoring

All monitoring of water areas affected by construction activities as required by water quality standards and the Permits shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

[END OF 01450 - PROTECTION OF ENVIRONMENT]

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENT 6 -

LETTERS OF CLARIFICATON (when issued)

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 153 of 154

TAMPA-HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

ATTACHMENT 7 -

ADDENDA (when issued)

FOR

INVITATION TO BID

ITB No. O-02119 & O-02219

ITB O-02119 and O-02219 ~ Page 154 of 154